

THE AQUARIAN MESSAGE

SAMAEL AUN WEOR



The Aquarian Message by Samael Aun Weor. First published in 1960.

This ebook edition was created and published by Global Grey in 2018, and updated on the 18th January 2023.

The artwork used for the cover is 'St John the Theologian writing the Book of Revelation' painted by Theodoros Poulakis.

This book can be found on the site here:

<u>globalgreyebooks.com/aquarian-message-ebook.html</u> ©Global Grey 2023

globalgreyebooks.com

Contents

Preface

Introduction

- 1. The Son Of Man
- 2. The First Begotten Of The Dead
- 3. The Seven Churches
- 4. The Serpent Of Metal
- 5. The Internal Meditation
- 6. The Church Of Ephesus
- 7. The Church Of Smyrna
- 8. The Church Of Pergamos
- 9. The Church Of Thyatira
- 10. The Church Of Sardis
- 11. The Church Of Philadelphia
- 12. The Church Of Laodicea
- 13. The Jinn States
- 14. The Throne In Heaven
- 15. The Sealed Book
- 16. The Seven Seals
- 17. The Four Angels
- 18. The Seventh Seal
- 19. The Fifth Angel
- 20. The Sixth Trumpet
- 21. The Seventh Trumpet
- 22. The Two Witnesses
- 23. The Woman And The Dragon
- 24. The Two Beasts
- 25. The Lamb In Sion
- 26. The Seven Angels With The Seven Vials
- 27. The Seven Vials Are Poured
- 28. The Whore And The Beast
- 29. Babylon Is Fallen
- 30. The Maitreya Buddha

- 31. The Millennium And The Judgement
- 32. The New Jerusalem
- 33. The Pure River Of The Waters Of Life

Preface

In the name of the Truth, we, the Brethren of the Temple, give infinite thanks to our brother Manuel S. Sanches and to all the brotherhood of the Sanctuary of Barquisimeto for making the printing of this book possible. That Sanctuary will be named from now on, Sanctuary Maitreya, because of the services given to the Cosmic Christ, as well as, the service given to this great suffering humanity.

This Sanctuary Maitreya is accomplishing a gigantic world mission.

We also gives thanks to our brother Ramon Flores Derma for his technical Biblical work, and in general to all those who in one way or another were concerned with the triumph of this work.

We called all religions, schools, sects, orders, lodges, etc., in order to form the Worldly Salvation Army.

We invite all people of good will to enlarge the columns of AGLA. We are not against anyone neither against the religion or school of anyone. We consider all religions, schools and sects as precious pearls linked in the golden thread of Divinity.

We do not attack anyone, we do not hate anyone, we do not combat anyone.

We explain the Secret Doctrine of our Adorable Saviour. We intensely love this poor suffering humanity. We warn this humanity of the planet Earth about the Apocalyptic hour in which we are in.

We disclose the veil of the book of Apocalypse. This is a terribly divine book. The human beings will have to define themselves as angels or demons, eagles or reptiles with this book.

The times of the end have arrived and we are in them. Those who suppose that the times of the end are in a very remote future are very mistaken.

Events are speaking by themselves. The dreadful cataclysms which recently struck Chile and that caused terrible harm to Japan, as well as the terrible earthquakes which are occurring in different parts of the world, and all the unknown sicknesses which are appearing that medical science cannot cure, deadly hatred, atomic bombs, etc., are showing us in an evident way that the times of the end have arrived.

The World Gnostic Movement, the South American Liberator Action and Sivananda Aryabarta Ahsrama, are standing, fighting for the New Aquarian Age. So, the triangle ALAS, Gnosis, Sivananda Aryabarta Ahsrama, fights for the New Age.

The terrible hour has arrived and we cannot remain indifferent.

Soon the atomic war will explode and terrible events will occur in all of the corners of the earth.

The apocalyptic hour has arrived. Woe! Woe! Woe to the dwellers of the earth!

August 17 - 1960

Mexico City

Introduction

The Age of Aquarius begins February 4th of 1962, between 2:00 and 3:00 pm. Many schools await the New Era. This book is the message of the new era of Aquarius.

Many esoteric students will be amazed because we predict frightful cataclysms for the new era of Aquarius.

The "I", the "MYSELF', the reincarnating ego certainly wants comfortable situations. It longs for an era of security and an era that offers many unharmful things, safe surroundings, a sensual comfortable era, without war, hatred or problems.

It is urgent to know that life has begun its return towards the great Light. This signifies catastrophe.

The earth will experience a process of planetary disintegration and reintegration. Aquarius brings terrible cataclysms.

All that is written in the book of Apocalypse is for the times of the end. We must inform humanity that the times of the end are at hand. The Apocalypse is the message of the new era.

We have studied the verses of the book of Revelation (Apocalypse) in the Superior Worlds. We give the result of our investigations in this book.

Much has been said and written about the Apocalypse. However, only intellectual speculations have been made and the words of various authorities have been repeated.

The present work is the result of tremendous esoteric investigations that were patiently performed by us in the Superior Worlds.

We have found the Apocalypse to be divided into three parts: The first we have titled "The Son of Man", the second "The Sealed Book" and the third "The New Jerusalem."

The first part teaches the Path of the Razor's Edge. The second is related with the times of the end. The third tells us of the future earth.

This is a book of practical christification. This is a book of transcendental esoterism and it is absolutely practical.

We do not theorize in this book. This work is one hundred per cent practical.

Many students long for their christification, but they do not know where to begin. They do not know the code, the secret.

In this book we give away to every student the code, the secret, the key. Here you have the key, you who thirst, lovers of the Truth. Now lets practice.

You are not alone. We profoundly love you and when you are walking on the Path of the Razor's Edge you will be assisted by the Brothers of the Temple.

AGLA (American Gnostic Liberation Action) is constituted by the triangle ALAS-Gnosis Sivananda Aryabarta Ahsrama.

These are three powerful united movements that propagate gnosis. They teach the gnostic esoterism of our adorable Saviour of the world throughout the world.

If after reading this book you wish to enter AGLA you must write to us. Not a single letter will remain without answer. AGLA is formed by millions of people in the west, as well as in the east. AGLA is forming the world salvation army.

The supreme chief of AGLA is Jesus Christ. Let it be known beloved brothers and sisters that Jesus the Christ is alive.

Jesus Christ resurrected on the third day with his body of flesh and bone and he still lives with this same body in Shamballa.

The Secret country of Shamballa is in the Orient, in Tibet. The Master Jesus has a temple there. Other Masters live with him who have also resurrected and who have kept their bodies over the many ages of time.

The adorable Master Jesus the Christ has been very active and has worked intensely by helping this poor, suffering humanity. He is the chief of the gnostic movement. He is the supreme Hierarch of AGLA.

Although it seems incredible, the adorable Saviour of the world had worked as a nurse in the fields of battle during the first and second World Wars.

Let us transcribe the touching story of a wounded soldier written by Mr. Mario Roso de Luna, the ingenious Theosophical writer. This story is found in "The Book That Kills Death, or 'The Book of the Jinn" which is a fine piece of work by Mr. de Luna. The story is as follows:

"Strange news came to us when we were in the ditch at war... .certain rumours were spreading along the stretch from Switzerland to the sea, yet their origin or authenticity were unknown. Word came and went quickly and I remember the moment in which my partner George Casay looked at me strangely with his blue eyes and asked me if I had seen the friend of the wounded ones. He then told me what he knew in respect to the rumour that was circulating. He told me that after many violent battles, a man dressed in white had been seen bending over the wounded soldiers as bullets were fired all around him and grenades fell at his feet. However, nothing had the power to harm him. He was a hero superior to all heroes or something greater still.

"This mysterious person to whom the French call the Comrade dressed in white seemed to be everywhere at the same time. In Nancy, Argona, in Soissons, in Ypres and everywhere all men spoke of him with their voices lowered. However, some of them smiled and said that the ditch was affecting their nerves.

"I was frequently being careless with my words and I exclaimed that I must see in order to believe, and that I needed the German knife to wound me so that I may fall to the ground.

"The following day, we were at battle at the Front, the canons were roaring from morning till night and began again the following day. At midday we received the command to move in and take over at the Front which was two hundred yards from our position. As we were advancing we realized that our canons had failed to fire at the moment of attack. We needed hearts of steel in order to march on. None of us thought, we only acted and we continued to march on.

"We had advanced 150 yards when we realized that we had acted poorly. Our captain commanded us to take cover, and precisely at that moment both of my legs were wounded and by divine mercy I fell into a hole. I must have fainted because when I opened my eyes I was alone. The pain was excruciating, however, I remained motionless for I was in fear that the Germans would see me being only 50 yards away from them. I was hoping that someone would have pity on me. Soon I realized that there were men near by that would have

considered themselves in danger within the obscurity of the night if they had known that a comrade was still alive.

"I felt relieved as nightfall grew nearer. The night fell and I suddenly heard footsteps that were not weak but firm and strong, as if neither obscurity nor death could have altered their movement. I never would have guessed who was approaching. Even having seen the clarity of the white cloth within the obscurity I assumed that it was a farmer wearing a shirt and it even occurred to me to be an insane woman. But suddenly, with amazement -whether of happiness or terror, I do not know- I realized that he was the comrade dressed in white and at that precise moment the German rifles began to fire. The bullets could not have missed such a target because he raised his arms begging them to stop. He then retracted his arms and remained in the form of a cross, as the crosses that are frequently seen along side the roads of France. He then spoke. His words were very familiar. I remember only the beginning of his words, 'If you have known', and the end, 'But now they are hidden to your eyes.' Then he bent over and took me into his arms, I, the heaviest man of my group. He carried me as if I were a child. I suppose that I fell asleep because when I awoke that childlike feeling was gone. I was a man wishing to know what I could do in order to serve and help my friend.

"He was looking towards the stream holding his hands together as if he were praying. I then saw that he too was wounded. I believe that I saw a deep wound on his hand and as he prayed a drop of blood fell from his wound to the ground. I screamed without control because the wound appeared to me to be more terrifying than any of the wounds that I had seen throughout that bitter war.

"You are also wounded' I said with humbleness. I do not know whether he heard me or whether he saw it in my expression but he answered with gentleness, 'This is an ancient wound but it has been bothering me lately.' I then noticed that the same cruel mark appeared on his feet.

"Amazingly enough, I did not realize who he was until I saw his feet. I then recognized him as the living Christ. I had heard the Capelin speak of Him a few weeks before but now I understood that He had come towards me, towards I who had removed Him from my life in the ardent fever of my youth. I wished to speak with Him and give Him thanks but I could not find the words. He then stood and said, 'Remain close to the water today and I will come for you tomorrow, I have a duty for you to do for me.' Moments later He was gone.

"As I waited for Him I wrote this in order not to forget this experience. I feel weak and lonely and my pain increases but I have His promise and I know that He will come for me tomorrow."

This is the story of the soldier written by Mr. Mario Roso de Luna in his book "The Book That Kills Death". This concrete fact infallibly demonstrates that Jesus still lives with the same physical body the He used in the Holy Land.

Here in this book we have delivered the key for the resurrection. We have removed the veil of the centuries; we have delivered the secret doctrine of the Adorable One with seven seals in the book of Revelation (Apocalypse) to the poor and suffering humanity.

"The Message Of Aquarius" is a book of terribly divine powers. Here we find all of the secrets, here we find all of the keys of the christification. Here is written the doctrine that the Adorable One taught in secret to His humble disciples.

The Adorable One will remain with us even unto the end of the world and evermore.

This is His doctrine. Here you have it. Study it and practice it.

Inverencial peace,

Samael Aun Weor

Maitreya Buddha Kalki Avatar of the new age of Aquarius.

1. The Son Of Man

"Blessed is he that readeth, and they that hear the words of this prophesy, and keep those things which are written therein: for the time is at hand." (Revelation 1:3)

Son of Man, reveal to us the hidden. Each delicious symphony of the ineffable cosmos, each note, each tender melody hidden within the very pure enchantment of the exquisite fragrant roses of the gardens of Nirvana is the living incarnation of the Word.

The times of the end have arrived! "Behold, he cometh with clouds; and every eye shall see him, and they also which pierced him: and all kindreds of the earth shall wail because of him. Even so, Amen." (Revelation 1:7)

Behold, the Adorable One is at hand! He who has bled so much for us...Behold, the Blessed One is at hand, He comes as an anguished mother in search of her little children...

Listen you men and Gods: Within the mystery of each profound wave, the adorable One is at hand.. He who makes us kings and priests unto God and his Father.

At times, the morning breeze brings us sweet melodies like the murmur of a mother, yet other times so severe like the lightning that terribly flashes within the catastrophic tempest of the furious apocalyptic ocean.

Within the delicious and ineffable profundities of the sanctuary, the Beloved One speaks with a paradisiacal voice and He says sublime things: "I am Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the ending, saith the Lord, which is, and which was, and which is to come, the Almighty." (Revelation 1:8)

A terrible lightning flashes within the blue velvet of the starry night... He is the Son of Man! The Intimate emanates from this divine ray.

The choir of the Saints resounds and tenderly the Virgins of Nirvana sing. These Virgins are deeply moved when this Ray penetrates the soul of a Holy Man.

The ineffable ray (Christ) penetrates the soul and transforms into Her. He transforms himself into Her and she (the soul) transforms herself into Him. The Divine becomes human and the human becomes divine.

These are the eternal weddings of the soul with the Pascal Lamb.

That which we call the Son of Man is the result of these alchemical weddings, of this mixture of Love and Peace. He is the resplendent and luminous "I AM", our resplendent Dragon of Wisdom. He is the richest treasure which the Adorable One has brought to us.

He is the Man-Sun, Ormus, Osiris, Vishnu, Chur, the Lamb; also the Man of Time and of the River sung by Daniel, the prophet.

He is the Alpha and the Omega, the first and the last, which is, which was and which is to come. He is the Eternal Beloved, the Elder of Days.

The Lord of all adoration wants to dwell within the depths of each soul. He is the oil of the myrrh and the fragrance of the incense, HE IS the Adorable One and the Adorer.

The phrase "I am" must be translated as "I am the Being". In reality, the Beloved One is the Being of our Being that is, was, and is to come. We possess a precious tabernacle (the physical body), an anguished soul, and a Spirit (the Intimate). This human triad emanated

from that terribly Divine Ray (Christ) who strikes His bell in the infinite space when we come into the world.

Each person has his own particular ray that resplendently shines with the power of its glory in the world of the ineffable Gods. This ray of dawn is the Being of our Being, the inner Christ of each human being. This is the Sephirotic Crown of the Qabbalists, the Crown of Life. "Be thou faithful unto death, and I will give thee a crown of life." (Revelation 2:10)

Whosoever knows, the word gives power to. No one has uttered it, no one will utter it, except the one who has incarnated it (the Word, the Christ).

The guests participate at the banquet feast of the Pascal Lamb. Those who have incarnated him shine with glory at the table of the angels. The countenance of the Beloved One is like lightning.

Christ is the Army of the Voice. Christ is the Verb. The personality does not exist within the world of the eternal Beloved One, neither the individuality, nor the "I". We all are one within the Lord of supreme adoration.

When the Beloved one becomes transformed into the soul, and when the soul becomes transformed into the Beloved One, that which we call The Son of Man is born from this Ineffable Divine and human mixture.

The Great Lord of Light, being the Son of the living God, becomes the Son of Man, when he transform himself into the human soul. The Sun-Man is the result of all our purifications and bitterness. The Sun-Man is divine and human.

The Son of Man is the final result of the man (human being). He is the child of our sufferings, the solemn mystery of the transubstantiation.

Christ is the Solar Logos (Multiple Perfect Unity). Christ is the Eternal Great Breath, profound, immeasurable which emanates from the ineffable bosom of the Absolute.

Christ is our Eternal Incessant Breath, profoundly unknown to himself. He is our divine Augoides.

Christ is the purest, ineffable and terribly divine Ray that shone as lightning on the face of Moses, there.. .within the solemn mystery of Mount Nebo.

Christ is not the Monad. Christ is not the Theosophical septenary.

Christ is not the Jivan-Atman. Christ is the ray that unites us to the Absolute. Christ is the Central Sun.

Christ is Kwan Yin (the ineffable voice) in the east, who is the same Avalokitshvara, as well as Vishnu.

Christ is Osiris among the Egyptians, and whosoever incarnated him was an Osirified One. Christ is the Atmic Thread among the Hindustani.

The Son of Man shines with all the strength of his glory in the solemn banquet of the pascal Lamb.

2. The First Begotten Of The Dead

Jesus Christ is the faithful witness, and the first begotten of the dead, and the prince of the kings of the earth, because He overcame death. "He loved us, and washed us from our sins in his own blood", the very sacred blood of the Adorable Martyr. (Revelation '1:5)

Jesus, the Blessed One has the Elixir of Longevity. This gift of Cupid is a grace of the most high God. The Holy Masters of the Guardian Wall have this marvellous elixir. When a Master of compassion renounces the ineffable joy of Nirvana in order to live amongst and love this poor suffering humanity, then he has the right to ask for the gift of Cupid.

This Elixir of Longevity is a gas that remains attached to the vital depth of the human organism. Then, the Initiate exclaims with a great voice. "Flee, oh Death, before my steps even to the end of the world and evermore! You shall be my slave and I shall be your Lord!"

The glory of the Great Mysteries is sublime, and the sublime images of all the Osirified Ones are passing through our internal and delicate garden, within a diffused light of gold and violet.

The funeral ordeals of the thirteenth Arcanum were developing as a profound opera within the great archaic mysteries.

The austere Hierophants of the Great Mysteries were rising from within the old sepulchres of ancient times.

The old operas of the thirteenth Arcanum were resounding with their ineffable melodies in the terrifying night of the centuries within the subterranean caverns of the earth.

To preserve the body's youth for millions of years without ever dying was always the greatest longing for the great Masters of Alchemy.

Nonetheless, we state the following: It is better to be an eternal Elder. A venerable Elder with the gift of Cupid is always free from the danger of falling.

Those who receive the Elixir of Longevity die, but they do not die.

The Lord of all compassion received this marvellous Elixir of Longevity and his body was embalmed for death.

The Master of Supreme Compassion (Jesus) arrived at the holy sepulchre on the third day, and He uttered with a great voice while invoking his body. The Angels of Death and the Holy Women were close to him. Then EHECATL, the Lord of Cosmic Movement, pronounced with a paradisiacal voice while entering into the Holy Sepulchre: "Jesus, rise with your body from within your tomb." EHECATL, the Angel of Cosmic Movement, inducted activity and movement into the body of Jesus.

This body penetrated within the supra-sensible worlds when He arose. The physical body of Jesus was submerged within the internal worlds. The Holy Women were awaiting for him in their Astral Bodies, carrying aromatic spices.

These women administered their spices to the body of Jesus. Then the body, obeying superior commands, penetrated into the Astral Body of the Master through the superior part of the sidereal head.

Thus, this is how the Adorable One was resuscitated from the dead. Then , the body abandoned the Holy Sepulchre and was submerged within the internal worlds.

After the Resurrection, Jesus appeared before the disciples of EMMAUS and took dinner with them. (Luke 24: 30, 31)

Jesus also appeared before his eleven Apostles who were reunited, and showed them the tremendous reality of his resurrection. (John 20: 19, 20)

The sacred Scriptures give testimony of the various apparitions of the divine Master after his Resurrection.

Thus, this is how the body of the Master remained submerged within the supra-sensible worlds. The body of the divine Rabbi of Galilee penetrated into the state of "JINN". Jesus died, but He did not die.

Actually, the Master lives in Shamballa in oriental Tibet. There he lives with the same body that he resurrected with. Other holy Masters who achieved this ineffable resurrection dwell with him in Shamballa.

The great Master Zanoni achieved the resurrection, and he remained youthful for millions of years. Afterwards he disgracefully lost his head in the guillotine during the French Revolution. He fell because of the crime of taking a woman. He fell in love with a young woman who was a choral artist in Naples. That was his mistake.

A great Tartarean Master, whose body has actually existed for millions of years, textually told us the following: "A true Master is one who has swallowed soil. Really, one is nothing but a fool before swallowing soil."

The divine Rabbi of Galilee is the First Begotten of the dead because in addition to having resurrected from the dead, He is the Chief of souls.

Actually, the Count of Saint Germain possesses the same body with which he was known during the XVII and XVIII centuries in the royal courts of Europe.

After the resurrection, the physical body remains in the state of "JINN (meaning submerged within the supra-sensible worlds).

Nevertheless, this body can enter into the physical world at any time, when the Master wishes to do so.

The Masters of Compassion live in these exalted conditions only for guiding the current of life throughout the innumerable centuries.

Condemned by themselves to live for millions of years in order to guide the current of the centuries, these Ineffable Saints are the silent guardians of the Guardian Wall. This Protective Wall has been built with the blood of those Saints of the Blessed One. This Wall has protected humanity since the dawn of creation.

The Secret Path is full of infinite torments. This Secret Path takes us directly to the ABSOLUTE, where the Uncreated Light shines.

Actually, Jesus Christ, the first begotten of the dead lives in Shamballa. This secret country is found in the state of "JINN". There is where the blessed Adorable One has his sacred Temple.

The oriental firmament shines with the whole love of the Master and the shy little flowers of the path that the Holy of Holiest treads upon without damaging are deliciously shook with the perfumed breeze.

The flaming fire, the pure waters of life, the soft perfumed earth and the tempestuous air of Tibetan Shamballa are inebriated with the glory of the Adorable One which is, which was, and which is to come.

The MAHA AVATAR BABAJI, who has preserved his physical body for many millions of years, promised to publicly teach the science which permits us to immortalize the body of flesh and bones.

Lo and Behold, we delivered that science here, in this book.

The promise of the immortal BABAJI has been fulfilled.

3. The Seven Churches

Revelation 1: 12 to 18: "And I turned to see the voice that spake with me (one Verb from the Army of the Voice who was talking to the Apostle). And being turned, I saw seven golden candlesticks. "These are the seven chakras of the spinal medulla or the seven churches.

"And in the midst of the seven candlesticks one like unto the Son of man (the Verb from the Army of the Voice, who was teaching the Apostle) clothed with a garment down to the foot, and girt about the paps with a golden girdle."

"His head and his hairs were white like wool, as white as snow; and his eyes were as a flame of fire;"

"And his feet like unto fine brass, as if they burned in a furnace; and his voice as the sound of many waters." The Word, the Verb, always sounds.

"And he had in his right hand seven stars (these are the seven Spirits before the Throne, which are in the Macrocosms, and also these are the seven Atomic Angels, who govern the seven chakras or seven churches located in the spinal medulla, which are in the Microcosms): and out of his mouth went a sharp two-edged sword (the Flaming Sword): And his countenance was as the sun shineth in his strength."

"And when I saw him, I fell at his feet as dead. And he laid his right hand upon me, saying unto me, Fear nor; I am the first and the last." Our resplendent Dragon of Wisdom is the first and the last.

The Beloved One lives, and was dead; and behold, He is alive for evermore. He has the keys of hell and of death.

We divorced ourselves from the VERB that lives within the unknown profundities of our Being when we departed from Eden. The Beloved One died for us, but, behold he lives eternally.

The Beloved One is Hiram who was killed by three traitors. He is Jesus condemned to death by Judas, Caiaphas and Pilate. These three traitors constitute what we call the "I", the "EGO", and the "MYSELF" (SATAN).

Sebal, the first traitor of Hiram is Satan in the Astral Body of the human being, Ortelut, the second traitor of Hiram, is Satan in the Mind, and Stokin, the third traitor of Hiram, is Satan in the Will-Soul. Behold the "I" in its three fundamental levels of consciousness.

This "I" is the prince of this world, the three headed Black Dragon that we must decapitate and dissolve. The three heads are the three rebels that we carry within, the Demon of Desire, the Demon of the Mind, and the Demon of Evil Will. These are the three assassins of the VERB (Christ). "But behold, he is alive and he will live for ever more Amen." Christ has the keys of our Atomic Infernos.

"He has the keys of hell and of death." (Verse 18).

We need to resurrect the Son of Man within ourselves.

The seven churches exist within the Microcosms and within the Macrocosms.

The Apocalypse is the book of the human being and of the Universe. The seven churches of our spinal medulla happily shine with the sacred fire of the Holy Spirit. The seven churches

of our spinal medulla are the doors that give us entrance into the seven glorious cathedrals of the superior worlds.

We are filled with a lot of terror and mystical trembling when we see among thunder, lightning, earthquakes, tempests and great hail, the majestic Cathedral of Sardis.

The chakra of the larynx is the door that allows us to enter into the great Cathedral of Sardis.

The sublime and terribly divine Church of Laodicea is entirely of pure gold. Its cupola and walls are carved with the purest gold of the Spirit.

The lotus of one thousand petals, the resplendent Crown of the Saints, gives access into the glorious Cathedral of Laodicea. This temple really exists in the superior worlds.

We study the rituals of life and death within the seven churches of the superior worlds, until the Officiant (The VERB) arrives.

The seven churches of the spinal medulla are united to the seven chakras or plexus of the grand sympathetic nervous system by means of very fine nerves.

The seven churches are similar to lotus flowers which are suspended from the famous NADI CHITRA. The canal of Shushumna exists within the medullar canal. The canal of NADI CHITRA is within this canal of Shushumna. The seven beautiful and divine churches are suspended from this precious medullar canal.

The spinal medulla is the candelabra. The two olive trees of the temple are situated upon the right and left side. These are the two olive branches through which the two golden pipes empty the golden oil out of themselves. That golden oil is the "ENS SEMINIS."

"These are two anointed ones that stand by the Lord of the whole earth" (Zacharias 4: 12-14). These are the two witnesses IDA and PINGALA. These are the two sympathetic nerves that are entwined like two serpents around the spinal medulla and through which the oil of pure gold rises to the chalice (the brain).

When the serpent of metal awakes, it then enters through the "Centralis Canalis" of the spinal medulla and rises very slowly and with difficulty through the medullar canal, which is known in India as the Brahmanadi.

The seven churches shine with the blazing fire of the Holy Spirit. While this sacred fire rises, the seven churches become opened and they turn upwards. The chakras or sympathetic plexus awake in accordance with the opening of the seven churches.

The candlestick has seven lamps which are the seven churches, and seven canals for the lamps which are upon it. These seven canals correspond to the seven degrees of the power of the fire.

All of these chakras, discs, or magnetic wheels are the senses of the Astral Body.

Our soul is enveloped in the Astral Body. The anatomy, physiology and pathology of the Astral Body is ultra-sensible.

The senses of the Astral Body and the endocrinal glands are found to be intimately related. Wherever a nervous plex exists, a chakra of the Astral Body exists.

The Mind, the Willpower, the Consciousness, and the Spirit, etc., are within the Astral Body.

The Astral Body becomes filled with glory and beauty with the awakening of the seven churches. Thus, this is how we transfigure and glorify ourselves completely.

4. The Serpent Of Metal

Enmity has existed between the woman and the serpent since the departure from Eden. The serpent beguiled Eve and from that moment the conflict began.

JEHOVAH said unto the Serpent: "Because thou hast done this, thou art cursed above all cattle, and above every beast of the field; upon thy belly shall thou go, and dust shall thou eat all the days of thy life. And I will put enmity between thy seed and her seed; it shall bruise thy head and thou shall bruise his heel." (Genesis 3: 14,15)

The world filled with tears when the serpent was cursed. The woman bruised the serpent's head and the serpent took revenge by bruising her heel. Thus, we cry when we are born and we cry when we die.

Moses rose the serpent of metal upon the staff, in the wilderness. This serpent became the same staff.

The struggle is terrible: "brain against sex, sex against brain, and heart against heart." We must tame and raise the serpent of metal upon the staff as Moses did in the wilderness.

We must descend into the Ninth Sphere (the sex) in order to work with the fire and the water, which are the origin of worlds, beasts, human beings, and Gods. Every authentic white Initiation begins here. The key of all power is found in the union of the phallus and the uterus.

Raise well your cup and be careful not to spill even a single drop of the sacred wine.

Kill desire. Kill even the very shadow of desire.

There is the need to celebrate the Marriage of CANA and to transmute the water into wine.

When chaste, the human being can raise the igneous serpent of magical powers through the central canal of the spinal medulla. This Pentecostal fire has the power to open the seven churches. The advent of the sacred fire of Pentecost takes place when the solar atoms make contact with the lunar atoms in the coccygeal bone, near the Triveni. Then, the igneous serpent rises from the bottom of the sacred ark. This ark of the Covenant is the sexual organs.

The ark shone like terribly divine lightning when in the Sanctum Sanctorum of the Temple of Solomon. Two Cherubims whose wings were touching each other, were placed at the sides of the ark, one to the right and the other to the left. These very sacred Cherubims were in the attitude of the man and the woman during the act of copulation.

Within the ark were found the staff of Aaron (symbol of the phallus), the cup or Omer which contained the manna of the desert (symbol of the uterus), and the tablets of the Law, without which the developing of the terrific serpent of metal is impossible.

The name of this divine serpent is Kundalini. Devi Kundalini only awakes with the ineffable enchantments of love. What is important is not to waste the sacred wine. Only willpower can save us while in the chamber of wine.

The Kundalini rises very slowly through the medullar canal. The seven churches are in the medullar canal. The Kundalini opens the seven churches.

The precious immaculate and divine light that is irradiated by Angels, has its origin in the candlestick of their spinal medulla.

The spinal medulla is the sacred candlestick of the Temple.

The candlestick of pure massive gold of the Temple of Solomon had seven branches. This candlestick is the spinal medulla with its seven churches.

The two olive trees of the Temple, "the Two Anointed Ones", are situated on either side of the candlestick.

The water and the fire of the Ninth Sphere rise through these two sympathetic canals (IDA and PINGALA) towards the chalice (the brain) when we work with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The saintly martyr Miguel de Molinos said: "The subtlest arrow that nature throws us, induces us to perform illicit acts (fornication) with the pretext that they are beneficial and necessary. Oh, how many souls have been coerced and have lost the Spirit because of this golden snare. They will never taste from the silent Manna. *QUOD NEMO NOCET NIST QUIACCIPIT*.

"If you do not defeat (the animal ego) with perfection by dying within yourself, then you are the one who does not attempt to die in his passions and is not well disposed for receiving the power of understanding. Without this infusion it is impossible for the introversion to occur and for the Spirit to be altered. Thus, this is how those who are outside live without HIM.

"Resign and deny yourself everything. However, the real denying is difficult in the beginning, easier in the middle, and very placid in the end. You will know that you are very far from perfection if you do not find God within everything. You will know that pure, perfect and essential love consists of the Cross, in voluntary denying and resignation, in perfect humbleness, poverty of the Spirit and abhorrence of yourself.

"It is important to enter and remain in the innermost part of your centre, while in times of strong temptation, despair and desolation, in order to see and contemplate only God who has his throne and quietude in the depth of your soul.. You will discover that impatience and bitterness of the heart are born from the bottom of the sensitive, empty and less mortified love. When the soul is profoundly humble and is truly mortifying and despising herself, then, she knows true love and its effects."

If you wish to ignite your candlestick of seven branches, remember this is achieved through the Path of the Razor's Edge.

This Path is filled with dangers inside and outside.

5. The Internal Meditation

The seven degrees of ecstasy through which the Mystic reaches the perfect state of the Soul, are described in the school of Sufism.

The school of Sufism teaches about ecstasy. The state and secret of our level is revealed in Sufism, because this is the interior state of life in God.

We must perform the will of God on earth as it is in heaven while on the Path of the Interior Peace. This conformity with the mild yoke takes us through the narrow stretch and difficult Path that leads us towards the Light.

Everyone who works in the Magistery of Fire must learn how to meditate on the seven churches.

The mystic must profoundly focus his concentration on the Immolated Lamb. The mystic must pray, beseeching the Adorable One to awaken the chakra, disc, wheel, or faculty longed for.

Afterwards, when the supplication is done, the mystic must then search for refuge in the nothingness. His mind must remain silent and serene.

Illumination and ecstasy come when the mind is silent, when the mind is quiet. Drowsiness in combination with meditation produces ecstasy.

God searches the Nothingness in order to fill it.

Ecstasy has seven degrees of power: The first is the fire that instructs and teaches us.

The second is the Gnostic Unction, which is a soft solar liquor, that when diffused throughout the soul, teaches, corroborates and prepares us in order to incarnate the Truth.

The third is the mystic exaltation of the humble and sincere disciple.

The fourth is the Illumination.

The fifth is the internal joy of divine sweetness that emanates from the precious fountain of the Holy Spirit. This joy is for those who have "continuous consciousness."

The sixth is the decapitation of the "I".

The seventh is the Venustic Initiation; the incarnation of the Son of Man within ourselves.

Other degrees of contemplation and ecstasy exist, such as: rapture, liquefaction, bliss, jubilation, osculation, embracement, transformation, etc.

When our mind becomes submerged within the Nothingness, then the Lamb enters the soul in order to sup with Her. Therefore, the Nothingness is the medium utilized by the Beloved One in order to work within our soul, awakening centres and performing marvels. The Divine Spouse comes in order to betroth his soul through this Nothingness, within the nuptial bridal bed of Paradise.

Thus, this is the path for returning into the innocence of Paradise. The soul will successfully experience the spiritual martyrdoms and the interior torments while submerged within the Nothingness. God searches the Nothingness in order to fill it.

Internal meditation produces changes in our internal bodies. Through it, the awakening of the consciousness arrives.

All human beings live within the supra-sensible worlds with the consciousness asleep. Meditation provokes the solemn awakening of the consciousness.

This awakening is like lightning in the night. This awakening of the consciousness occurs during the normal sleep of our physical body. We move ourselves in our internal vehicles when this body sleeps.

The soul travels throughout the superior worlds when the body sleeps. We stop dreaming when the consciousness awakes. Then we live in the internal worlds in a state of intensified awareness. This is what is called "continuous consciousness".

Whosoever has awakened the consciousness lives awake in the Superior Worlds.

We feel the mystic beatitude of the ineffable Light while in the supra-sensible worlds.

Then, the past, the present, and the future harmonize within an eternal now.

There is no better pleasure than feeling one's soul detached. Then we taste the divine nectar of Eternity and we enter through the doors of the Temples, filled with joy and amidst the ineffable melodies of the great mysteries.

6. The Church Of Ephesus

The church of Ephesus is found situated exactly between the sexual organs and the anus. This is the church of the coccyx. The sacred serpent sleeps quietly within this church, awaiting the supreme moment of awakening.

The marvellous serpent awakens within the miraculous enchantments of love. Mozart's Magic Flute awakens memories of the profound mysteries of the sacred serpent.

The church of Ephesus is a mystical lotus flower. This flower has four petals and anyone who profoundly meditates on the church of Ephesus penetrates into the subterranean regions of the earth. Then, the gnomes or pygmies teach us their mysteries. The Tattwa Prittwi shines with glory within the church of Ephesus.

The mysteries of LINGAM YONI are found hidden within the church of Ephesus.

Revelation 2: 1 to 6: "Unto the angel of the church of Ephesus write (The Verb, Christ, communicates unto the atomic angel of the church of Ephesus); These things (the virtues which are needed in order to open the church of Ephesus) saith he that holdeth the seven stars in his right hand (The Son of Man), who walketh in the midst of the seven golden candlesticks (The candelabra of seven branches);

"I know thy works, and thy labour, and thy patience (patience is the virtue needed in order to open this church), and how thou canst not bear them which are evil: and thou hast tried them which say they are apostles, and are not, and hast found them liars: (because they are FORNICATORS).

"And hast borne, and hast patience (this Church is opened with suffering and patience), and for my name's sake hast laboured, and hast not fainted.

"Nevertheless I have somewhat against thee, because thou hast left thy first love." The first love is the Eternal Beloved One, the Internal God, the Ineffable One. The soul suffers terribly when she abandons the Be loved One.

"Remember therefore from whence thou art fallen, and repent, and do the first works; (you have to create without fornication) or else I will come unto thee quickly, and will remove thy candlestick out of its place, except thou repent." The human being acts with sacrilege when the sacred wine of the temple is spilled. Then the Serpent of Fire descends one or more vertebrae in accordance with the magnitude of the fault. Thus, this is how the candlestick is taken out of its place and pain and remorse will hurt the heart.

"But this thou hast, that thou hatest the deeds of the Nicolaitans, which I also hate."

When the priest spills the sacred wine of the altar, the blessed Mother Goddess of the world conceals her face with her veil and cries bitterly. The Beloved One then crucifies himself upon his cross and the whole of nature trembles with terror.

The sacred wine is the semen of Benjamin. This semen is a mixture of wine and water which is contained within the chalice of Benjamin, the beloved son of Jacob.

When the priest spills the wine of the temple the enchanted serpent descends towards the atomic infernos of the human being and converts itself into the tall of Satan.

In ancient times there were giants upon the earth who committed this sacrilege.

The cities of Carthage, Tyre and Sidon were also affected by this crime.

Furthermore, the Canaanites performed this sacrilege.

The mysteries of VULCAN were betrayed and the human being submerged himself into the abyss. These are, "....the deeds of the Nicolaitans, which I also hate."

7. The Church Of Smyrna

The church of Smyrna is the chakra of the prostate (the uterus in women). Apas is the Tattwa of this chakra. "All of you will be Gods if you depart from Egypt and travel through the Red Sea."

The divine male sings, the ineffable female sings... Both sing together, male and female. Both of them sing the sublime opera of the centuries. This opera of light begins in Eden and ends in Eden.

The voice of this sublime male is heroic, it is terrific like the lightning which strikes, it is like the omnipotent thunder.

The voice of her is so sweet and melodious like the Magic Flute of Mozart or like the miraculous voice of a mermaid of the great ocean.

This touching duet and this lovely connubial of the Verb fecundates the waters of life. When the serpent of fire breathes upon the waters of Eden, then the church of Smyrna opens within the august thunder of thought.

Let us kneel in order to contemplate the miraculous lotus of six petals, this lotus of the Nile, which is the prostatic (uterine) chakra upon which the mermaids of the ocean stand.

Let us pray and meditate on this chakra of the prostate (uterus). We convert ourselves into Kings and Queens of the waters when the Beloved One awakens this chakra.

This chakra grants us conscious consciousness over the nature of all beings who dwell in the internal worlds.

Whosoever drinks from the waters of pure life shall never thirst again.

The very pure waters of Eden are the divine mirror of love.

The Swan of inviolable whiteness stands upon the lotus flower. This Swan of Love awakes among the moving murmurs of nature.

Revelation 2: 8 to 11: "And unto the (atomic) angel of the church in Smyrna write; These things saith the first and the last, which was dead and is alive; (is alive within anyone who receives the Venustic Initiation).

"I know thy works, and tribulation, and poverty, (tribulation and poverty are the fundamental conditions in order to open the church of Smyrna) but thou are rich (spiritually), and I know the blasphemy of them which say they are Jews, and are not, but are the synagogue of Satan.

"Fear not of those things which thou shalt suffer: behold the devil shall cast some of you into prison (of pain), that ye may be tried, and ye shall have tribulation ten days: (meaning, you shall have tribulation as long as you are submitted to the wheel of reincarnation and karma) be thou faithful unto death, and I will give thee a crown of life."

Whosoever receives the crown of life is free of the wheel of reincarnation and karma.

The crown of life is threefold. It has three aspects: The Elder of Days; the Adorable Son; and thirdly, the very wise Holy Spirit.

The crown of life is the MAN-SUN, the KING-SUN, who was greatly worshipped by the Emperor Juliano.

The crown of life is our Incessant Eternal Breath profoundly unknown to himself, It is the particular ray of each human being, It is the CHRIST.

The crown of life is: KETHER, CHOCKMAH and BINAH.

Whosoever is faithful unto death receives the crown of life.

The ineffable countenance of all Saints who have incarnated HIM shines like SUNS of love while at the banquet of the LAMB. The immaculate white tablecloth is dyed with the royal blood of the Immolated Lamb.

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the churches;

"He that overcometh shall not be hurt of the second death."

Whosoever does not overcome, will be divorced from the Beloved One and will be submerged into the abyss.

Those who enter the abyss will experience the Second Death.

The demons of the abyss disintegrate very slowly over a period of many eternities, these souls are lost.

Whosoever overcomes shall not be hurt by the Second Death.

"Be thou faithful unto death, and I will give thee a crown of life." (Revelation 2: 10)

Whosoever knows, the word gives power to. No one has uttered it, no one will utter it, except the one who has incarnated it (the Word, the Christ).

The Verb becomes flesh within each one of us, when we receive the crown of life.

Every Saint who reaches the Venustic Initiation, receives the crown of life.

Our very beloved saviour Jesus Christ reached the Venustic Initiation in the river Jordan.

"And the Word (the Verb) was made flesh, and dwelt among us, and beheld his glory, the glory as of the only begotten of the Father full of grace and truth." (John 1: 14)

"Light is come into the world, and men loved darkness rather than light, because their deeds were evil." (John 3: 19)

Jesus is the Saviour because He brought us the crown of life and He gave his blood for us.

We must reach the supreme annihilation of the "I" in order to receive the crown of life. We must resurrect the Lamb within ourselves. We need the Easter Resurrection.

8. The Church Of Pergamos

The blessed womb of the Mother Goddess of the world is Eden.

We departed from Eden through the door of Sex, and only through this door can we enter again into Eden.

Two millennial trees exist within the orchard of Eden: the Tree of the Science of Good and Evil and the Tree of Life.

Genesis 3: 6 and 7: "And when the woman saw that the tree was good for food, and it was pleasant to the eyes, and a tree to be desired to make one wise, she took of the fruit thereof and did eat and gave also unto her husband with her; and he did eat."

"And the eyes of them were opened, and they knew that they were naked; and they sewed fig leaves together, and made themselves aprons."

Eighteen million of years have passed and we are still naked. If we wish to return into Eden we must dress ourselves as Kings and Priests of nature in accordance with the order of MELCHIZEDEK, who is the King of Fire.

The church of Pergamos is the church of fire. This chakra is a precious lotus flower with ten beautiful petals saturated with happiness.

This chakra is situated in the region of the navel and controls the liver, the stomach, etc.

The colour of this chakra is similar to that of the clouds which are charged with rays, lightnings and living fire.

A triangular space exists within this chakra. The region of fire is situated in this ineffable space. The region of the Agni-Tattwa.

We can walk upon fire without being burned when we meditate on this chakra.

Whosoever develops this chakra will not fear fire but will be capable of remaining in fire for many hours without receiving any harm (see Daniel 3: 23 to 27).

When we meditate on this chakra we penetrate into Eden. There, we find human beings still naked. Only we, the brothers and sisters of the Temple, are dressed with the vesture of fire.

We convert ourselves into Kings and Queens of Fire when we develop this chakra.

The Church of Pergamos is opened when the sacred serpent rises and reaches the region of the navel.

The power to govern over fire is granted unto us when we internally meditate on this precious lotus of the belly.

Revive the living flame of the Spirit with the divine nectar of love.

The fire burns the scoria of evil. You must cast the demons of desire out from the sanctuary of your soul.

Your soul must be as pure as the drop of dew which, while vibrating with love, submerges itself deliciously within the fragrant petals of the rose.

You must protect your soul from the attacks of the "I"; kill not only desire but moreover, the very shadows of the Tree of Desire.

Remember that the christonic semen is the raw matter of the Great Work. Cleanse your soul from any desire. Be chaste.

If you are certain that you have annihilated every desire, then analyze yourself deeply and search again n the profound depths of your soul. It might be possible that the "I" is betraying you in other levels of consciousness.

You must subdue your senses and control your mind, kill every desire of life. Do not desire anything.

Revelation 2: 12 to 17: "And to the (atomic) angel of the church in Pergamos write; These things saith he which hath the sharp sword with two edges, the Son of Man;

"I know thy works, and where thou dwellest, even where Satan 's seat is (The chair of Satan is situated in the region of the navel. However, the atomic angel of the Church of Pergamos is faithful): and thou holdest fast my name, and hast not denied my faith, even in those days wherein Antipas was my faithful martyr, who was slain among you, where Satan dwelleth."

Antipas was a man who really existed. This man was a holy martyr who died by assassination while preaching the word of the Lord. The place where Antipas was assassinated was really a Synagogue of Satan. This was an historical event.

A tenebrous nuclear atom exists in the chakra of the navel. The "I" is found intimately related with this atom. This is the seat of Satan.

"But I have a few things against thee, because thou hast there them that hold the doctrine of Balaam, who taught Balac to cast a stumbling block before the children of Israel, to eat things sacrificed unto idols, and to commit fornication."

All of these vulgar passions are satanical. The seat of Satan is situated in the region of the navel. Situated in the area of the stomach are gluttony, drunkenness, etc...

"So hast thou also them that hold the doctrine of the Nicolaitans, which thing I hate."

Only absolute saintliness and chastity can convert us into angels.

The Nicolaitans spill the sacred wine of the temple. They waste the oil of the lamp and remain within the darkness.

The Nicolaitans spill the raw matter of the Great Work in their practises of sexual alchemy. This is black Tantrism.

"Repent; or else I will come unto thee quickly, and will fight against them with the sword of my mouth."

This fight is occurring in this present day and age. We must know that since the year 1950, one VERB is fighting against them with the Flaming Sword.

The Nicolaitans are submerging themselves into the abyss. The Nicolaitans converted themselves into terribly perverse demons.

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the churches;

"To him that overcometh will I give to eat of the hidden manna (the manna of the Christic Wisdom), and will give him a white stone (the Philosophical Stone, sex), and in the stone a new name written which no man knoweth saving he that receiveth it."

This new name is the name of our internal God, this is the name of the Son of Man.

The virtues which are necessary in order to open the church of Pergamos are the following: chastity, loyalty, faith and obedience to the FATHER.

The Initiate cannot be a glutton, drunkard or fornicator.

The Nicolaitans develop tenebrous magical powers through fornication.

The Initiate must be temperate, faithful, chaste, humble and obedient.

9. The Church Of Thyatira

The church of Thyatira is opened when the serpentine fire reaches the height of the heart.

Internal meditation and internal prayer develops and unfolds the chakra of the tranquil heart.

Seven sacred centres exist in the heart and correspond to the seven degrees of the power of the fire.

The heart is the sanctuary of love. Take heed of sensual love. Do not mix sacred ecstasy with selfish love.

Love is as pure as the morning star. Love is universal. Love is impersonal, ineffable and impartial.

You must be charitable. We sin against Christian charity when we criticize the religion of others. Cultivate respect and veneration.

Respect your neighbour's beliefs. Respect the religion of your neighbour. Do not force anyone to think your way. Do not criticize. Remember that each head is a world. Do not sin anymore against the charity of Christ.

Humanity is divided and subdivided into groups. Each group requires a special system of teaching. Each group needs its school, its religion, its sect. These are the commandments of the Blessed One.

We violate the law of the tranquil heart when we criticize others.

If your are willing to give the last drop of blood for the love of this suffering humanity, then you are one of us.

Whosoever wants to reach the altar of the Initiation must transform the self into the Immolated Lamb upon the altar of supreme sacrifice.

It is necessary to love those who hate us, to kiss the adorable hand of the one who whips us, to clean the sandals of the one who humiliates us.

If a poor beggar invites you to eat at his table, eat with him, because that poor beggar is our brother.

If a leper cuts a piece of bread and offers it to you, take it and eat it because that poor leper is your brother, do not despise him.

Always be the last, do not aspire to be the first. Sit yourself on the last seats; never occupy the first place. Remember that you are nothing else but a poor sinner. Do not be proud of perfection because only your Father who is in secret is perfect.

Your internal God is filled with glory, but you are only a poor slug that slithers in the mud. You are not perfect.

Do not hold resentments against your neighbour. Remember that your neighbour is not perfect either. Act not with resentment or revenge. Love, forgive, and kiss the hand of the executioner who whips you.

It is necessary for your "I" to be annihilated in order for the Great Lord of the Light to enter into your soul.

Dress with light my brother, sister. Hear the ten mystical sounds of the tranquil heart. The first sound is like the voice of the Son of Man that fecundates the waters of genesis in order for life to sprout.

The second is the sound CHIN-BHINI.

The third is the supreme sound of the great cosmic bell that emanates from the internal ray of each human being.

The fourth is the internal thunder of the heart whose solemn vibration is repeated within the body of each human being.

The fifth is like the delectable sound of the *LAUD*.

The sixth is the cymbals of the ineffable Gods that resound within the chalice of each blessed flower.

The seventh sound is that of the Magic Flute whose virginal melodies carry us to the supreme joy of the gardens of Nirvana.

The eighth sound is that of the BOMBO.

The ninth sound is that of the exotic variation of a double drum.

The tenth is the sound of seven uttering thunders.

When we reach the ninth hour and are crucified upon the Cross of Golgotha, we exclaim with a great voice "FATHER, INTO THY HANDS I COMMEND MY SPIRIT" (Luke 23:46)

This supreme instant of the ninth hour occurs with terrible lightning, words, voices and thunder. The seven thunders utter the voices of the Eternal One.

Only those who have experienced the supreme death of the "I", the EGO, the MYSELF, know how to pronounce the seventh word. The fight against SATAN is terrible for them.

The women seal the sepulchres of the Initiates with a great stone, the blessed Philosophical Stone.

The supreme spear of pain passes through the hearts of the great Initiates and from their wound flows blood and water.

The raw matter of the Great Work is the Sacred Wine.

You will hear the ten mystical sounds when you meditate internally in the lotus of the heart.

We control the Tattwa Vayu when we meditate on the lotus of the heart, and the power of winds and hurricanes is given to us.

The lotus of the heart has fifteen petals which shine with the fire of the Holy Spirit.

An octagonal space with an ineffable jet black colour exists within the chakra of the heart. In this space, the ten mystical sounds of the church of Thyatira resound as a symphony of Beethoven.

The great rhythms of MAHABAN and CHOTABAN firmly sustain the universe in its march.

The rhythms of fire are the foundation of the exquisite harmonies of the cosmic Diapason. If you visit Nirvana during an ecstasy, then you must accomplish the sacred duty of singing in accordance with the rhythms of fire. Thus, this is how you will help us (the Nirvanee) with your Verb. The universe is sustained by the Verb.

If you want to travel consciously in the internal worlds you must develop the chakra of the heart.

If you want to reach the Christ, then you must kill desire. You must obtain the characteristics of a lemon.

If you want to learn how to place your body in the state of "JINN", then, you must develop the chakra of the heart.

We can develop the chakra of the tranquil heart with the system of internal meditation.

Revelation 2: 18 to 29: "And unto the (atomic) angel of the church in Thyatira write: These things saith the Son of God, who hath his eyes like unto aflame of fire, and his feet are like fine brass, "I know thy works, and charity, and service, and faith, and thy patience, and thy works; and the last to be more than the first (charity, service, faith, and patience are the virtues required in order to open the church of Thyatira).

"Notwithstanding I have a few things against thee, because thou sufferest that woman Jezebel which calleth herself a prophetess, to teach and to seduce my servants to commit fornication, and to eat things sacrificed unto idols."

Jezebel is that harlot woman dressed in purple and scarlet. She is the intellectual mind that teaches us to fornicate and to eat things sacrificed unto idols. Jezebel is politics, journalism, diplomacy, materialistic science, intellectualism of any type and etc.

In ancient times, Jezebel taught human beings to eat things offered unto idols in the temples of black magic. Jezebel signifies intellectualism, feasts, drunkenness, orgies, gluttony, fornication, adultery, materialistic science, etc. Jezebel is symbolized by the turkey and the pig.

"And I gave her space to repent of her fornication; and she repented not."

"Behold, I will cast her into a bed, and them that commit adultery with her into great tribulation, except they repent of their deeds."

Jezebel is the satanic mind that does not want to repent of its evil deeds.

The times of the end have arrived and Jezebel, along with all who commit adultery with her, will be cast into a bed of pain.

The dwellers of the earth have committed adultery with Jezebel as well as the potentates of gold and silver, the vultures of war and the intellectuals who abhor the Eternal One.

"And I will kill her children with death (the children of Jezebel are the dwellers of the earth: the intellectuals, the merchants of fine linen, gold and silver, silk and scarlet, precious wood, brass, iron, and marble); and all the churches shall know that I am he which searcheth the kidneys and hearts: and I will give unto every one of you according to your works."

When the renal (kidney) chakras shine with immaculate whiteness like the lotus flower, it is because we have reached supreme chastity.

When the renal chakras are dyed with a bloody passionate colour, woe to us! for we are fornicators and the VERB casts us into the abyss with his sword. Woe to the inhabitants of the earth!

The VERB searcheth the kidneys (reins) and the hearts; and HE gives unto each one of us in accordance with our works.

Whosoever wants to open the church of Thyatira must have the mind of a child.

Those who commit adultery with Jezebel who called herself a prophetess cannot know the wisdom of the tranquil heart.

Love and wisdom are the secret path of the heart. The wisdom of the seal of the heart is for children, in other words, for those who do not commit adultery with Jezebel who called herself a prophetess.

If you want to open the church of Thyatira you must attain the lost infancy.

Jezebel is Satan. Jezebel is the "I", the MYSELF, the EGO that we carry within.

"But unto you I say, and unto the rest in Thyatira, as many as have not this doctrine, and which have not known the depths of Satan, as they speak, I will put upon you none other burden."

"But that which ye have already holdfast till I come."

"And he that overcometh, and keepeth my works unto the end, to him will I give power over the nations:"

"And he shall rule them with a rod of iron: as the vessels of a potter shall they be broken to shivers: even as I receiveth of my Father."

"And I will give him the morning star."

"He that hat an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the churches."

When we decapitate and dissolve the "I", the MYSELF, then, we receive the Venustic Initiation. Whosoever receives the Venustic Initiation incarnates his Star.

It is urgent to know that the Star crucified upon the Cross, is the CHRIST of the ABRAXAS.

The Star is the Son of Man, the Truth. No one can search for the Truth. The Truth cannot be known by the "I." No one can search for the Truth because no one can search for that which they do not know.

Jezebel who called herself a prophetess, cannot know the Truth.

The Truth cannot be studied, read, or known by the mind. The Truth is completely different, distinct to all of that which is read, studied, or known by the mind.

The Truth comes to us when we have decapitated and dissolved the "I."

The distinct truths of people are nothing else but projections of the mind.

The times of the end have arrived and all of those who commit adultery with Jezebel who called herself a prophetess will be broken into slivers as the vessels of a potter.

When the devout enters into the chamber of the Pure Spirit, he feels a delectable terror.

This sacred chamber is illuminated by an immaculate and divine light which gives life, yet does not cast a shadow upon the way of anyone.

Whosoever reaches the heights of contemplation and illumination will see in this chamber of the Pure Spirit, the living picture of the event of Golgotha. No wise man on earth could have painted so much beauty. This picture has its own life. The stigmas of the Adorable One bleed and with his blood he dyes the land of Golgotha red. His beloved temples which are pierced with the cruel thorns of the crown of martyrdom are painfully bleeding and from his wounded side pierced by the Lance of LONGINUS, flows blood and water.

This picture has abundant life. The sun sets within its bed of purple. The craniums of the executed ones and the shadow of death are at the foot of the Calvary. Do not be afraid faithful devout, behold, the shadow of death is rising. Do not be afraid, rather, defeat it. Remember

that the Lord defeated death. "Flee, Oh Death, before my steps even to the end of the world and evermore! You shall be my slave and I shall be your Lord!"

Death has fled, but behold what is in the middle of the sanctuary. It is a gigantic spectrum dressed in the style of the princes of the Middle Ages. He is the Prince of this world, proud and perverse. He is your own "I". You must decapitate him with your Flaming Sword and then you must dissolve him with rigorous purifications. Thus, this is how you will reach the Venustic Initiation. Then you will incarnate the Truth. The VERB will be made flesh in you. You will incarnate the Son of Man and you will receive the Morning Star.

10. The Church Of Sardis

The Church of Sardis is opened when the victorious serpentine fire ascends to the height of the thyroid gland.

The chakra of the larynx has sixteen beautiful petals which magnificently shine with the glorious Pentecostal Fire.

This beautiful chakra resembles a mysterious full moon shining as an ineffable poem within the moving melodies of the infinite ether.

The hidden and terrific powers of this chakra will awaken through meditating in it.

We can preserve the physical body even during the Great Cosmic Night and avoid being disintegrated by the Great Pralaya when we develop this chakra of the larynx.

The development of this chakra of the larynx grants us conceptual synthetism.

The great Masters of Nirvana do not rationalize.

Conceptual synthetism and intuition replace reasoning.

Desire and reasoning belong to the "I". Really, Satan is the one who rationalizes.

We comprehend the esoterism of the Sacred Books with the development of this chakra of the larynx.

The Tattwa Akash is the Tattwa of the laryngeal chakra.

We become aware of the past, present and future, of all that exists in the universe, with the development of this chakra of the larynx.

Likewise, with the development of this chakra of the larynx, we awake the Sacred Ear, and then. we can hear the words of Paradise and the ineffable symphonies of the temples. The power of comprehension is granted to us when we develop this chakra. Comprehension and intuition will replace reasoning.

The comprehensive mind does not judge or translate. The "I" judges and translates everything which it sees into the language of its own prejudgments, memories, mistakes and evil deeds.

"Judge not, that ye be not judged. For with what judgment ye judge, ye shall be judged: And with the measure ye mete, it shall be measured to you again." (Matthew 7: 1 to 2)

You must live in the state of alert perception. See, hear and comprehend, do not judge so that you will not be judged. Comprehend everything.

Do not allow Satan to translate all that you see and hear. You must reconquer the innocence of Eden.

Those who meditate on the church of Sardis hear the ineffable words of Nirvana.

Have you ever attended the banquet of Nirvana? Behold, Such Divine Beings! These holy Masters are dressed with diamond tunics. These are the tunics of the DHARMASAYAS. Three glasses which contain three pure balsams are placed upon the table of the banquet. The first is the red balsam of fire; the second is the green balsam of the pure waters which give eternal life; the third is the immaculate pure balsam of the Spirit.

Drink from these three glasses and you will never thirst again.

Ah! when your words will be pure and beautiful like the voice of paradise.

Ah! when your phrases will be lovely, beautiful and harmonious. Then, your creative larynx will be as the divine and enchanted notes of a piano of Nirvana, like the melody of a temple, like the Verb of the Holy Masters who assist at the banquet of the Immolated Lamb.

30

You must never pronounce words in vain, never pronounce disgusting words.

The throat is the uterus where the word is created. The Gods create with the power of the Verb.

The Kundalini creates with the Verb. The Kundalini creates in the larynx. The sexual organ of the Gods is the creative larynx.

"In the beginning was the Verb, and the Verb was with God, and the Verb was God, the same was in the beginning with God. All things were made by him; and without him was not anything made that was made." (John 1: 1 to 3)

The army of the Voice is CHRIST.

In the dawn of life the Gods sang in their golden language, teaching us the Divine Laws.

When the heart of the Solar System began to palpitate after the Great Cosmic Night, then, the army of the Voice fecundated the Chaos in order for life to emerge.

The seven sublime Lords sang with the rhythms of the fire. The Gods and their Isis officiated in each one of the seven temples. Each one of the seven Gods (Spirits) and their Isis sang the rituals of fire. There was a Priest, an Isis (Priestess) and a choir of Angels in each one of the seven churches. There was a man, a woman, and a choir; a male, a female, and choir.

The waters of the Chaos were fecundated with this sexual intercourse of the creative word, in order for life to emerge. Thus, this is how the universe was born. The waters of Genesis were fecundated by the sexual fire of the Verb.

In the beginning the universe was subtle, pure and ineffable.

The dense, gross and material state of the universe was acquired after successive condensations.

Revelation 3: 1 to 6: "And unto the (atomic) angel of the church in Sardis write: These things saith he that hath the seven Spirits of God, and the seven stars; I know thy works, that thou hast a name (the name of your internal God) that thou livest, and art dead (because you did not incarnate him yet).

"Be watchful, and strengthen the things which remain, that are ready to die: (strengthen the death of your "I") for I have not found thy works perfect before God."

Remember that all of the deeds of your "I" are evil. Resolve to die. Take from the "I" its nourishment and the "I" will be disintegrated. The nourishment of the "I" is the defects.

Do not justify your defects and do not condemn them, but rather comprehend them. The defects are disintegrated when we consciously comprehend them.

The "I" dies when it is not being fed. First we must decapitate Satan, then we must dissolve it. You know this.

"Remember therefore how thou hast received and heard, and hold fast, and repent. if therefore thou shalt not watch, I will come on thee as a thief and thou shalt not know what hour I will come upon thee."

Remember that the times of the end have arrived and that we are in them. The great cataclysm of fire will occur sooner or later. You know this. The Lord will come as a thief in the night, in an unexpected hour.

"Thou hast a few names even in Sardis which have not defiled their garments; and they shall walk with me in white: for they are worthy.

"He that overcometh, the same shall be clotheth in white raiment; and I will not blot out his name out of the book of life. But I will confess his name before my Father, and before his angels."

Whosoever incarnates HIM is a conqueror.

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the churches."

Remember that the Sacred Wine is the ENS SEMINIS. You know this.

The whole power of the VERB is found enclosed within the ENS SEMINIS.

The STAURUS of the Gnostics is formed with the intersection of the vertical phallus with the horizontal cteis.

The cteis is the house of the phallus. Creation is the house of the VERB.

The secret key of the awakening of the fire is found in the cteis and the phallus well united.

It is important to avoid the orgasm in order to impede the raw matter of the Great Work from being spilled from its receptacle. Our motto is THELEMA (willpower).

All of the ENS VIRTUTIS of the sacred fire is contained within the ENS SEMINIS.

However, since there are some doctors who affirm that this scientific process (LOEDERE)can cause us damage in many ways. We affirm that this is not so, because the ENS SEMINIS is completely transmuted into light and fire.

Actually, within our creative organs a slow coition (DIGERERE) exists, which reduces the ENS SEMINIS into its primordial, energetic principles.

The solar and lunar atoms of the seminal system ascend towards the brain through the two sympathetic canals. These two canals are two fine chords which rise from the testicles or ovaries up to the brain.

In the East, these two canals are known as IDA and PINGALA. These are the two witnesses.

You must light the fire in order to incarnate the VERB. Without the fire, you cannot speak the Verb of gold of the first instant.

The igneous serpent of our magical powers awakens when the solar and lunar atoms make contact in the coccyx. Thus, this is how we convert ourselves into ardent flames.

The key of fire is in the intersection of the vertical phallus with the horizontal cteis. However, you must be careful not to spill the wine of the Altar.

All of the atoms of all the languages which we spoke in our past lives exist within the ENS SEMTINIS. When the atomic substances of the word rise to the creative larynx, then, we are able to speak all of those languages again. Therefore, only the Holy Spirit can give us this Power of Tongues.

There also exists transformative atoms of a high voltage within the ENS SEMINIS. These atoms transform us completely.

Within the ENS SEMINIS live the atoms of the cosmic grammar. The very pure rising of the divine language runs like a river of gold beneath the thick jungle of the sun.

We reach perfect beatitude when the VERB is made flesh in us.

Whosoever overcometh will be dressed with white vestures because this one is a Master of the Day, a Master of the MAHA-MANVANTARA. "His name will be written in the book of life and I will confess his name before my Father, and before his angels." (Verse 5)

It is necessary to be born again in order to enter into the kingdom of heaven.

The VERB is always born from immaculate conceptions. The VERB is always the child of very pure Virgins. The mother of the VERB is always a woman.

When JESUS was crucified upon his cross and was bleeding, filled with pain, He uttered to his mother the following: "Woman, behold thy son" (John 19: 26). He was addressing John who stood beside Mary. Then, after he said to his disciple: "Behold thy mother! and from that hour that disciple (John) took her unto his own home." (John 19: 27)

JOHN is a word which must be sounded into five divided vowels, in the following way:

I.E.O.U.AN. We form the MANTRAS with these five vowels. JOHN is the VERB, the GREAT WORD.

"Verily, verily I say unto thee, except a man be born of Water (semen) and of the Spirit (fire), he cannot enter into the kingdom of God." (John 3: 5)

All of these verses of the third chapter of the Gospel of Saint John enclose the Great Arcanum. The Arcanum A. Z. F. is the Great Arcanum.

"And as Moses lifted up the SERPENT in the wilderness, even so must the SON OF MAN be lifted up. (John 3: 14) Whosoever incarnates Him is lifting Him up, is resurrecting Him within himself.

"Verily, verily, I say unto thee, we speak that we do know, and testify that we have seen; and ye receive not our witness." (John 3: 11) Our divine Saviour gave testimony of what he saw and experienced.

JESUS is a son of the water and the fire. The mother of the VERB is always a woman.

"And no man hath ascended up to heaven, but he that came down from heaven, even the Son of Man which is in heaven." (John 3: 13)

We must dissolve the "I". The "I" did not come from heaven. Therefore, the "I" cannot ascend to heaven. Only the Son of Man can ascend to heaven because He descended from heaven.

Everything lives because of the VERB. Everything is sustained by the VERB.

The five vowels I.E.O.U.A. resound like a miraculous harp of the infinite cosmos, within the flaming fire, within the impetuous air, within the boisterous waves and within the perfumed earth.

The vowel "I" (sounded eee) causes the frontal chakra to vibrate.

The vowel "E" (sounded ehhh) causes the chakra of the larynx to vibrate.

The vowel "O" (sounded ooo) causes the chakra of the heart to vibrate.

The vowel "U" (sounded uuu) causes the chakra of the solar plex to vibrate.

The vowel "A" (sounded aaahhh) causes the chakra of the lungs to vibrate.

These chakras, discs, or magnetic wheels of the astral body develop and improve when the seven vowels are vocalized daily for one hour.

The Prana, life energy, must be inhaled through the nasal cavities and then, exhaled through the mouth while vocalizing.

Each vowel is powerful. Each vowel must be prolonged and sustained in order to awake the chakras.

The sound of these vowels were vibrating within our organism when we were dwelling in Eden. Now, we must awake these miraculous sounds of nature again in all of the chakras of the astral body.

We were paradisiacal human beings, there, in ARCADIA, in those ancient times of nature. Disgracefully, the lyre of Orpheus fell upon the floor of the temple and broke into pieces.

Now, we must pray, meditate, transmute and vocalize in order for the Phoenix Bird to resurrect from its own ashes.

11. The Church Of Philadelphia

The church of Philadelphia shines with mystical happiness within each exquisite note of a piano, and within each melody of Nirvana.

34

The frontal chakra awakens when the sacred fire opens the church of Philadelphia.

This chakra is found situated between the eyebrows. The mystic is filled with ecstasy when contemplating this lotus flower within the cavernous plex.

This immaculate lotus resembles a poem of love within the sublime enchantments of the starry night.

This precious lotus flower is rooted in the pituitary gland.

The frontal chakra shines with the immaculate colours of a romantic moonlight.

The frontal chakra has many divine splendours, yet it has only two fundamental petals.

The total and complete development of the frontal chakra signifies supreme beatitude and absolute liberation. The frontal chakra has eight major powers and thirty-six minor powers.

The frontal chakra causes us to be clairvoyant. The clairvoyant must have a child-like mind. But, when he permits the "I" to translate his visions he can also convert himself into a calumniator.

The clairvoyant must be simple and humble like the little timid and perfumed flower existing during the starry night.

The clairvoyant must be as a garden sealed with seven seals.

The true seer never says that he is a seer. The true seer must be humble and modest.

The seer must learn how to see without the presence of the "I", to see without translation, and without judgement.

The frontal chakra develops with internal meditation.

Revelation 3: 7 to 13: "And to the angel of the church in Philadelphia write: These things saith he that is holy, he that is true, he that hat the key of David, he that openeth, and no man shutteth; and shutteth, and no man openeth;"

The key of David is the key of the internal temple of each human being. We must build the temple upon the living rock (sex). The key of the temple is the key of the Ark of Science.

This key is the Arcanum A.Z.F. The Son of Man openeth and no man shutteth, and shutteth, and no man openeth.

Do not throw stones from the interior of the temple. Do not use the clairvoyance in order to hurt neighbours, have pity for those who suffer, have pity for those who cry. Do not hurt them, but rather love them. Do not transform the temple into a den of thieves.

"I know thy works: behold I have set before thee an open door, (the door of the frontal chakra) and no man can shut it: for thou hast a little strength, and hast kept my word, and hast not denied my name.

"Behold, I will make them of the synagogue of Satan, which say they are Jews, and are not, but do lie; behold I will make them to come and worship before thy feet, and to know that I have loved thee."

Authentic Jews are only the children of the lion from the tribe of Judah, meaning, the CHRISTIFIED ONES.

Those who say that they are Jews (illuminated ones) and are not, do lie. Really, these people belong to the synagogue of Satan. These people cannot enter the temple of Philadelphia.

When the clairvoyant is a black magician the frontal chakra is controlled by Jezebel, the woman who called herself a prophetess.

The black magician develops tenebrous clairvoyance. The frontal chakra of the black magician works only in the abyss. The tenebrous ones take the shape of Masters and also friends of Masters in order to perform horrible acts within the atomic infernos of nature.

Actually, the clairvoyants of Jezebel calumniate their neighbours when they are in contact with these disguised tenebrous beings.

The true illuminated clairvoyant is not capable of calumniating his neighbour. The true illuminated clairvoyant sees without the presence of the "I". The illuminated clairvoyant uses his faculty with supreme wisdom in order to advise and help his neighbour.

We need to decapitate Jezebel. We need to place the clairvoyance under the service of the Immolated Lamb. We need to prophesy with wisdom.

"Because thou hast kept the word of my patience, I also will keep thee from the hour of temptation, which shall come upon all the world, to them that dwell upon the earth."

We are now in the hour of the great temptation.

"Behold, I come quickly: hold that fast which thou hast, (the fire) that no man take thy crown." Do not let Satan take it from you. Do not waste the sacred wine, be chaste.

"Him that overcometh will I make a pillar in the temple of my God, and he shall go no more out; and I will write upon him the name of my God, and the name of the city of my God, which is new Jerusalem, which comet down out of heaven from my God: and I will write upon him my new name."

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the churches."

The sixth sense, the divine clairvoyance awakens during the ascension towards the superior worlds.

And He will write upon him, on his forehead, the name of the Lamb and the name of the new Jerusalem from above, from the superior worlds where we are received with palms and praises and feasts when we liberate ourselves from the four bodies of sin.

And the new Jerusalem comes down from God out of heaven, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband.

12. The Church Of Laodicea

The church of Laodicea is opened when the igneous serpent of our magical powers reaches the pineal gland, which is situated in the brain.

The pineal gland is situated in the superior part of the brain and is the queen of all glands.

A very subtle and small canal exists between the pituitary gland and the pineal gland, this canal vanishes in cadavers. The fire must pass through this small canal towards the point between the eyebrows. Then, the fire travels towards the root of the nose. A special magnetic field exists in the root of the nose, here is where the atom of the Father resides.

When we aspire to the Great Light, then we inhale billions of aspirant atoms which travel through the nasal cavities towards the magnetic field of the root of the nose where the atom of the Father is situated.

The sexual glands and the pineal gland are found to be intimately correlated. The potency of the pineal gland depends upon the potency of the sexual glands.

The atom of the Holy Spirit is in the pineal gland. The atom of the Son (CHRIST) is in the pituitary gland. The atom of the Father resides in the magnetic field of the root of the nose.

The pineal gland is only five millimetres in diameter and is surrounded by fine, sandlike particles.

The lotus flower of the pineal gland has one thousand petals which shine when forming the crown of the Saints. An entire cosmic zodiac shines and gleams within the microcosmical human being. This is the glowing halo above the heads of the Saints.

As above, so below. The zodiac of the starry sky is governed by twenty-four Elders.

The zodiacal human being is also governed by twenty-four Atomic Gods who have their throne in the brain. The halo of the twenty-four Atomic Gods gleam and shine in the crown of the Saints.

Above, in the starry sky, the seven Spirits are before the throne of the Lamb. Here below, the seven Atomic Angels who govern the seven churches of the spinal medulla are within the microcosmical human being. "AS ABOVE SO BELOW."

The pineal gland is the window of BRARMA, the diamond eye, the eye of polivoyance.

The intuitive sight resides in this chakra, the eye of the Spirit. This splendorous and divine chakra is associated with the crown of thorns that pierces the temples of all the Christified Ones and causes them to bleed.

We can study the divine wisdom of Nirvana with this chakra.

This chakra permits us to see and to instantaneously know. Seeing with the diamond eye allows us to transport ourselves to the place which we are seeing.

Whosoever has developed this coronary chakra can instantaneously abandon his vehicles at any time that he so wishes. We reach perfect ecstasy when the INTIMATE functions without any type of vehicles in the world of the mist of the fire.

We arrive at the first Initiation of the fire when the fire touches the atom of the Father.

Both glands, Epiphyses and Hypophyses (pineal and pituitary) respectively radiate and have their own aura. A current of light departs through the door of the frontal chakra when these

glandular auras are mixed. The Initiate receives the Initiation when reaching these esoteric heights. The Initiate must raise the seven degrees of the power of the fire.

The Pentagonal Star gleams and shines with immaculate whiteness in the frontal chakra of the great Initiates.

Some Initiates resurrect in the fire, others in the fire and in the light. We must first resurrect in the fire, then, after in the light.

When we aspire to the light, millions of aspirant atoms reach the magnetic field of the nose and then they move towards the heart. In the heart resides the atom "NOUS", this atom governs all of the atoms of the organism.

A master atom exists within the seminal system. This atom rises towards the brain with sexual alchemy in order to teach the wisdom of nature.

Whosoever reaches the fifth Initiation of Major Mysteries, becomes a major brother of humanity.

Before you can reach the valley of refuge which is referred to us as the path of pure knowledge, you have to sacrifice yourself for the love of humanity.

The fifth path is supreme love, supreme charity, and supreme obedience to the Father.

Part of the fire escapes and enters the exterior world when the sacred serpent passes through the cerebral centre, which is situated where the frontal fontanel of a new born would be found. The entire aura shines with fire in those instances and the immaculate white dove of the Holy Spirit enters within us.

All of the vehicles of the Initiate must be crucified and stigmatized in the Golgotha of supreme sacrifice. The Golgotha of the Father is the brain. We must rise to the Golgotha with the cross on our back.

The twenty-four Elders cast their crowns at the feet of the Lamb. Whosoever opens the church of Laodicea must humbly toss his crown to the feet of the Lamb.

The resplendent lotus of one thousand petals develops and unfolds with internal meditation.

Those who throw their crowns to the feet of the Lamb must remember that whosoever wishes to reach the Mystical Science must deny and release the self from these five things:

- 1. The human passions, distractions and vices of the multitudes;
- 2. The vain and futile things of the world;
- 3. The attachment towards hidden powers. If you have them in abundance, act as if you do not:
- 4. Release yourself from your own self. Convince yourself that even though your internal God is very exalted and grandiose, you are nothing else but a shadow of your God, a sinning shadow that must be annihilated; and
- 5. Resolve yourself to die. Do not aspire to immortalize your "I" Resolve to die completely, for you are nothing else than a poor shadow. Thus, this is how you will be lost within your internal God and only the Son of Man will remain dwelling within your Christified Soul.

To you who have opened the seven churches remember that the hidden powers are very divine, yet also very dangerous. If we do not dissolve the "I" then, when it is armed with all of these powers, it will desire to do something with them, this "I" will desire to be great and almighty.

Those Initiates who are attached to magical powers are departing from humbleness and from nothingness, therefore, they fall into the abyss of perdition.

If you want to incarnate the Lamb, remember your own misery in every instant. Nothingness is the acknowledgment of your own sin and misery, it is the way for your God who is waiting, to perform marvels and prodigies within you.

You must fast, pray, cover yourself with sackcloth and make penance.

Tell of your sacred visions to no one. Remember that Jezebel who called herself a prophetess, enjoys when she tells people of her visions.

You who throw your crown at the feet of the Lamb must learn to be quiet. Never speak of the Initiations of the Beloved One. The Initiations are very sacred.

The Beloved One can be filled with Initiations and Powers, but you are nothing else but a sinning shadow. It is urgent that you arrive to the annihilation of your "I." never say how many Initiations you have or someone else has because your "I" never receives Initiations. The Initiations are very sacred. Only the INTIMAE is the unique One who receives Initiations, Degrees and Feasts. The Initiations are for the INTIMATE. You are nothing else but a shadow which must be annihilated.

Revelation 3: 14 to 22: "And unto the (atomic) angel of the church of the Laodiceans write: these things saith the Amen, the faithful and the true witness, the beginning of the creation of God:

"I know thy works, that thou art neither cold nor hot: I would thou wert cold or hot.

"So then because thou art lukewarm, and neither cold nor hot, I will spue thee out of my mouth."

Woe for those who are lukewarm! Truly they will not enter unto the Secret Path. The lukewarm are parasites of nature.

A great sinner is often closer to redemption than a lukewarm devout. "I will spue thee (the lukewarm) out of my mouth."

Really, the one who is lukewarm says: "I am rich (I am filled with science etc.), and increased with goods, and have need of nothing: and knowest not that thou art wretched, and miserable, and poor, and blind, and naked:

"I counsel thee to buy of me gold tried in the fire (by means of the sexual fire, we must transmute the lead of the personality into the very pure gold of the Divine Spirit), that thou mayest be (spiritually) rich; and white raiment, that thou mayest be clothed, and that shame of thy nakedness do not appear; and anoint thine eyes with eye salve, that thou mayest see."

The eye salve of chastity is the raw matter of the Great Work. It is the Holy Collyrium which opens our eye with polivoyance. The potency of the pineal gland depends upon the potency of the sexual glands.

"As many as I love, I rebuke and chasten: be zealous (vigilant) therefore, and repent.

"Behold, I stand at the door, and knock; if any man hear my voice, and open the door, (the pineal gland is the door of the soul) I will come in to him, and will sup with him, and he with me."

The Lamb enters within us through the door of the pineal gland. The Lamb transforms himself into the Soul and the Soul into Hilvi, when HE enters within the Soul. Then, the Son of Man resurrects within our own selves.

"To him that overcometh will I grant to sit with me in my throne, even as I also overcame, and am set down with my Father in his throne."

The Soul mixed with the Lamb is that Son of Man who sits in his throne. The Son of Man is a conqueror. He defeated Satan. He has the right to sit in the throne of the Father because the Son is one with the Father and the Father is one with the Son.

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the spirit saith unto the churches."

The Lamb must enter the Spirit (the INTIMATE), the Soul, and the body of the human being.

Those who throw their crowns to the feet of the Lamb, remember that you must build the temple upon the Living Stone in order for the Lamb to enter and sup with you.

The Temple of Wisdom has seven columns of living fire.

If you want the Initiation, write it upon a staff.

Only with *INRI* will you reach the Golgotha of the Father.

13. The Jinn States

"As above so below." The infinitely small is analogous to the infinitely great. An atom is a complete, tiny solar system.

The heavenly Jerusalem exists in the macrocosm. The heavenly Jerusalem also exists within the microcosmic human being.

A new heaven and a new earth will exist. This will be the future new, heavenly Jerusalem of the Macrocosm.

When a human being is Christified, then he becomes transformed into the new heavenly Jerusalem of the microcosm. "As above so below." This is the Law.

The new Jerusalem in the macrocosm as well as in the microcosm, descends from the superior worlds and is filled with terribly divine powers.

The new Jerusalem, either in the future planet earth or in the planet human being is illuminated by the Immolated Lamb.

In the macrocosm, the purified planet of the future, as well as its internal bodies, will be the heavenly Jerusalem of the future.

The christified body of the human being with his christified internal bodies constitute the heavenly Jerusalem of the microcosmic human being.

Everything that happens in the heavenly Jerusalem of the macrocosm is repeated within the heavenly Jerusalem of the microcosmic human being. "As above so below."

The christified souls will abide in the future heavenly Jerusalem of the planet earth. Only the christified soul of the Initiate abides in the heavenly Jerusalem of the human body.

The physical body of an Initiate is the heavenly Jerusalem of the Microcosm. This christified body is filled with terrific powers.

The eight major powers of the Mystic are the following:

- 1. "ANIMA" the power to reduce the size of the physical body to the size of an atom.
- 2. "MARIMA" the power to enlarge the physical body to the point of touching the sun and the moon with the hand.
- 3. "LAGHIMA" the power to decrease the weight of the physical body to that of a feather. We can float in the air with the physical body, thanks to this power.
- 4. "GHARIMA" the power to willingly increase the weight of the physical body to that of a mountain.
- 5. "PRAPTI" the power of prophesy, the power of clairvoyance, the sacred ear, psychometry, telepathy and intuition, the power of understanding the language of the animals. Apollonius of Tyana and Saint Francis of Assisi were able to communicate with animals of the forest.
- 6. "PRAKANYA" the power that permits the Mystic to submerge within the waters and to live submerged in the waters without receiving any harm. The Great Guru Deva Sivananda told us of the case of the Swami Trillinga of Benares (INDIA), who was accustomed to live six months of the year submerged within the waters of the river Ganges.

- 7. "VASITWAN" the power with which the Mystic can dominate the wildest animals, also the power to pronounce words which enchant and quiet poisonous serpents.
- 8. "ISHATWAN" the power that permits the Saint to resurrect the dead.

Whosoever reaches this height is a liberated one, a Lord of the living and of the dead.

Everyone who walks on the path of christification must develop these eight powers.

These powers of the heavenly Jerusalem are conquered with internal meditation, with the condition of absolute chastity.

When the human body is converted into the heavenly Jerusalem, then it becomes a marvellous Christic body.

PRACTICES

- 1. The Mystic must lie down on his bed with tranquility.
- 2. Ask the Lamb for the assistance of an angel which specializes in the "JINN" science.
- 3. The mystic must be seech the angel and the Immolated Lamb to take him (her) with his physical body into the superior worlds.
- 4. We the Brothers and Sisters of the Temple advise you to invoke the angel HARPOCRATES who is a specialist in the "JINN" science. Beg to the Lamb, beseech him to send the angel HARPOCRATES to you.
- 5. Release all your thoughts from your mind, clear your mind. It is necessary for you to place your mind in quietude and tranquility.
- 6. You must provoke sleep. Let yourself fall asleep without thoughts.
- 7. While conserving your sleep like a precious treasure, rise from your bed and leave your bedroom.

If the practice has been performed well, then your body will enter the "JINN" state, meaning, that it will submerge within the supra-sensible worlds.

A body while in the "JINN" state can float in the air (LAGHIMA) or be submerged within the waters (PRAKANYA), or pass through fire without being burned, or be reduced to the size of an atom (ANIMA), or be enlarged to the point of touching the sun or the moon with the hand (MAHIMA).

A submerged body within the supra-sensible worlds is submitted to the laws of those worlds. Then, this body is plastic and elastic, so it can change form, decrease its weight (LAGHIMA); or increase its weight (GHARIMA) willingly.

The Yogi of Benares was able to submerge himself within the waters for six months because, firstly, he was placing his body in the "JINN" state.

Some devouts who were practicing meditation in order to place the physical body in 'JINN' state, were feeling the sensation of being enlarged or inflated like a balloon. If those devouts would have risen from their beds in those moments when they were feeling that sensation, then they would have had the joy of entering into the "JINN" state.

When Jesus was walking upon the waters of the Sea of Galilee, he was having his body in the state of "JINN."

Peter was able to liberate himself from the chains, and to leave the prison, thanks to the assistance of an angel who helped him place his body in the state of "JINN."

The heavenly Jerusalem of the microcosmic human being is filled with formidable divine powers.

You will develop the eight great mystical powers with internal meditation, and then you will become a living model of the future heavenly Jerusalem.

A great deal of patience and many years of practice are needed in order to educate, develop and completely strengthen the eight great mystical powers.

The devouts must be patient with these practices of "JINN". To persevere days, months and years is necessary, until educing, developing and totally strengthening the eight great mystical powers.

We are able to work with nature while in "JINN" state, with the powers of the seven churches.

To have faith, tenacity, patience, chastity, charity, and supreme love for humanity is necessary. All of these virtues are indispensable. Thus, this is how you will obtain the development of the eight great mystical powers of your own heavenly Jerusalem.

These eight great mystical powers belong to the seven churches.

Those who become weary and who are inconsistent, and those who commit adultery with Jezebel who called herself a prophetess, will never obtain the development of the eight mystical powers of the Saints.

We perform the perfect priesthood of the seven churches while we are in "JINN" state.

Every human being who is christified, becomes a living exponent, a living example of the future Jerusalem.

All of the internal vehicles of the human being shine with the glory of the Lamb, when they have been christified and stigmatized. Really, this is the holy Tabernacle of God and human beings.

The Lord dwells within his holy Tabernacle. This is the heavenly Jerusalem endowed with terribly Divine powers.

The sun and the moon do not need to shine upon the heavenly Jerusalem because the immaculate clarity of the ETERNAL ONE illuminates it and the Lamb is its light.

The Holy Eight is the sign of Infinity. The two witnesses of the Apocalypse are entwined around the spinal medulla, thus, they are forming the Holy Eight.

All of the mystical powers of the heavenly Jerusalem emanate from this Holy Eight. Now the devouts can better comprehend why we speak of eight mystical ineffable powers.

And he measured the wall thereof an hundred and forty and four (144) cubits, according to the measure of a man, that is of the angel.

1 + 4 + 4 = 9. To descend into the Ninth Sphere (sex) in order to work with water and the fire is necessary. This is the source of worlds, beasts, human beings, and Gods. Every authentic white Initiation begins here.

The Son of Man is born from the water and the fire. "And he that spoke with me had a golden reed to measure the city, and the gates thereof and the wall thereof." This golden reed is the spinal medulla.

The seven degrees of the power of the fire rise through the spinal medulla. Grasp strongly your reed so that you can perform the priesthood of the Saints.

You can become citizens of the future Jerusalem with anticipation. Just as the birds enjoy the breaking of the dawn in the East and fill the forest with the sweet sounds of their touching songs, as well, the dawn of the Eternal One shines with living examples of the new Jerusalem, before the future Ineffable Jerusalem.

Let your internal powers be developed. Do not covet powers. Do not wish for powers. Cultivate your lotus flowers with disinterested love. Cultivate your precious and delicate internal garden just as the poor gardener cultivates his garden.

When your lotus flowers begin to shine, remember that all of your powers are nothing but miserable candle lights which shine like glowworms before the resplendent Sun who is your Immolated Lamb.

You are not the Master, you are only the sinning shadow of Him who has never sinned. Remember that only your internal Lamb is the Master.

Remember that even though your internal God is a Hierarch of fire, you, poor slug, are only a human being and as a human being you will always be judged.

Your internal Lamb could be a planetary God, but you, poor slug of the mud, do not forget, always remember that you are only the shadow of your God. Poor sinning shadow..!

Do not say "I am this God" or "I am that Master", because you are only a shadow that must resolve to die and be slaughtered in order not to serve as an obstacle for your internal God.

IT IS NECESSARY FOR YOU TO REACH SUPREME HUMBLENESS.

14. The Throne In Heaven

Revelation 4: 1 to 10: "After this I looked, and, behold, a door was opened in heaven (the door of the pineal gland): and the first voice which I heard was as it were of a trumpet talking with me; which said, Come up hither, and I will shew thee things which must be hereafter.

"And immediately I was in the Spirit: and, behold, a throne was set in heaven, and one sat on the throne (the Lamb).

"And he that sat was to look upon like a jasper and a sardine stone: (the Son of Man is the son of the living stone, and all the Masters are children of the precious stones of the Temple. The cubic stone of Jesod is the sex) and there was a rainbow round about the throne, in sight like unto an emerald." This is the aureole of wisdom. The Son of Man is the Spirit of wisdom.

"And round about the throne were four and twenty seats: and upon the seats I saw four and twenty elders sitting, (the four and twenty Elders which govern the zodiac) clothed in white raiment; and they had on their heads crowns of gold.

"And out of the throne proceeded lightnings and thunderings and voices: and there were seven lamps of fire burning before the throne, which are the seven Spirits of God."

The four and twenty Elders exist in the Macrocosm and in the Microcosm. They exist above and below, in the firmament of heaven and within the atomic firmament of the human being.

The seven Spirits before the throne exist above and below. They exist in the firmament of heaven and within the atomic firmament of the human being. As above so below.

A zodiac exists in heaven and also on earth. The zodiac on earth is the human being.

"And before the throne (the throne of the Lamb which is as much in heaven as in the human being) there was a sea of glass like unto crystal (the Ens Seminis): and in the midst of the throne, and round about the throne (which is above and below, in the universe and within the human being) were four beasts full of eyes before and behind." These four animals are symbolizing the entire science of the Great Arcanum.

"And the first beast was like a lion (the sacred fire), and the second beast like a calf (the salt, or, in other words, the matter), and the third beast had a face as a man (the mercury of the secret philosophy, the Ens Seminis), and the fourth beast was like a flying eagle." The flying eagle represents the air.

The philosophical fire must be searched for within the Ens Seminis. In the beginning, this fire is nothing more than a thy and terrestrial exhalation incorporated into the seminal steams.

This dry and terrestrial exhalation is transmuted into the marvellous lightning of Kundalini, when the priest learns how to withdraw from the altar without wasting even a single drop of the sacred wine.

We receive the Flaming Sword when reaching these heights. When the ENS SEMINIS is fecundated by the fire, it becomes the Master and the regenerator of the human being.

The fire nourishes itself with the vital air, with the Prana or universal life.

Really, the sexual fire, that is constantly inhaled and exhaled during the supreme ecstasy of love, becomes transformed into that terrific lightning which opens the seven churches upon rising through the medullar canal.

We must decapitate the "I" with the Flaming Sword of the Cosmic Justice.

"And the four beasts (of sexual alchemy) had each of them six wings about him; and they were full of eyes within, and they rest not day and night, saying, Holy, holy, holy, Lord God Almighty, which was, and is, and is to come." This is the tremendous sixth Arcanum of the Tarot.

Remember that a spring of the pure waters of life poured forth when Moses smote the Philosophical Stone.

The man is the priest and the woman is the altar. The Ens Seminis is the sacred wine, the pure waters of life.

Remember the brazen serpent of Moses that was entwined around the TAU, or, in other words, around the generating Lingam.

Remember beloved devout, the double tall of the serpent which forms the legs of the solar rooster of Abraxas.

The entire process of the Great Work consists of releasing oneself from the enchanted rings of the tempting serpent, by taming it, defeating it, and by putting one's foot upon its head. Then, it must be raised through the medullar canal, in order to open the seven churches.

The sixth Arcanum is the struggle between God and the Devil, it is the antagonism between love and animal passion.

The six wings of the four beasts are full of eyes which watch us above and below. They watch us in heaven and in the abyss.

Woe of thee! oh warrior, oh fighter, if your servant collapses.

Do not spill the sacred wine of your temple.

"And when those beasts give glory and honour and thanks to him (the Lamb) that sat on the throne (which is within the human being and within the universe), who liveth for ever and ever."

Then... "The four and twenty elders (within the Macrocosm and within the Microcosm) fall down before him that sat on the throne, and worship him that liveth for ever and ever, and cast their crowns before the throne, saying,

"Thou art worthy, O Lord, to receive glory and honour and power: for thou hast created all things, and for thy pleasure they are and were created."

The four and twenty Elders of the zodiacal heaven cast their crowns before the feet of the Lamb. This event is repeated in the zodiacal human being. The four and twenty atomic Elders of the brain cast their crowns before the feet of the Lamb. "As above so below."

Everything which takes place within the infinitely large, is repeated within the infinitely small.

The Lamb is the Multiple Perfect Unity. There are as many Lambs in heaven as there are human beings on the earth. Really, all human beings have their own Lamb.

The Lamb is not the Theosophical Septenary.

The Lamb is the Logoic Ray from which the entire Theosophical Septenary emanates.

The Intimate must cast his crown before the feet of the Lamb upon opening the seven churches.

The Intimate is the Spirit, the Monad, the Being.

The Intimate is not the Lamb.

The Intimate emanated from the Lamb.

The Initiate delivers his Spirit unto the Lamb when he pronounces the seven tremendous words of Golgotha. He exclaims: "Father, into thy hands I commend my Spirit." (Luke 23: 46)

15. The Sealed Book

We, the brethren of the Temple, have suffered greatly in this night for the sake of this poor humanity which we greatly adore. The sky of this night is dressed with black, stormy clouds.

These are lion coloured clouds, illuminated by a lightning flash. The sky is full of lightning, thunder, tempests, rain and very great hailstones.

During this night, we, the brethren have entered through the doors of the temple, filled with a very great tribulation. We have suffered immensely for the great orphan which we love dearly. Poor humanity! Poor mothers! Poor elders!

We, the brethren have lain upon beds of profound pain.

An apocalyptic drama is being represented in the Temple.

We, the brethren are simultaneously spectators and actors of this sacred drama.

The Priests joined two things: A child and a book. The sealed book shines upon the chest of the apocalyptic child. The fine and cruel hemp cords envelop the delicate and tender body of the beautiful, anguished and suffering child. The cruel ropes pass over the sealed book. The book is upon the immaculate chest of the child.

This child is our beloved Son.

We beseech, we cry, we ask for mercy, then the anguished child and the sealed book is liberated.

Now we open the book and with it we prophesy to a woman dressed in purple and scarlet. This is the Great Harlot whose number is 666, and with whom all the kings of the earth have committed adultery.

This woman listens to us and says: "I did not know that you could prophesy me with that book." To which we respond: "We came to prophesy and to teach with this book."

Thus, this is how we spoke to the woman dressed in purple and scarlet, and as we spoke with her, the images of five mounts were passing by in our imagination. These are the five Root Races which have existed. Each Root Race ends with a great cataclysm.

Our fifth root Race will soon come to its end.

Revelation 5: 1 to 14: "And I saw in the right hand of him that sat on the throne a book written within and on the backside, sealed with seven seals.

"And I saw a strong angel proclaiming with a loud voice, Who is worthy to open the book, and to loose the seals thereof?

"And no man in heaven, nor in earth, neither under the earth, was able to open the book, neither to look thereon." Truly, this book can only be opened by the incarnated Lamb.

"And I wept much, because no man was found worthy to open and to read the book, neither to look thereon.

"And one of the elders saith unto me, weep not: behold, the Lion of the tribe of Juda (the VERB, who is the Initiator of the age of Aquarius), the Root of David, hath prevailed to open the book, and to loose the seven seals thereof." This is ignored by this humanity, the Great Harlot.

- "And I beheld, and lo, in the midst of the throne and of the four beasts, and in the midst of the elders, stood a Lamb as it had been slain, having seven horns and seven eyes, which are the seven Spirits of God sent forth into all the earth." They were sent in order to work in accordance with the Law.
- "And he came and took the book out of the right hand of him that sat upon the throne.
- "And when he had taken the book, the four beasts and four and twenty elders fell down before the Lamb, having every one of them harps, and golden vials full of odours, which are the prayers of the saints.
- "And they sung a new song, saying, Thou art worthy to take the book, and to open the seals thereof. for thou wast slain and hast redeemed us to God by thy blood our of every kindred, and tongue, and people, and nation;" Really, the sealed book can only be opened by the Lamb.
- "And hast made us unto our (internal) God kings and priests: and we shall reign on the earth." Really, our internal God is the king and the priest.
- "And I beheld, and I heard the voice of many angels round about the throne (which is in heaven and within the heart of the human being) and the beasts and the elders: and the number of them was ten thousand times ten thousand, and thousands of thousands;
- "Saying with a loud voice, Worthy is the Lamb that was slain, to receive power, and riches, and wisdom, and strength, and honour, and glory, and blessing.
- "And every creature which is in heaven, and on earth, and under the earth, and such as are in the sea, and all that are in them, heard I saying, Blessing, and honour, and glory, and power, be unto him that sitteth upon the throne, and unto the Lamb for ever and ever.
- "And the four beasts (of sexual alchemy) said, Amen. and the four and twenty elders fell down and worshipped him that liveth for ever and ever."

Really, the internal Lamb of every human being is absolutely perfect and worthy of all honour. We, the human beings are nothing else but poor sinning shadows.

Some people say: "I believe in the 'I want', in the 'I can', as well as in the 'I do.' This is what they consider to be positive. But, in reality, these people fortify Satan with these affirmations.

The Lamb is not the "I". The Lamb is neither a superior "I", nor by a long shot an inferior "I".

When the Lamb says: "I AM", we must interpret this term as: "HE IS", because, the Lamb is the one who is uttering it and not the human being.

The Lamb is deprived of the "I" and deprived of any seal of individuality, as well as of any vestige of personality.

If your internal God is the God of a Sun, or the God of any constellation, then you must be even more humble, since you are nothing else but a poor BODDHISATTWA, or, in other words, a poor human being, more or less imperfect.

You must not commit the sacrilege of saying: I am such God, or the Great Master so-and-so, because you are not the Master, you are not the Lamb. You are only the sinning shadow of the One who has never sinned.

The "I" is formed with the atoms of the secret enemy. This "I" wants to stand out, to rise to the top, to be noticed, to climb to the top of the ladder, etc. But, you must recognize your own misery, and to praise and worship the Lamb.

You must vanish and look for shelter within the nothingness, since you are nothing. Thus, through this way of supreme humbleness, you will return into the innocence of Eden. Then, your soul will be absorbed within the Lamb. The spark will return to the flame from where it came forth.

You are the spark, the Lamb is the flame.

So, in the days when your soul will return to the Lamb, you must multiply your vigilance. Remember that the "I" sprouts as an evil weed. Only the Lamb is worthy of any praise, honour and glory.

You must not divide yourself into two "I"s, one superior and another inferior. Since only one 'T' exists, and the so called "Superior 'I" is nothing else but a refined concept of Satan. This is a sophism of the "I".

You must not desire anything, kill every desire of life. Remember that the "I" is nourished with every desire. You must kiss the feet of the leper. You must dry the tears of your worst enemies. Do not hurt anyone with your words and do not search for shelter, because you must resolve to die in all of the planes of cosmic consciousness.

Give away your goods to the poor, give away the last drop of your blood for the sake of this poor suffering humanity, renounce to all happiness. Then, the Immolated Lamb will enter into your soul. He will make his abode within your soul.

Some philosophers affirm that Christ brought the doctrine of the "I", because he said: "I AM the Way, the Truth and the Life." (John 14: 6)

Certainly, the Lamb said: "I AM", and only the Lamb can say "I AM". This phrase was spoken by the Lamb, but, this phrase cannot be uttered by us (poor sinning shadows) because we are not the Lamb.

Really, the exact and axiomatic translation of "I AM" which was uttered by the Lamb, must be as follows: "HE IS" the Way, the Truth and the Life."

"HE IS" because HE was the One who uttered it. We did not utter it, the One who uttered it was HIM, HIM, HIM.

HE lives within the unknown profundities of our Being. "HE IS" the Way, the Truth and the Life. He transcends any concept of "I", any individuality and any vestige of personality.

Really, "Worthy is the Lamb that was slain, to receive power, and riches, and wisdom, and strength, and honour, and glory, and blessing." He is the only one worthy to take the book, and to open the seals thereof.

The Lamb is the divine *AUGOIDES*. Truly, the only great and divine One is the IMMOLATED LAMB.

16. The Seven Seals

Revelation 6: 1 to 17: "And I saw when the Lamb opened one of the seals, and I heard, as it were the noise of thunder, one of the four beasts saying, Come and see.

"And I saw, and behold a white horse (the white race): and him that sat on him had a bow; and a crown was given unto him. and he went forth conquering, and to conquer." The white race defeated Japan, and the illustrations of the conquerings of this race against Japan are being shown in many ways.

"And when he had opened the second seal, I heard the second beast (of the Great Arcanum) say, Come and see.

"And there went out another horse that was red: (the Atlantean red Root Race from which the red skin natives of the United States of North America descended from) and power was given to him that sat thereon (the Uncle Sam) to take peace from the earth, and that they should kill one another: and there was given unto him a great sword.

Presently, this red horse with its wild, bristly mane and silver hooves, peacefully eats within the stables of Augeias.

This brave, agile and speedy, red skin stallion reminds us of the warrior-like Atlantean Root Race, whose last noble and strong offspring were destroyed by the Yankees.

The blond citizens of the Unites States of North America carry in their veins the red blood of those ancient warriors, whose royal trunk was born in the Atlantean continent.

Presently, in this year of the twentieth century(1958), this red horse peacefully eats, and the citizens of the United States are preparing themselves for the atomic war. Very soon will the tempest explode in the United States. Horribly, the hurricane will howl in the United States. The sky will be filled with pitch black clouds and there will be much mourning. tears and very great tribulation.

"And when he had opened the third seal, I heard the third beast (of the great Arcanum) say, Come and see. And I beheld, and lo a black horse (the black race and any dark skinned race such as, Hindustani, African, etc. This horse also represents honest labour): and he that sat on him (the black race and any dark skinned race, Arab, Hindustani, etc.) had a pair of balances in his hand (slavery)."

"And I heard the voice in the midst of the four beasts say, A measure of wheat for a penny, and three measures of barley for a penny; and see thou hurt not the oil and the wine."

Lo and Behold, the necessary hard labour and work in order to obtain our daily bread. But the Initiates want peace and they say: "see thou hurt not the oil and the wine." Do not hurt the sacred wine neither the oil of pure gold that nourishes the fire of the candlestick.

You must work in peace and strive for peace, "That ye love one another, as I have loved you" (John 15: 12) and take care of the wine and the oil in order for your soul to become betrothed with the Lamb.

Nonetheless, the dwellers of the earth only want wars!

"And when he had opened the fourth seal, I heard the voice of the fourth beast (of the great Arcanum) say, Come and see.

"And I looked, and behold a pale horse (the yellow race): and he that sat on him (China) was Death, and Hell followed with him. And power was given unto them over the fourth part of the earth, to kill with sword, and with hunger, and with death, and with the (human) beast of the earth."

The war between east and west will be horrible. China will kill millions of human beings. The Chinese threat is terrifying. The Chinese horse drags death and hell before him. There has never been such a terrible threat.

The Chinese army is terribly powerful, and is armed with all types of deadly weapons.

The times of the end have arrived, and the war between the east and the west is inevitable.

The agile pale horse filled with great anger furiously neighs, with death and hell following him.

"And when he had opened the fifth seal, I saw under the altar the souls of them that were slain for the word of God, and for the testimony which they held:

"And they cried with a loud voice, saying, How long, O Lord, holy and true, dost thou not judge and avenge our blood on them that dwell on the earth?" The Prophets have been killed by the dwellers of the earth who abhor the Eternal One.

"And white robes were given unto every one of them; and it was said unto them, that they should rest yet for a little season, until their fellow-servants also and their brethren (the Initiates), that should be killed as they were, should be fulfilled.

"And I beheld when he had opened the sixth seal, and, lo, there was a great earthquake; and the sun became black as a sackcloth of hair, and the moon became as blood;"

The radioactive particles of the nuclear explosions will profoundly alter the superior zones of the terrestrial atmosphere. These superior zones are the supreme filter for the solar rays. When this filter will become totally altered by the atomic explosions, it will no longer classify and decompose the solar rays into light and fire. Therefore, the result will be that we will see the sun black as a sackcloth of hair.

The human beings will disembark to the moon. The conquering of the moon is inevitable. The vultures of war will conquer the moon and it will become as blood.

There will be earthquakes everywhere, darkness, famine, unknown sicknesses, blasphemies and a very great tribulation. The atomic explosions will provoke all of these calamities.

The times of the end have arrived. Woe! Woe! Woe! of those who as in the days of Noah were eating and drinking, marrying and giving in marriage saying: still we have time for joy. Woe to the inhabitants of the earth, since the times of the end are at hand.

The atomic explosions will bring plagues, earthquakes, famine, seaquakes and terrible cataclysms.

The sound of the sea will be filled with frightful turbulence and there will exist monstrous tidal waves as never seen before.

There will be deadly wars, and behold the pale horse is followed by Death and Hell.

The beginning of the end has already begun!

Nonetheless, all of these calamities are nothing else but the warning, the preface, the prelude of the final event.

The human beings are building the tower of Babel again. The summit of this tower is the moon.

Any illuminated clairvoyant can see within the superior worlds a hollow tower of fragile crystal (the tower of Babel). This is treason against the Eternal One, soon this tower will be destroyed.

The ships (rockets) of "BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH" ascend and descend through this fragile and hollow tower which is deprived of divine wisdom.

In this day and age, this tower of Babel is represented by the hollow, superficial and vain science of materialistic scientists.

God will confuse their tongues, and the tower of Babel will be fulminated by the terrible ray of the Cosmic Justice.

This fragile and hollow tower which is deprived of any type of spirituality is in these present times, as well as in ancient times, threatening the starry heaven.

The atheists, enemies of the Eternal One, want to take heaven by assault, and to conquer other worlds of space. But, soon they will be wounded to death.

The terror of Love and Law reigns within the sacred space where the innumerable worlds only move and palpitate. The interplanetary voyages are only for divine humanities of the starry space. The human being of the earth is not yet worthy to penetrate within the starry space. Let us put a chimpanzee or any other ape inside a laboratory and observe what will happen...

When these human beings conquer the moon, when the atheists (enemies of the Eternal One) profane the sacred space, when the wise men of this Great Babylon, filled with pride and arrogance, prepare themselves to conquer other worlds, then the end will come.

The tower of Babel will fall fulminated and from all of this, Great Babylon (humanity) will not remain not even one stone upon the other.

A world is approaching, it is approaching the planet Earth. Woe to the dwellers of the Earth! The Day of the Lord (the new Aquarian Age) is at hand. This world which is approaching will pass through the atmosphere and will burn with living fire. Therefore, when falling upon the earth, the elements and all things with life therein shall melt with fervent heat.

Also, there will be a great earthquake, so mighty an earthquake and so great as there has never been since human beings have existed upon the earth.

"And the stars of heaven (these great geniuses of the tower of Babel, these great luminaries of the intellectual firmament, the great Lords of this Great Babylon) fell unto the earth, even as fig tree casteth her untimely figs, when she is shaken of a mighty wind"

The spikes of this materialistic science have already become ripe, and the human beings will harvest the fruits of desire. Now human beings will harvest the result of this civilization with no God and no Law.

"And the heaven departed as a scroll when it is rolled together; and (with the planetary collision) every mountain and island were moved out of their places." The new planetary mass, mixed with the terrestrial mass, will form a new world.

There will be new heavens and a new earth for the future sixth great Root Race.

"And the kings of the earth, and the great men, and the rich men, and the chief captains, and the mighty men, and every bondman, and every free man (already physically dead and in their astral bodies), hid themselves in the dens and in the rocks of the mountains (since they will be terrified and surprised by a cataclysm which they do not expect or even remotely suspect.); "And said to the mountains and rocks, Fall unto us, and hide us from the face of him that sitteth on the throne, and from the wrath (justice) of the Lamb."

"For the great day of his wrath is come; and who shall be able to stand?"

Really, only those who have built the church for the Lamb upon the living rock (the sex), will be able to firmly stand.

Those who build their church upon the sands of theories, will tumble to the abyss, into the submerged worlds, into the atomic infernos of this great nature. These are the lost ones.

In these future days, only the just ones will be secretly saved. These select people will be those who were capable of lifting up the serpent upon the staff, as Moses did it in the wilderness.

The seed plot for the future sixth great Root Race will come from these select people.

The times of the end have arrived and we are in them. "Many are called and few are chosen" (Matthew 20: 16).

The Great Master Jesus said: "From a thousand men who seek me, one finds me. From a thousand who find me, one follows me. From a thousand who follow me, one is Mine."

17. The Four Angels

We, the Brethren, while in the supreme instant of ecstasy, have entered through the doors of the Temple of Jerusalem. The Wailing Wall is all that remains in this valley of bitterness.

Nonetheless, this temple still exists within the superior worlds. Filled with pain we walk through its courtyards and its passageways.

We contemplate its magnificent Olympian columns with its beautiful steeples and its chambers, its golden and silver cups, as well its purple kneeling desks.

The glory of the Lord Jehovah no longer shines within the Sanctum Sanctorum of the temple because this sanctuary has been desolated. This sanctuary has been profaned.

The Ark of Science with its sacred and terribly divine coupled Cherubims is no longer there.

Now, only the Lord of Anguish is who we see within the Sanctum Sanctorum of the temple. Only His sacred image is there, and it is a living image.

So, the Image of the Adorable One is there, but the Jews laugh at Him, and they say: "This is the One who dreamed to be the promised Messiah, but we do not believe in Him."

All of them laugh. Therefore, the sanctuary has been profaned. The veil of the temple was rent in twain because the sanctuary had already been profaned.

With the killing of Christ, the sanctuary was profaned.

We, the Brethren of the Temple, were walking throughout the interior of this temple. The courtyard of the priests was filled with sportsmen and merchants. Thus, this is what the Temple of Jerusalem became in the end.

This humanity crucified the Christ, so they signed their own death sentence with innocent blood.

Nonetheless, infinite Mercy granted us a short space of time in order for us to define ourselves for Christ or for Javhe (Javhe is not Jehovah), to define ourselves for the White Lodge or for the Black Lodge.

We all deserved to have been destroyed because of the dreadful and horrible sacrilege. Christ was assassinated and the sanctuary profaned. However, infinite Mercy granted to us a short space more of time in order for us to study the doctrine of Christ and to choose the path.

Revelation 7: 1 to 17: "And after these things (which happened in Jerusalem) I saw four angels standing on the four corners of the earth, (the four archivists of Karma, the four Devarajas) holding the four winds of the earth, that the wind should not blow on the earth, nor on the sea, nor on any tree." They govern the four winds and they control the four corners of the Earth with the Law.

The Prophet saw these four saints holding the Law, holding the four winds of the earth, that the wind should not blow on the earth, nor on the sea, nor on any tree.

These four saints hold the Law, that is to say, they hold the punishment which weighs upon the head of this humanity which assassinated Christ.

Infinite Mercy granted us time in order to study the Doctrine of the Lord and to turn back towards the path of righteousness.

"And I saw another angel ascending from the east, having the seal of the living God (the Seal of Solomon): and he cried with a loud voice to the four angels, to whom it was given to hurt the earth and the sea.

"Saying, Hurt not the earth, neither the sea, nor the trees, till we have sealed the servants of our God in their foreheads."

The Boddhisattwa of the angel who has the seal of the living God in his hands, is presently reincarnated in this twentieth century in a feminine body and is a marvellous specialist in "JINN" states. We must not divulge this angel's sacred name.

This angel told to all of us the following truth: "We are going to save the people of this street in ten days". We understood that this street is the Street of the just ones, one of the streets of this great Babylon. The ten days symbolize the Wheel of the Centuries, which is the Wheel of Reincarnation and Karma.

A short time was necessary in order for the people to study the Doctrine of Christ and to become defined for Christ or for Javhe, for the White Lodge of for the Black Lodge.

The Servants of God were already sealed in their foreheads. As well, the Servants of Satan were already sealed in their foreheads.

The times of the end have arrived and we are in them. The ten days are already past due, and the times of the end are at hand.

The Seal of Solomon is the supreme affirmation of the Lamb and the supreme negation of Satan. HILARIUX IX said: "Its two triangles that join or separate love are the two shuttles with which the ineffable mystery of eternal life in the loom of God is woven or unwoven." The six points of the Seal of the living God are masculine and the six deep angles that are form between the points are feminine (in synthesis this Seal of the living God has twelve rays, six masculine and six feminine).

These twelve rays crystallize in the twelve zodiacal constellations by means of sexual alchemy. These twelve zodiacal constellations are the twelve Sons of Jacob.

All of humanity is divided into twelve tribes, these are the twelve tribes of Israel.

Humanity remains classified with the Seal of the Living God. The majority have already received the mark of the beast on their foreheads and in their hands. A few have received the sign of the Lamb on their foreheads.

"And I heard the number of them which were sealed: and there were sealed an hundred and forty and four thousand of all the tribes of the children of Israel." By Qabbalisticaly adding the numbers to themselves we have the number nine. 1+4+4=9. NINE is the Ninth Sphere (the sex). Only those who have attained absolute chastity will be saved.

Presently, in this year of 1958, on the fifth of September, a great tempest is approaching. The sky is filled with black and threatening clouds which are illuminated by lightning. A cold, deadly breeze blows everywhere. All of us have been crying greatly. We have beseeched a holy and all mighty vigilant, we have begged him, we have made him business proposals in order to conjure the terrible tempest which is approaching this poor suffering humanity in a most dreadful way. We have asked for a clue in order to conjure this tempest. Nevertheless, all has been in vain.

The times are finished, and those who did not accept the Doctrine of the Lord will sink into the abyss. Only the just ones will be saved. They will be the ones who have already received the sign of God on their foreheads. They are the ones who have already reached supreme chastity.

One hundred and forty and four thousand are the just ones who will be saved. Really, only with supreme chastity and supreme love towards this suffering humanity will we attain the divine miracle of our christification.

We must kiss the whip of the executioner who hates us with supreme adoration. We must purge our mind from any desire.

We must watch over the "I" within all of the levels of consciousness, because many loyal and sincere devouts who achieved chastity in this valley of tears became terrible fornicators within the world of the Cosmic Mind.

Have you ever meditated even once on the danger of erotic images? Remember that within your mind you have a skilful translator. This translator is the "I", who always betrays the devouts of the Path. This "I" creates mental effigies, living demons of the Mental Plane. The devouts fornicate with these demons in the Mental Plane.

The movie theatres are true temples of Black Magic of the Mental Plane, because the mind creates living effigies, tempting demons which are absolute duplicates of the erotic images that we have seen in the movies or in the newspapers or in pornographic magazines.

The "I" betrays us in other levels of consciousness. A simple erotic word becomes fornication within the Mental World.

An ironic word signifies violence within the Mental Plane, therefore, we need to love, to adore our worst enemies.

We need to attain supreme chastity in all of the levels of consciousness, and we need to give even the last drop of blood for this adorable humanity.

Our lips must kiss the feet of those who hate and damn us the most. Our hands must only be lifted up in order to bless the enemy who spits on us and whips us.

One hundred and forty and four thousand are the christified Saints, that is to say, we must wash our feet in the Waters of Renunciation. This signifies supreme chastity, supreme sanctity and supreme love for all the millions of beings who populate the world.

It is necessary to descend into the Ninth Sphere in order to work with the fire and the water, which are the origin of worlds, beasts, human beings and Gods. Every authentic White Initiation starts here.

To work with the Arcanum A.Z. F. is necessary, for this is the only way possible in order to receive the sign of the Living God on the forehead.

"And I heard the number of them which were sealed: and there were sealed an hundred and forty and four thousand of all the tribes of the children of Israel."

Of the tribe of Juda were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Reuben were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Gad were sealed twelve thousand.

Of the tribe of Aser were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Nepthalim were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Manasses were sealed twelve thousand.

Of the tribe of Simeon were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Levi were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Issachar were sealed twelve thousand.

Of the tribe of Zabulon were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Joseph were sealed twelve thousand. Of the tribe of Benjamin were sealed twelve thousand."

All of this poor humanity is divided into twelve tribes. All of humanity is unfolded and developed within the zodiacal womb. The zodiac is a uterus in which humanity is gestated. The twelve tribes can only receive the seal of God on their foreheads by practising with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

Only twelve thousand were sealed in each of the twelve zodiacal tribes. Behold here the twelfth Arcanum of the Tarot.

This Arcanum is represented by a human being who is hung by his foot. His tied hands on his head force him to form a triangle with his arms, with the vertex pointing downwards, and with his legs he forms a cross which is above the triangle. Behold here the union of the cross with the triangle.

Behold here in the twelfth Arcanum, sexual magick. Behold here the Arcanum A.Z.F. Behold here the realized work, the living human being who does not touch the earth, but only with thought.

The whole science of sexual alchemy was carved by Hermes in the Emerald Tablet. Behold here the precepts which are related to the Great Work:

"Separate that Spirituous earth from the dense or crude by means of a gentle heat, with much attention.

"In great measure it ascends from the earth up to heaven, and descends again, newborn, on the earth, and the superior and the inferior are increased in power.

"By this thou wilt partake of the honours of the whole world, and darkness will fly from thee.

"This is the strength of all powers, with this thou wilt be able to overcome all things, and to transmute all what is fine and what is coarse.

"In this manner the world was created (The Emerald Tablet of Hermes)."

The fundamental key of the Great Work is found in the sexual union.

The Latin formula of the Great Arcanum is the following: "INMISIO MEMBRI VIRILI IN VAGINA FEMINAE SINE EJECULATIUM SEMINIS."

Do not ever ejaculate the Mercury of the Secret Philosophy. Avoid the physiological orgasm.

This is the fundamental clue of the Great Work.

Certainly, in its depth, the entity of semen becomes the same mercury of the Secret Philosophy, which when fecundated by the sulphur (LIVING FIRE) becomes converted into the Master and regenerator of the salt (the terrestrial man).

Only the sealed twelve thousand of each of the twelve tribes of Israel will be saved from the great cataclysm (this quantity is symbolic). Only those who have achieved the union of the cross/man with the triangle/Spirit will be saved.

"After this I beheld, and, lo, a great multitude, which no man could number, of all nations, and kindreds, and people, and tongues, stood before the throne, and before the Lamb, clothed with white robes (tunics of Masters), and palms (of victory) in their hands;

"And cried with a loud voice, saying, Salvation to our God which sitteth upon the throne, and unto the (internal) Lamb (of every human being)."

"And all the angels stood round about the throne, and about the elders and the four beasts, (of the Great Arcanum) and fell before the throne on their faces, and worshipped God.

"Saying, Amen: Blessing, and glory, and wisdom, and thanksgiving, and honour, and power, and might, be unto our God for ever and ever, Amen.

"And one of the elders answered, saying unto me, What are these which are arrayed in white robes? and whence came they?

"And I said unto him, Sir, thou knowest. And he said to me. These are they which came out of great tribulation, and have washed their robes, and made them white in the blood of the Lamb."

This Lamb is inside of everybody. Really, we can incarnate the Lamb only by working with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

There is the need to descend into the Flaming Forge of Vulcan (the sex) in order to retemper the sword and to attain the Venustic Initiation. Hermes descended into this forge in order to clean the internal stables of the Soul with the sacred fire, and Perseus also descended in order to cut the head of the Prince of this world with the Flaming Sword.

Thus, this is how we can whiten our internal bodies with the blood of our internal Lamb.

"Therefore are they before the throne of God, and serve him day and night in his temple: and he that sitteth on the throne shall dwell among them." The Father is glorified in the Son and the Son is glorified in the Father. The Father is one with the Son and the Son is one with the Father.

"They shall hunger no more, neither thirst any more; neither shall the sun light on them, nor any heat.

"For the Lamb (their own interior Lamb) which is in the midst of the throne shall feed them, and shall lead them unto living mountains of waters: and God shall wipe away all tears from their eyes."

We, as EGOS, have to resolve to die in all of the planes of cosmic consciousness. We have to recognize our own misery and sin in order for our diamond soul to be lost within the Lamb.

The internal Lord will shepherd and guide us towards fountains of living waters.

Whosoever drinks from these fountains of pure waters of life will never thirst, and a well of water springing up into everlasting life will spring from his belly.

We need to pass through a true revolution of the consciousness.

The experiences of life complicate and strengthen the "I". We have been evolving for many millions of years.. .so what? What did we gain with these many experiences.

The simple human being of eighteen million years ago is now the complicated, perverse, sly and selfish person of these great cities. Is this progress?

Let us see the child! How beautiful he is! How innocent! But while this child grows, while he evolves and acquires experiences throughout the distinct phases of life, he is complicating himself more and more, he is turning more and more sly. So when this person reaches the elderly age, he is already filled with maliciousness, selfishness, distrust, resentments, evilness, etc. Is this evolution?

The experiences of life complicate and strengthen the "I". Therefore, we need to dissolve the "I".

When we have dissolved the "I", then there will exist a total revolution of the consciousness.

Truly, the only thing that the "I" is useful for, is for doing evil. Therefore, we need to descend into the Ninth Sphere (the sex) in order to decapitate the "I".

The "I" strengthened and fortified itself with experiences throughout the centuries of evolution. Therefore, we do not need evolution now. What we need is a revolution.

The internal Lamb will enter into the Soul when we dissolve the 'I' When the internal Lamb enters into the Soul, He transforms himself into the Soul. He (the Lamb) transforms himself into Her, and Her into Him.

That, which we call the Son of Man is born from this divine and human symbiosis, and this is what is called the revolution of the consciousness.

The four Angels hold the four winds, they postpone the Karma which weighs upon this humanity in order for us to study the Doctrine of the Adorable One.

We became tremendously destructive and perverse with evolution.

Now we need a total revolution of the consciousness.

We need to decapitate and dissolve the "I"

We need to incarnate the Immolated Lamb.

"And I heard the number of them which were sealed: and there were sealed an hundred and forty and four thousand of all the tribes of the children of Israel."

18. The Seventh Seal

Revelation 8: 1 to 13: "And when he had opened the seventh seal, there were silence in heaven about the space of half an hour."

The Adorable Saviour of the World confesses the sins of humanity before his Father, and before his angels. This great orphan (humanity) must enter into the Hospital of the Angels.

The Divine Spouse wants to save his children. The tenebrous ones want to take away his little children, but He gathered his children together under his loving arms, even as a hen gathered her chickens under her wings.

The fact of this matter is to extract a cancerous tumour from within the womb of this great orphan.

"And... there was silence in heaven about the space of half an hour." Inevitably, this scientific operation is very painful.

There will be some survivors from the Great Catastrophe, and there will be silence about the space of half an hour. A very short space of time, but enough, so much as to secretly save the Just Ones.

The great Apocalyptic events take place at the shores of the immense sea of life.

"And I saw the seven angels (Gabriel, Raphael, Uriel, Michael, Samael, Zachariel, Oriphiel) which stood before God; and to them were given seven trumpets.

"And another angel came and stood at the altar, having a golden censer and there was given unto him much incense that he should offer it with the prayers of all saints upon the golden altar which was before the throne.

"And the smoke of the incense which came with the prayers of the saints, ascended up before God out of the angel's hand." The Saints will be cruelly persecuted by the atheists; these Saints will have to do much praying.

"And the angel took the censer, and filled it with the fire of the altar, and cast it into the earth: and there were voices, and thunderings, and lightnings, and an earthquake."

Then the Gnostics will be persecuted to death. "And this Gospel of the Kingdom shall be preached in all the world for a witness unto all nations: and then shall the end come." (Matthew 24: 14)

The materialistic, atheistic enemies of the Eternal One are filled with false science.

These atheists will persecute the Gnostics with great fury. Sexual magic is mortally hated by these atheists. Therefore, this will be their reason to persecute the Gnostics to death.

Sex is the door of Eden, and the enemies of the Eternal One do not want the people to enter through this door.

The Gnostics will multiply themselves to the millions, but they will be cruelly persecuted and hated.

"And the seven angels which had the seven trumpets prepared themselves to sound."

"The first angel (Gabriel) sounded, and there followed hail and fire mingled with blood, and they were cast upon earth: and the third part of the trees was burnt up, and all green grass was burnt up"

The stone of the philosophers is sex. The ancients worshipped the Sun under the figure of a black stone, which they named Heliogabalus.

Our Adorable Saviour taught us, to build upon the living rock. Therefore, the Adorable One said to Peter: "Thou art Peter, (Petros), and upon this rock (petra) I will build my church." (Matthew 16: 18).

The Philosophical Stone is the foundation of science, philosophy and religion.

"It may be said therefore that the Philosophical Stone is square in every sense, like the heavenly Jerusalem of St John; that one of its sides is inscribed with the name of Adam and the other with that of Eve, and the two others those of Azoth and INRI." (Eliphas Levi)

The Philosophical Stone is very sacred.

This sacred stone has been profaned by the science of the Anti-Christ. Unveiled sanctuary...Profaned sanctuary!

The precious stones of the temple are very sacred. All Masters are children of these sacred stones.

None of the Galen (male Physicians) should touch the stones of the temple. Sick women should be attended by female physicians.

Nonetheless, the times of the end have arrived, and when the first angel sounded his trumpet, there was hail and fire mingled with blood. Iced waters mingled with fire and blood, or, in other words, SCIENCE, BLOOD and PASSION.

The temple of science was profaned by the Anti-Christ, and the followers of Esculapius committed fornication arid adultery with the poor sick women. "And all green grass was burnt up," that is to say, every honour was raped.

The sacred Caduceus of Mercury fell on the floor of the temple and smashed into pieces.

The spikes of science have already ripened and human beings will now harvest with full hands the poisonous fruits of desire. The trumpet of the regent angel of the Moon has sounded.

"And the second angel (Raphael) sounded, and as it were a great mountain burning with fire was cast into the sea: (this mountain is the head of the whole of humanity) and the third part of the sea became blood, Entire billions of human beings will perish."

Before the Great Cataclysm, the karmic debts of each and every human being will be precisely inspected.

Exact mathematical calculations will be performed before the Great Cataclysm.

The number is holy, is infinite, is eternal. Everything is directed by the holy number.

Therefore, after the inspection of all debts in the books, and when the mathematical calculations are done, then the Great Catastrophe will come.

"And the third part of the creatures which were in the sea, and had life, died, and the third part of the ships were destroyed." Entire billions of human beings will perish.

It is understood that the perfect triangle is what is meant by "the third part", because the Great Catastrophe which is approaching has a triple consequence: physical, psychological and spiritual.

The physical, psychological and spiritual worlds conjointly correspond with each other through the thirty two paths of Light, which are the sacred steps of the holy ladder.

Raphael, the regent angel of Mercury has sounded his trumpet, and the mathematical calculations are being made within the internal Temples of Karma.

The BODDHISATTWA of the angel Raphael is incarnated, but disgracefully this Boddhisattwa is now fallen.

Nevertheless, this humble Boddhisattwa is presently struggling in order to rise up again.

"And the third angel (Uriel) sounded, and there fell a great star from heaven, (the Star of Bitterness) burning as it were a lamp, and it fell upon the third part of the rivers, and upon the fountains of waters;

"And the name of the star is called Wormwood (bitterness): and the third part of the waters became wormwood; and many men died of the waters, because they were made bitter."

The angel of Venus has sounded his trumpet. Every event is of a triple consequence. The Star of Bitterness is of a triple consequence. The three worlds: physical, psychological and spiritual correspond to each other through the thirty two paths of Light, which are the sacred steps of the holy ladder.

Father, Mother and Son are a perfect Ternary. Every home became full of bitterness. This ternary is: fecundity, generation, nature.

The waters are families, crowds, countries and tongues.

"The waters became Wormwood" because all homes on the earth became filled with fornication, hatred, adultery and very great tribulation.

"And the fourth angel (Michael) sounded, and the third part of the sun was smitten, and the third part of the moon, and the third part of the stars; so as the third part of them was darkened, and the day shone not for a third part of it, and the night likewise."

All cosmic events have a triple consequence: The law of the triangle governs every cosmic manifestation.

The highest zones of the terrestrial atmosphere will be totally altered by atomic explosions. Then, as a logical consequence, these zones will not filtrate and segregate the rays of the sun, moon and stars.

Soon, we will see the sun black as a sackcloth of hair and the moon as blood. Therefore, the stars will become darkened.

There will be no light, and a ferruginous reddish colour will cover the face of the earth.

All of these great cosmic events are always of a triple consequence. The law of the triangle governs the whole of creation.

Terrible earthquakes and great seaquakes will occur because of the complete alteration of the superior zones of the terrestrial atmosphere.

The ocean will have a mysterious and strange sound. Monstrous and terrible tidal waves will strike the beaches.

Many cities will become a mass of ruins because of the movements of the earthquakes.

Radioactivity will increase each day, and with it many epidemics and unknown sicknesses will appear, as well as famine, misery and terrible tribulation.

The plantations will be lost and even the fish of the sea will perish.

"But, woe unto them that are with child, and to them that give suck in those days! For there shall be great distress in the land, and wrath upon this people.

"And there shall be signs in the sun, and in the moon, and in the stars; and upon the earth distress of nations, with perplexity; the sea and the waves roaring.

"Men's hearts failing them for fear, and for looking after those things which are coming on the earth: for the powers of heaven shall be shaken." (Luke 21: 23,24,26)

"And I beheld, and heard an angel flying through the midst of heaven, saying with a loud voice, Woe, woe, to the inhabiters of the earth by reason of the other voices of the trumpet of the three angels, which are yet to sound!"

The prince of this world is that "I", that Ego, that Myself which all of us carry within.

This "I", with its fatal mind, supposes that the Aquarian Age will be a comfortable age without any type of problems and full of great securities, since the prince of this world is a distinguished lord of commodities!

Woe to the dwellers of the earth, the Age of Aquarius is approaching, and the ray of justice will fall upon "BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH."

AQUARIUS has influence over the terrestrial atmosphere, and Peter the chief of the Apostolic College said: "But the Day of the Lord will come as a thief in the night; in which the heavens shall pass away with great noise, and the elements shall melt with fervent heat, the earth also and the works that are therein shall be burned up." (Second Epistle of Peter 3:10)

Aquarius signifies the end for this Great Babylon. The times of the end have arrived. The second coming of Christ signifies total revolution upon the face of the earth.

The ancient earth was destroyed by water.

This earth which is inhabited by the Arian Root Race will be destroyed by the fire of Aquarius.

The just ones must not be afraid; they will be secretly saved before the Great Cataclysm.

Lot, the just one, was taken away from Sodom when Sodom and Gomorrah were going to be destroyed by the terrifying fire of the volcanoes of the earth.

The just ones will be secretly evacuated from this Great Babylon.

The just ones will not be punished because of the sinners, this only happened once before, and that time is already in the past.

19. The Fifth Angel

Revelation 9: 1 to 12: "And the fifth angel (Samael) sounded, and I saw a star fall from heaven unto the earth: and to him was given the key of the bottomless pit."

Since the year 1950 a gigantic world has been approaching our planet earth. This star has already fallen over the planet earth, and to this star was given the key to the bottomless pit.

What we want to say with this is that the electro-magnetic waves of this gigantic star have already touched the axis of the earth.

The key to the bottomless pit was given to this gigantic world.

The inferior animal psyche of this gigantic planetary bolder acts upon this terrestrial humanity by sucking, absorbing, attracting all of those billions of souls who do not have the sign of God on their foreheads.

This star acts from the bottom of the abyss, attracting billions of human beings.

The key to the bottomless pit was given to this star. Since the year 1950, billions of human souls have been entering into the abyss. The bottomless pit (the abyss) has been opened since the year 1950.

The symbol of that star is the Radiant Cross! When the sheep will become separated from the goats, then the Cross of the Redeemer will triumph.

This gigantic world will be visible for the whole world within a few years.

This star "opened the bottomless pit; and there arose a smoke out of the pit, as the smoke of a great furnace; and the sun and the air were darkened by reason of the smoke of the pit.

"And there came out of the smoke locusts upon the earth; and unto them was given power, as the scorpions of the earth have power.

"And it was commanded them that they should not hurt the grass of the earth, neither any green thing, neither any tree; but only those men which have not the seal of God in their foreheads."

The locusts which come out of the smoke of the abyss are human demons, the psychological "I" of each human being. These human demons are the vultures of war, those potentates of gold and silver, the merchants of souls and bodies, perfumes and riches, as well as the lords of politics, the great diplomats, the materialistic scientists, the lords of the atomic bomb and of the hydrogen bomb, etc.

These human demons, with or without physical bodies, torment each other in the cities and within the abyss. "And to them it was given that they should not kill them, but that they should be tormented five months: and their torment was as the torment of a scorpion, when he striketh a man."

The number five is the number of rigour and of the Law, it is also the number of Mars and of war. Therefore, the two words "five months" are symbolic.

Presently, we are in the days of great affliction. Woe to the dwellers of the earth, since the times of the end have arrived!

"And in those days (these days) shall men seek death (within the abyss), and shall to find it; and shall desire to die, and death shall flee from them."

Life within the abyss is the same as this life which we have in the physical plane, but it is millions of times more horrible, more tenebrous, more materialistic and more dense.

The human beings live within the abyss with their astral body. They torment each other and desire to die, but death flees from them.

Urban life in its entirety becomes millions of times more gross and terribly materialistic when it is transplanted into the abyss. Therefore, the human beings desire to die, but death flees from them.

"And the shape of the locusts were like unto horses prepared unto battle; and on their heads were as it were crowns like gold, and their faces were as the faces of men."

"Lo and Behold, the psychological "I" of each human being: the vultures of war, the heads of States, the sly diplomats, the great Generals.

"And they had hair as the hair of women, (filled with false sweetness and refined hypocrisy) and their teeth were as the teeth of lions."

"And they had breastplates, as it were breastplates of iron; and the sound of their wings (airplanes) was as the sound of chariots of many horses running to battle."

"And they had tails like unto scorpions, and there were stings in their tails; (powerful armies which are armed with STINGS, atomic bombs, tele-electronically directed rockets, hydrogen bombs, etc.) and their power was to hurt men five months." Thus, this is how all nations will pay their karmic debts.

Thus, this is how the civil and military heads of States of the whole world, those diplomatic gentlemen, the great ones of the earth, have "tails like unto scorpions, and there were stings in their tails"

Lo and behold the great military forces of the East and West, the military power, the heads of states, the great generals, the great diplomats, the powerful men of the earth in this twentieth century, in this day and age.

"And they had a king over them, which is the angel of the bottomless pit, whose name in the Hebrew tongue is ABBADON, but in the Greek tongue hath his name APOLLYON.

"One woe is past; and behold, there come two woes more hereafter."

20. The Sixth Trumpet

Revelation 9: 13 to 21: "And the sixth angel sounded, and I heard a voice from the four horns of the golden altar which is before God." This golden altar is the man, the woman, the fire and the water: IODHE VAUHE. The altar of God is nature.

"Saying to the sixth angel (Zachariel) which had the trumpet, Loose the four angels which are bound in the great river Euphrates." These are the four Devarajas who govern the four winds.

"And the four angels were loosed, which were prepared for an hour, and a day, and a month, and a year, for to slay the third part of men."

The four angels of the four cardinal points of the *earth "which were prepared for an hour, and a day, and a month, and a year"* will be let loose with the hydrogen bomb. Therefore, elements unknown to the human being will become unleashed and human science will not be able to control them.

The hydrogen bomb will be the PANDEMONIUM!

"And the number of the army of the horsemen were two hundred thousand thousand: and I heard the number of them."

The number 200,000,000, gives us the second Arcanum of the Tarot, when its numbers are Qabbalisticaly added together. The second Arcanum is the woman, the Priestess, occult science.

The number "2" is nature, and this great nature will be tremendously agitated by great cataclysms.

The dreadful and terrible cataclysms of the times of the end will be produced by atomic power and the hydrogen bomb. Unknown elements from nature will be released with the hydrogen Bomb, and nobody will be capable of controlling them.

The human armies, armed with atomic power, tele-electronically controlled rockets, hydrogen bombs, etc. will wound this great nature.

Therefore, woe to the dwellers of the earth! "And thus I saw the horses in the vision, and them that sat on them having breastplates of fire, and of jacinth, and brimstone: and the heads of the horses were as the heads of lions; and out of their mouths issued fire and smoke and brimstone." These horses and they who sat on them are nations, crowds and tongues.

Therefore, fire of passion, smoke of laziness and brimstone of pain is issued out of the mouths of the dwellers of the earth.

Rajas and Tamas brings sicknesses, pain, darkness, desperation, wars, famine, crowded hospitals, etc.

Rajas is emotion, passion. Tamas is inertia, laziness.

"By these three was the third part of men killed, by the fire, and by the smoke, and by the brimstone, which issued out of their mouths."

Woe to the dwellers of the earth! Woe to the scientists of the Anti-Christ! Woe to the vultures of war!

"For their power is in their mouth, (which speaks blasphemies) and in their tails: for their tails were like unto serpents, and had heads, and with them they do hurt." These are the demons of this Great Babylon: human-demons.

"And the rest of the men which were not killed by these plagues yet repented not of the works of their hands, that they should not worship devils, and idols of gold, and silver, and brass, and stone, and of wood: which neither can see, nor hear, not walk:

"Neither repented they of their murders, nor of their sorceries, nor of their fornication, nor of their thefts."

The times of the end have arrived and we are in them.

The day and hour of the times of the end are hidden within the Qabbalistic mystery of the Arcanum 2,500.

21. The Seventh Trumpet

Revelation 10: 1 to 11: "And I saw another mighty angel come down from heaven, clothed with a cloud; and a rainbow was upon his head, and his face was as it were the sun, and his feet as pillars of fire:" This angel is Oriphiel, the Genie of Saturn.

"And he had in his hand a little book open: and he set his right foot upon the sea, and his left foot on the earth."

"And cried with a loud voice, as when a lion roareth: and when he had cried, seven thunders uttered their voices." These seven thunders are the sublime voices of the seven Spirits before the throne, the seven Potencies of nature.

"And when the seven thunders had uttered their voices, I was about to write: and I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Seal up those things which the seven thunders uttered, and write them not."

"And the angel which I saw stand upon the sea and upon the earth lifted up his hand to heaven."

"And sware by him that liveth for ever and ever, who created heaven, and the things that therein are, and the earth, and the things that therein are, and the sea, and the things that are therein, that there should be time no longer:

"But in the days of the voice of the seventh angel, when he shall begin to sound, the mystery of God should be finished, as he had declared to his servants the prophets."

Oriphiel, the Genie of Saturn, is the last, and is the one who harvests the life of human beings and nations with his scythe. "Many are called and few are chosen"

Really, the ones who will be victoriously seated at the table of the Lord will be few, because this tenebrous humanity has sunk within the abyss.

"And the voice which I heard from heaven spake unto me again, and said, Go and take the little book which is open in the hand of the angel which standeth upon the sea and upon the earth.

"And I went unto the angel, and said unto him, Give me the little book. And he said unto me. Take it, and eat it up; and it shall make thy belly bitter, but it shall be in thy mouth sweet as honey.

"And I took the little book out of the angel's hand, and ate it up; and it was in my mouth sweet as honey: and as soon as I had eaten it, my belly was bitter.

"And he said unto me, Thou must prophesy again before many peoples, and nations, and tongues, and kings."

Certainly, in the days of the seventh angel, the mystery of God will be finished, as he had declared to his servants, the prophets. Let us now see what the Sacred Book of Koran says:

"The heavenly wrath shall come. No one will able to stop it. The heavens shall shake violently and the Mountains move and end crashing against the earth.

"Woe to them in that day, the ones who have accused the apostles of falsehood. Woe to those who have passed their lives in foolish and senseless arguments and discussions. Throw yourself into the fire, shall be commanded to them.

"Behold the fire of which reality thou denyest. Victims of the fire thou shall be, thou shall cry or curse or shout maledictions; or shall suffer with resignation; thy fate shall not change.

"Thou have only the just reward for thy actions," (Verses from Koran.)

Truly, the book of prophesy is sweet as honey in the mouth and bitter within the belly. The "JINN" paradises (the lands of the fourth dimension), where the divine humanity abides, will be opened in the days of the seventh angel.

The Garden of Delights are the "JINN" paradises; the just ones will abide in these lands.

"The chosen ones will be closer to the Eternal One. They shall dwell in the Garden of Delights.

Great number of Elders. And some youth shall be happy guests.

"They shall recline in couches of gold and precious jewels. They shall look to each other with affection. They shall be served by children possessing eternal youth. And they shall offer exquisite wine in cups of different forms (the wine of light of the Alchemist). Its vapour shall not go to their heads nor shall cloud their reason.

"They shall have with discretion the fruits that they desire; and the meats of fowls most rare. Beside them shall be Houries (lovely maidens) with beautiful dark eyes. The pallor of their skins like the lustre of pearls. Their favours shall be to them the just reward of their virtue.

"The senseless conversations shall have no place there in such a mansion. In their hearts shall dwell no evil. The only name that shall be heard there shall be PEACE.

"How happy shall be the ones that will be in the right side! They shall stroll among plants without thorns. And through plantains harmoniously arranged. They will enjoy their thick foliage. By the singing brooks.

"There are multitudes of diverse fruits offering themselves to the hand that desires to reach for them. They shall rest in elevated couches.

"Their wives shall be of a special creation. They shall be virgins. They shall love them and shall enjoy the same youth as them" (Verses 11 to 36, chapter LVI of Koran).

In the days of the seventh angel, the kingdom of God will be finished as He told his servants, the prophets. The "JINN" paradises, where divine humanity dwells, will be opened.

"The just shall be guests of the Mansion of Delights. Lying in their nuptial couches shall they direct their vision anywhere.

"In their foreheads shall shine their joy. They shall drink an exquisite sealed wine (the wine of light of the Alchemist) The seal shall be the Almizcle. Whoever desires this happiness must strive to deserve it. This wine will be mixed with the Tasnim 's water. Precious fountain where the ones that will be closer to the Eternal will quench their thirst." (Verses 22 to 28, chapter LXXXIII, Koran)

This Almizcle which is the origin of the seal of the Great Joy is the semen. The wine of light of the Alchemist is mixed with the Tasnim's water, and this pure water of life is the christonic semen.

To transmute the water into wine is necessary. We must not spill these pure waters of life.

There must be sexual connection, but we have to withdraw before the spasm in order to avoid the seminal ejaculation. Thus, this is how we become Gods and enter into the Garden of Delights.

The semen is the precious fountain of life. "Precious fountain where the ones that will be closer to the Eternal will quench their thirst."

Really, this is why Mohammed with right justice said: "The seal shall be the Aim izcle, and who ever desires it shall strive to deserve it." This striving is only possible with sexual magic. This is the Arcanum A.Z.F.

Those who desire to enter into the Garden of Delights must never ever in their life spill the semen.

The sacred phallus must enter to join the uterus, but the semen must not be spilled. "Because strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leadeth unto life." This is the clue in order to awake the Kundalini.

The Arcanum A.Z. F. is for the evil ones a stumbling stone, and a rock of offence.

We departed from the "JINN" paradises through the door of sex, and only through this door can we return into the Garden of Delights.

In the days of the seventh angel, only those who accept the Arcanum A.Z.F. will abide within the Garden of Delights. This is why Mohammed said the following:

"The true servants of God enjoy the happiness. Will have Chosen foods. And exquisite fruits. Shall be served with honour."

"The gardens of voluptuousness will be their home. Full of mutual blissfulness they shall repose in their nuptial couches".

"Cups of pure water will be offered to them. Clean and of a delicious flavour." This pure water is the semen.

"They shall not blush in their face nor shall be insensible. Beside them shall be intact virgins. And shall humbly lower their eyes." (Verses 39-47, Chapter XXXVII, Koran)

Truly, God shines upon the perfect couple.

Man and woman were born to love each other.

JOYFUL ARE THE BEINGS WHO KNOW HOW TO LOVE EACH OTHER!

22. The Two Witnesses

Revelation 11: 1 to 19: "And there was given me a reed like unto a rod. (the staff of Brahma, the rod of Aaron, symbol of the Spinal Medulla and of its marvellous medullar canal. The ascending flux of the creative energy of the Holy Spirit along the medullar canal converts us into Gods) and the angel stood saying, Rise, and measure the temple of God, and the altar, and them that worship therein."

The human being is the temple of God and this temple has to be measured with a reed. If the Initiation is what you seek, then write this Initiation upon a rod.

"But the court which is without the temple leave out, and measure it not; for it is given unto the Gentiles: and the holy city shall they tread under foot forty and two months."

Certainly, the court which is without the temple is the court of the profane people, the court of the fornicators. They will tread under foot the Holy City for forty and two months; they profane the Sacred City of nine doors.

This Holy City is the human being, and the Ninth Sphere or the ninth door is the sex. The fornicators have tread under foot the Holy City for forty and two months.

The science of the numbers show us that 4+2=6. The Qabbalists know that the sixth Arcanum of the tarot is the Lover. SIX is also the number of the Great Harlot which is repeated three times: 666.

"And I will give power unto my two witnesses, and they shall prophesy a thousand two hundred and threescore days, clothed in sackcloth."

We write this quantity in the following way: 1,260, and if we make the Qabbalistic addition of the numbers among themselves, we have the following result: 1+2+6+0=9. Nine is the Ninth Sphere. This Ninth Sphere is the sex.

The great Master HILARIUX IX said that in ancient times, to descend into the Ninth Sphere was the maximum ordeal for the supreme dignity of the Hierophant. Hermes, Buddha, Jesus Christ, Dante, Zoroaster, Mohammed, Rama, Krishna, Pythagoras, Plato and many others, had to descend into the Ninth Sphere in order to work with the fire and the water which is the origin of worlds, beasts, human beings and Gods. Every authentic white Initiation begins here.

The fire and the water rise through two sympathetic chords which are entwined around the spinal medulla. In the East, these two witnesses are Ida and Pingala.

F + W = C. Fire plus water equals consciousness. The fire and the water produce the awakening of the cosmic consciousness. Thus, this is how we prophesy for a thousand two hundred and threescore days, clothed in sackcloth and doing much fasting and penance.

Through these two sympathetic chords which are the two witnesses is where the fire and the water of the sex ascend.

"These are the two olive trees, and the two candlesticks standing before the God of the earth (our INTERNAL GOD)"

"And if any man will hurt them, fire proceedeth out of their mouth, and devoureth their enemies: and if any man will hurt them, he must in this manner be killed."

These two witnesses produce the awakening of the Kundalini. Then, we receive the Flaming Sword which threateningly turns every way to keep the way of the tree of life.

It was necessary for the Lord to be killed in this manner. Now we must resuscitate Him within ourselves. The two witnesses have the power to kill and give life.

"These have power to shut heaven, that it rain not in the days of their prophesy: and have power over waters to turn them to blood, and to smite the earth with all plagues as often as they will."

If the sacred serpent ascends, it opens heaven, but if it descends, it shuts heaven. The waters are turned to blood when we fornicate, and the affliction of the abyss is more terrible than death.

Fornication is the sin against the Holy Spirit. Whosoever fornicates sins against their own body. Thus, this is the way in which this fornicating humanity is often smitten with all plagues.

Whosoever spills the semen (reaching the orgasm) is a fornicator, even if they are officially married.

These two witnesses have the power of awakening the Kundalini (this is the fire of Pentecost).

"And when they shall have finished their testimony, the beast that ascendeth Out of the bottomless pit shall make war against them, and shall overcome them, and kill them.

"And their dead bodies shall lie in the Street of the great city, which spiritually is called Sodom and Egypt, where also our Lord was crucified."

The prophets prophesied in ancient times. Then, the two witnesses gave their testimony and they announced the times of the end. These two witnesses also gave testimony of the Light, and this Light came into the darkness, but the darkness knew it not.

The beast that ascended out of the bottomless pit, that Satan which everybody carries inside, made war against them, overcame them and killed them, because this humanity delivered themselves to fornication.

The bodies of these two witnesses lay in the street of this Great City which is "BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH", which is spiritually called Sodom and Egypt, where also our Lord was crucified. This is this valley of bitterness where this humanity (the Great Harlot) lives.

"And they of the people and kindreds and tongues and nations shall see their dead bodies three days and an half and shall not suffer their dead bodies to be put in graves."

Jesus Christ the Great HIEROPHANT said: "I am able to destroy the temple of God, and to build it in three days." (Matthew 26: 61)

The body of the Saviour of the world remained three days within its holy sepulchre. The prophet Jonah was three days inside the belly of the whale.

Actually, the bodies of the two witnesses still do not deserve to descend into the holy sepulchre, because they are filled with fornication. Since this humanity delivered themselves to fornication, their two witnesses are dead.

"And they that dwell upon the earth shall rejoice over them, and make merry, and shall send gifts one to another; because these two prophets tormented them that dwelt on the earth."

The words of the prophets are a torment for the dwellers of the earth.

"And after three days and an half the spirit of life from God entered into them, and they stood upon their feet; and great fear fell upon them which saw them."

These three days symbolize the THRICE-SPIRIT of the human being, the perfect Holy Trinity. The resurrection of the dead comes after the third day.

We have suffered much for three days, now the two witnesses will resurrect.

"And they heard a great voice from heaven saying unto them, Come up hither. And they ascended up to heaven in a cloud; and their enemies beheld them."

Now, these two witnesses are ascending with the Arcanum A.Z.F. because we are in the times of the end. This is the epoch of the accomplishment of this prophecy.

The resurrection of these two witnesses is absolutely a sexual problem.

These two witnesses resurrect when the man and the woman know how to withdraw from the sexual act without spilling the entity of semen (reaching the orgasm). Thus, this is how the force of the Holy Spirit ascends inwards and upwards through these two witnesses.

So, these two witnesses are the two marvellous sympathetic canals of our creative energy. The times of the end have arrived!

The divulging of the Great Arcanum, the resurrection of the Two Witnesses and the final Great Cataclysm, stamp with exactitude the end of this Arian Root Race.

The human being who will not accept this scientific chastity will sink into the abyss.

A dreadful cataclysm will occur. However, not a single human being can know the date of that day and hour.

A planetary collision will occur, a collision of worlds, and only those who have made their two witnesses resurrect within themselves will be saved.

"And the same hour was there a great earthquake, and the tenth part of the city fell, and in the earthquake were slain of men seven thousand: and the remnant were affrighted, and gave glory to the God of heaven."

A tenth part of this great Babylon will fall. Thus, this is how the wheel of destiny will turn and this Great Harlot (humanity) will sink into the abyss.

The number 10 is the wheel of Destiny, the tenth Arcanum of the Tarot.

"... And in the earthquake were slain of men seven thousand". This is the seventh Arcanum, which is expiation, karma, punishment.

Certainly, the Great Harlot will die, all lineages, nations and tongues, as many as the sands of the sea.

The two witnesses will talk before the great cataclysm which is approaching.

Before the dreadful catastrophe which is approaching, the heavens will pass away with a great noise and the human multitudes from Mars, Mercury, Venus and other planets will come in their cosmic ships to the planet Earth.

These Brethren humanities from other planets will come in order to teach us Law and Order.

So, we will have the opportunity of listening to the words of the Son of Man,

Then...Woe to those who will abhor the Son of Man! Woe to those who abhor the great Arcanum...Woe to those who will continue spilling the semen!

The human beings of this planet Earth have thrown themselves into the conquering of space, and soon they will knock the doors of other inhabited worlds with their ships.

The consequences of their audacity will be the answer of the Son of Man. Then, "behold, he cometh with clouds; and every eye shall see him."

The Son of Man is the divine humanity. The Son of Man is represented by the superior multitudes of other inhabited worlds.

Every cosmic rocket launched up into space is placing us closer to this great cosmic event Then, Woe to those who will not accept the last words of the Son of Man!

Afterwards, the great cataclysm will occur!

"The second woe is past; and behold, the third woe come quickly.

"And the seventh angel sounded; and there were great voices in heaven, saying, The kingdoms of this world are become the kingdoms of our Lord, and of his Christ; and he shall reign for ever and ever.

"And the four and twenty elders, which sat before God on their seats, fell upon their faces, and worshipped God,

"Saying, we give thee thanks, O Lord God Almighty, which art, and wast, and art to come, because thou hast taken to thee thy great power, and hast reigned.

"And the nations were angry, and the wrath is come, and the time of the dead, that they should be judge, and that shouldest give reward unto thy servants the prophets, and to the saints, and them that fear thy name, small and great; and shouldest destroy them which destroy the earth." These are the vultures of war and the scientists of the Antichrist.

The final judgement has already occurred. It took place on the 12th of April, 1950. Then, the Gods judged the Great Harlot (this humanity) and considered it unworthy.

The sentence of the Gods was: To the abyss! To the abyss! To the abyss!

This planet Earth will pass through a process of planetary disintegration and integration.

Nobody knows the day and the hour but the Father.

"And the temple of God was opened in heaven, and there was seen in his temple the ark of his testament: and there were lightnings, and voices, and thunderings, and an earthquake, and great hail."

The ark of His testament is the sex. This ark of His testament is the ark of science, the ark of testimony, as well as the ark of alliance.

The Rod of Aaron which is the symbol of the phallus, and the Cup or Omer filled with the manna which is the symbol of the uterus, are inside the ark of his testament. (See Exodus 16: 3 1-36).

The key of all powers is found in the union of the phallus and the uterus.

The tablets of the Law are also inside the ark of science. Whosoever violates the divine Decalogue will sink into the abyss.

To achieve the miracle of our salvation is only possible through the ark of His testament.

23. The Woman And The Dragon

Revelation 12: 1 to 17: "And there appeared a great wonder in heaven: a woman clothed with the sun, and the moon under her feet, and upon her head a crown of twelve stars:

"And she being with child cried, availing in birth, and pained to be delivered."

We the brethren teach to the human being how to build the temple with this great wonder which appeared in heaven in the times of the end.

This temple must be built upon the living rock, but this rock is filled with cactuses with sharp thorns which hurt the flesh.

The Son of Man is always born from the womb of a virgin.

Our Adorable Saviour bleeding upon his cross, taught us the secret of the woman clothed with the sun, and the Venustic Initiation.

"When Jesus therefore saw his mother, and the disciple standing by, whom he loved, he saith unto his mother, Woman, behold thy son! (John 19: 26).

Then saith he to the disciple, "Behold thy mother! and from that hour that disciple took her unto his own home." (John 19: 27)

The name of this disciple was JOHN, which is a name the sound of which must be divided into five vowels in the following way: I.E.O.U.A.N. JOHN is the VERB, JOHN is the son who is always born from the womb of a woman.

What we want to say with the former statement is that only by practicing sexual magic can we incarnate Christ within ourselves.

We will attain the Venustic Initiation only by working with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The Verb, Christ, is always born from immaculate conceptions. The Son of Man is always the son of a Virgin Mother.

This woman clothed with the sun, crowned with twelve stars, and the moon under her feet, is any woman who has reached the achievement of the secret degree of Virgin Mother. This is the Urania-Venus, the Queen of Heaven, who being with child cried, travailing in birth, and pained to be delivered.

"And there appeared another wonder in heaven; and behold a great red dragon, having seven heads and ten horns, and seven crowns upon his heads."

This tenebrous dragon turns along with the wheel of the centuries. This dragon from darkness ascended from the abyss, and with the turn of the wheel this dragon will fall into the abyss.

This dragon from the abyss is the evil of the world, the Black Lodge, the secret enemy with his terrible evilness.

We will expiate our error with the number seven. The ten horns of the dragon are the symbol of the wheel of destiny. This wheel will turn and this beast will sink into the abyss.

The times of the end have arrived, and nobody knows with exactitude how many years these times of the end will endure.

This dragon of darkness is the Prince of this world. This dragon of darkness is the psychological "I", the myself, the ego which all of us carry inside. In short, it is Satan.

"And his tail drew the third part of the stars of heaven, and did cast them to the earth: and the dragon stood before the woman which was ready to be delivered, for to devour her child as soon as it was born."

Certainly, thousands of Boddhisattwas have fallen during this age of iron. So, the dragon of darkness stands before the woman in order to devour her child. The secret enemy wants to devour us.

Nirvana has epochs of activity and epochs of profound repose.

Since February 19th, 1919, Nirvana entered into activity, because the times of the end have arrived and we need help.

On February 19th, at 4:00 pm, the Virgins of Nirvana began to be born. Now, millions of Virgins from Nirvana are reincarnating in order to help us.

Now, it is amazing to contemplate these reincarnated Virgins who are living as simple maidens, as humble house maids.

This is the great wonder which appeared in heaven, this is Venus-Urania, the woman clothed with the sun and the moon under her feet.

She was born in order to be a Virgin Mother. This degree of Virgin is the Buddhic state.

This Virgin Mother being with child cried, travailing in birth, and pained to be delivered, and the dragon of darkness wants to devour her child in order to impede the incarnation of Christ within ourselves.

The Anti-Christ abhors the Arcanum A.Z.F., and he does not want the Christ to be born within ourselves. "Many are called and few are chosen."

Christ is born within the heart of the human being in the long nights of winter.

The Saviour is born in the manger of the world in nights of bitterness, darkness and tears.

"And she brought forth a man child, who was to rule all nations with a rod of iron: and her child was caught up unto God, and to his throne."

This woman clothed with the sun, crowned with twelve stars, and the moon under her feet, always brings forth a man child, the Son of Man, who, in these times of the end, is very strong and must rule all nations with a rod of iron. Certainly, the Son of Man is caught up unto God and His throne.

"And the woman fled into the wilderness, where she had a place prepared of God, that they should feed her there a thousand two hundred and threescore days."

Every Virgin Mother lives in her own wilderness, far away from the world, the demon and the flesh.

These Virgin Mothers create for themselves their own wilderness while they live in the world.

The Qabbalistic quantity 1,260, breaks down in this way: 1+2+6+0=9. Certainly, 9 is the Ninth Sphere, the sex.

The Son of Man is born from within the fire and the water of the Ninth Sphere. It is here in this Ninth Sphere where every woman who has achieved the esoteric degree of Virgin is preserved for a thousand, two hundred and threescore days.

"And there was war in heaven: Michael and his angels fought against the dragon; and the dragon fought and his angels."

So, Michael and all of us the Brethren of the Ray of Strength fought against the dragon of darkness and against the tenebrous legions of the Black Lodge.

This fight against the dragon and his black angels began precisely in the year 1950.

"And prevailed not; neither was their place found any more in heaven."

These battles within the internal worlds between the legions of light and the legions of darkness have been terrible and dreadful.

"And the great dragon was cast out, that old serpent called the Devil, and Satan, which deceiveth the whole world: he was cast our into the earth, and his angels were cast out with him."

The great Black Lodge and all of its leftist hand Adepts normally abided within the distinct atomic regions of nature.

As of the year 1950, the great battle between the White Lodge and the Black Lodge began.

So, since the year 1950, the henchmen of Lucifer and Ariman, the followers of Bons and Dugppas, who are the enemies of the fourth path, along with the Nicolaitans and the Tantric Anagarikas, have been entering into the abyss.

Certainly, the Avitchi of the Hindustani is the same abyss. This abyss is also the Klipoth of the Qabbalah. These Klipoth are atomic, tenebrous and sublunar.

The antithesis of these Klipoth is a super-divine atom which is related with the church of Laodicea or the lotus of one thousand petals.

We are this super-divine atom, when inwardly arriving to our final synthesis. The name of this atom is the "AIN SOPH."

This Am Soph is our atomic star. This star shines full with glory within the Abstract Absolute Space.

Kether, Chokmah and Binah, emanate from this star, that is to say, the Father, the Son and the Holy Spirit of each human being emanate from this star.

The abyss is the antithesis of the "AIN SOPH." The abyss is the fatal shadow of the Ain Soph.

This Am Soph is omniscience and happiness.

The tenebrous of the lunar path dwell within the abyss.

"And I heard a loud voice saying in heaven, Now is come salvation, and strength, and the kingdom of our God, and the power of his Christ: for the accuser of our brethren is cast down, which accused them before God day and night."

The accuser of our brethren is the black dragon. The accuser of our brethren, stoned, poisoned and crucified the Prophets. The accuser of our brethren is the Black Lodge.

Now, the saints of the Lord will become victorious. They have defeated Satan.

"And they overcame him by the blood of the Lamb, and by the word of their testimony; and they love not their lives unto the death.

"Therefore rejoice, ye havens, and ye that dwell in them. Woe to the inhabiters of the earth and of the sea! for the devil is come down unto you, having great wrath, because he knoweth that he hath but a short time."

Satan, full of anger, will bring the war between the East and the West.

Full of anger and knowing that he has but a short time, Satan, will precipitate the atomic war.

Wars of death and dreadful cataclysms will occur in this century.

"And when the dragon saw that he was cast out into the earth (and into the abyss), he persecuted the woman which brought forth the man child.

"And to the woman were given two wings of a great eagle, that she might fly into the wilderness into her place, where she is nourished for a time, and times, and a half a time, from the face of the serpent."

In these times of the end, the nirvanic women fly into the wilderness of their own life, far away from the face of the tempting serpent.

Many of these women become nuns for a while. The great majority of them are maids within family houses. Thus, this is how they earn their daily bread. Thus, this is how they serve with humbleness. They have the two wings of the great eagle of the Spirit and fly into the wilderness.

Certainly, these Virgin Mothers suffer the unspeakable, since for them life in this world is a wilderness.

They complain because of lost time, since they do not find a man who wants to christify himself in this terrible wilderness.

So, they remain in their wilderness for a time, and times, and a half a time, that is to say, they remain in their job, their work, for a time (the routine of their job), and times (movements into other houses, offices, jobs) and half a time (the hour, the moment, when in the wilderness of their life, the man for whom they were waiting for appears).

"And the serpent cast out of his mouth water as flood after the woman, that he might cause her to be carried away of the flood.

"And the earth helped the woman, and the earth opened her mouth, and swallowed up the flood which the dragon cast out of his mouth."

The tempting serpent of Eden tempt these women (who are symbols of the woman clothed with the sun) and try to make them sexually fall, but these Virgin Mothers transmute their creative energies and fly high with the two wings of the Spirit.

This philosophical earth, that is to say, this physical organism swallows up the flood which the dragon casts out of his mouth, and transmutes this into light and fire.

This flood is the universal solvent of alchemy, the Lapis Philosophorum, the pure gold or Summa Materia, which is also called Menstruum Universale.

This is the essence which the dragon cast out of his mouth, which we must transmute in order to fly with the two wings of the Spirit as eagles of light.

Thus, this is how the Urania-Venus defends herself from the tempting serpent who made Eve-Venus sin.

There exist various types of women, let us know them:

The first, EVE-VENUS, is the animalistic, instinctive and brutish female.

The second, VENUS-EVE, is the very human female, who loves when she finds a sexually passionate male who knows how to love her.

The third, VENUS-URANIA, is the very human, conscious woman filled with the deepest of both spiritual and human feelings.

The fourth, URANIA-VENUS, is the Mother of the Son of Man, the Virgins of Nirvana. This is the woman clothed with the sun and the moon under her feet. This woman is crowned with twelve stars, which are the symbol of the seven churches and the five senses, in other words, the twelve faculties.

Only the woman can establish justice upon the face of the earth, because she has the power to awake the flaming fire within the man. The clue is found in the Arcanum A.Z.F. The woman is the one who delivers the sword to man. She is the URANIA-VENUS with the sword in her hand.

She is before the Cosmic Scale in the eighth Arcanum. She is the mother of the Son of Man.

She is the one who wants to bruise the head of the tempting serpent in order to tame it and raise it through the medullar canal.

Disgracefully, as Goethe said: "The law of the woeful and severe man acquires, fights and is agitated. What he needs the most is what he knows the least."

The man (human being) needs the Arcanum A.Z.F., but he does not know it. This is what he needs the most, but this is what he knows the least.

Now we, the Brethren of the Temple, teach this Arcanum, but the dwellers of the earth abhor it. URANIA-VENUS is tempted by the dragon, but the dragon is defeated.

"And the dragon was wroth with the woman, and went to make war with the remnant of her seed, which keep the commandments of God, and have the testimony of Jesus Christ."

24. The Two Beasts

Revelation 13: 1 to 18: "And I stood upon the sand of the sea, and saw a beast rise up our of the sea, having seven heads and ten horns, and upon his horns ten crowns, and upon his heads the name of blasphemy."

This beast with seven heads is this fornicating humanity. The ten horns are the wheel of destiny, on which this beast rises up from the abyss and turning, falls again into the abyss.

The ten crowns upon his seven heads signifies that this beast sovereignly reigns during this age of iron or Kali Yuga.

Nevertheless, when the wheel of destiny spins over its axis, this beast will tumble into the precipice.

"And the beast which I saw was like unto a leopard, and his feet were as the feet of a bear, and his mouth as the mouth of a lion: and the dragon gave him his power, and his seat, and great authority.

"And I saw one of his heads as it were wounded to death; and his deadly wound was healed: and all the world wondered after the beast."

We, the Brethren of the Temple saw a new symbol when we examined this wounded head of the beast which was healed.

We saw a man like unto a gorilla, filled with a malignant intelligence. This dreadful and terrible gorilla-man was steering four beasts in front of him, he himself being the fifth.

These four beasts were chained and he was steering them in front of him.

We understand with this symbol that the wounded head is the perverse human being of this fifth Root Race, the human beings of the present.

This malignant race launches a fratricide and barbarian war, and is healed after being mortally wounded. This is why all the world wonders after the beast.

Certainly, also the internal bodies are wounded in the battle. However, they are healed with the help of the Masters of medicine.

"And they worshipped the dragon (Satan) which have power unto the beast: and they worshipped the beast, saying, Who is like unto the beast? who is able to make war with him?"

Everybody in the world believes themselves to be civilized; they worship the beast. Everybody worships the "I", the Myself, that Satan which all of us carry inside.

People live within evilness. Everybody loves the beast, and they wallow in the mud.

"And there was given unto him a mouth speaking great things and blasphemies; and power was given unto him to continue forty and two months." This beast has prominence during the whole Kali Yuga and is reigning with sovereignty. This beast is the Great Harlot whose reign is finishing.

"And he opened his mouth in blasphemy against God, to blaspheme his name (with atheism), and his tabernacle (with fornication), and them that dwell in heaven (the Saints)."

"And it was given unto him to make war with the saints, and to overcome them (many Initiates have fallen): and power was given him over all kindreds, and tongues, and

nations." This entire humanity capitulated before the great beast, which rose up from the abyss and which is already falling into the abyss.

"And all that dwell upon the earth shall worship him, whose names are not written in the book of life of the Lamb slain from the foundation of the world."

In the Koran, the Book of Life is called "Aliin", and this contains the conduct of the just ones and angels.

The Book of the Lost Ones is called with the name of "Syyin" among the Mohammedans.

The good and evil deeds are weighed on the scale of the cosmic justice.

Those who are not written in the Book of life are already sinking within the dreadful abyss.

Only the Gnostic faith can save the lost ones.

The Lamb has been slain from the foundation of the world because we committed fornication.

Now we must resurrect the Lamb within ourselves with the Arcanum A.Z.F. This Arcanum is sexual magic.

"If any man have an ear, let him hear."

"He that leadeth into captivity shall go into captivity: he that killeth with the sword must be killed with the sword. Here is the patience and the faith of the saints."

The Law is the Law. Whatever we do we must pay for! The Saints know tie Law, therefore they are patient.

Verily, verily, I say unto you, that the times of the end have arrived. So, he that leadeth into captivity shall go into captivity. He who killed with the sword must be killed with the sword.

We can be saved only by entering into the ark of science. We departed from Eden through the door of sex, and only through that door can we enter into Eden again. Eden is the same sex.

Nobody can enter into Eden through false doors. The Law is the Law. We came out through one door and only through that door can we enter again. This is the Law.

The Magnum Opus is the science of sexual transmutation. We must make the energy of the Third Logos (the Holy Spirit) return in ourselves inwardly and upwardly. Thus, this is how we convert ourselves into Gods.

In this great work of the Alchemist, the water and the oil is necessary. We need half water and half oil.

Those who despise the water fail in the Great Work, because we can only illuminate ourselves with our own spiritual oil when we have pure waters of life (accumulated semen).

Zachariah 4: 12. 14: "What be these two olive branches, which through the two golden pipes empty the golden oil out of themselves?" "These are the two anointed ones that stand by the Lord of the whole earth."

In synthesis, these are the two witnesses which are born from the lake. They emerge from the seminal vessels (testicles and ovaries).

The transmuted sexual energy, which is the pure golden oil, flows through these two olive branches.

Those who affirm that many paths leading to God exist and that sex is just one of them, really, are despising the pure waters of life. Therefore, they fail and sink into the abyss.

Verily, verily, I say unto you that in the whole of eternity, only and absolutely one strait gate and only one narrow and difficult way which leads unto light has been known. This gate and this way is the sex.

Luke 13: 24: "Strive to enter in at the strait gate (the sex); for many, I say unto you, will seek to enter in, and shall not be able."

Strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leads unto light, and few are those who find it. Our adorable saviour Jesus Christ never said that there were many ways, He clearly and without question spoke only of one gate and only of one way (the sex). (See John 10: 7-9; 14)

We, the Brethren of the Temple invite you, beloved reader, to study the four Gospels. In these Gospels you will prove to yourself that only one strait gate and only one narrow and difficult way exists.

The preachers who affirm the existence of many ways leading unto God ignore that in the Great Work we need half oil and half water.

"And I beheld another beast coming up out of the earth; and he had two horns like a lamb, and he spake as a dragon.

"And he exerciseth all the power of the first beast before him, and causeth the earth and they which dwell therein to worship the first beast, whose deadly wound was healed.

"And he doeth great wonders, so he maketh fire come down from heaven on the earth in the sight of men.

"And deceiveth them that dwell on the earth by the means of those miracles which he had power to do in the sight of the beast; saying to them that dwell on the earth, that they should make an image to the beast, which had the wound by a sword, and did live."

This beast which has two horns like a Iamb, and that speaks as a dragon. is the materialistic science of the dwellers of the earth.

Certainly, this great beast is double, because it has a mind which speaks of great wonders. This materialistic science plays with what it ignores, and stumbles in the darkness.

This materialistic science deceives the dwellers of the earth because of the miracles which it has power of performing in the sight of the beast (humanity). These miracles are: War missiles, space missiles, radio, television, ultra-modern airplanes, atomic bombs, hydrogen bombs which make fire come down from heaven over indefensible cities, atomic submarines, deadly rays, etc.

All of these inventions of this materialistic science, which is the beast with two horns, are the miracles with which it is deceiving all who dwell on the earth.

Therefore, these deceived human beings worship the beast, and they say: There is no one like unto the beast! Who is able to be superior to this beast?

"And he had power to give life unto the image of the beast, that the image of the beast should both speak, and cause that as many as would not worship the image of the beast should be killed."

The followers of this materialistic science are poisoning the multitudes with their theories. Thus, this is how the image of the beast speaks.

Those Saints who do not worship the image (theories) of the beast are killed, incarcerated and hated. Certainly, this beast with two horns is terrible.

"And he causeth all, both small and great, rich and poor, free and bond, to receive a mark in their right hand, or in their foreheads:

"And that no man might buy or sell, save he that had the mark, or the name of the beast, or the number of his name.

"Here is wisdom. Let him that hath understanding Count the number of the beast: for it is the number of a man; and his number is Six hundred threescore and six."

The mark of the beast is the two horns on the forehead. Millions and billions of human beings already have the mark of the beast on their foreheads and in their hands.

All of these souls with the mark of the beast are lost, and since the year 1950, they have been entering into the abyss. This human evolution totally failed.

Certainly, this world is already lost, because in the worldly trade, nobody can buy or sell, save those who have the mark of the beast on their forehead and in their hands. Thus, this is how worldly trade has become.

The number of the great beast is six hundred and sixty-six, and it is the number of a man, because this is a Qabbalistic number which is broken down as follows: 6+6+6=18. Then, when we make the addition of the number eighteen in itself, we have the following: 1+8=9.

Nine is the sex. Nine is the human being, because the human being is the child from the sex.

In summary, the eighteenth and the ninth Arcanums are contained in the number 666: The eighteenth Arcanum is the abyss, darkness. It is sexual temptations, which the initiate must fight against. The ninth Arcanum is the Ninth Sphere (the Initiation).

The Gods judged the Great Harlot whose number is 666.

The sentence of the Gods was: To the abyss! To the abyss! To the abyss!

25. The Lamb In Sion

Revelation 14: 1 to 20: "And I looked, and lo, a Lamb stood on the mount of Sion, and with him an hundred forty and four thousand, having his Father's name written in their foreheads." The mount of Sion represents the superior worlds.

The number, one hundred and forty-four thousand of those who have their Father's name written on their foreheads, is a symbolic and Qabbalistic quantity. 144,000 is broken down in the following way: 1+4+4=9. This number nine, is the Ninth Sphere (the sex).

To receive the name of the Father on our foreheads and to be saved is only possible with the Great Arcanum.

The people of Sion are the people of Israel (spiritual people of God). These people are formed by all of those who practice sexual magic (they are chaste people).

"And I heard a voice from heaven as the voice of many waters, and as the voice of a great thunder: and I heard the voice of harpers harping with their harps:

"And they sung as it were a new song before the throne, and before the four beasts (of Alchemy), and the elders: and no man could learn that song but the hundred and forty and four thousand, which were redeemed from the earth (with a great sacrifice)."

"These are they which were not defiled with women; for they are virgins (these are they who learned how to refrain the internal beast in order to avoid the ejaculation of the semen [orgasm] These are they which followed the Lamb whithersoever he goeth. These were redeemed from among men, being the firs unto God and to the Lamb."

"And in their mouth was found no guile: for they are without fault before the throne of God."

"And I saw another angel fly in the midst of heaven, having the everlasting gospel to preach unto them that dwell on the earth, and to every nation, and kindred, and tongue, and people,"

"Saying with a loud voice, Fear God, and give glory to him; for the hour of his judgement is come: and worship him that made heaven and earth, and the sea, and the fountains of waters."

"And there followed another angel, saying, Babylon is fallen, is fallen, that great city (Paris, Rome, London, Berlin, cities of United States, etc., in short, this present civilization), because she made all nations drink of the wine of the wrath of her fornication.

"And the third angel followed them, saying with a loud voice, if any man worship the beast and his name, and receive his mark in his forehead, or in his hand,

"The same shall drink of the wine of the wrath of God, which is poured out without mixture into the cup of his indignation, and he shall be tormented with fire and brimstone in the presence of the holy angels, and in the presence of the Lamb."

All of the people who worship the beast of their passions, and his image (intellectualism without spirituality) will be tormented with fire into the abyss, with the fire and brimstone of their own desires.

To pay the whole of our karma here in this very place, this physical plane, is preferable than to pay it within the internal worlds.

This nemesis, this karma, no matter how grave it might be in the physical plane, becomes very sweet, if we compare it with the karma in the astral plane and within the abyss.

"And the smoke of their torment ascendeth up for ever and ever: and they have no rest day nor night, who worship the beast and his image, and whosoever receiveth the mark of his name."

The intellect is a very precious instrument for the Great Work of the Father, when it is absolutely used for the pure service of the Spirit.

A mystic without intellect fails because of lack of culture. The intellect is satanic when it is used for the service of the internal beast.

The intellectual villains (cynics and sceptics) are the result of intellectualism without spirituality. These intellectual villains are the exact image of the beast.

The tenebrous ones torment each other within the abyss with their hatred, intrigue, calumny, anger, greed, lust, etc., and the smoke of their torment ascends for ever and ever.

The Saints know all of this. For this reason they are patient.

"Here is the patience of the saints: here are they that keep the commandments of God, and the faith of Jesus.

"And I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Write, Blessed are the dead which die in the Lord from hence forth: Yea, saith the Spirit, that they may rest from their labours; and their works do follow them."

Something continues on in existence when the human being dies. This something is the thought of all our desires. The whole of our thoughts of desire continue, and this is already demonstrated. The sum of all those mental values continue.

The total addition of all of those values of desire constitute the "I", the Myself, the Ego, our false individuality. This "I" is the one that reincarnates in order to satisfy its desires.

Therefore, blessed are the dead who die in the Lord, they will enter Nirvana forever, for whosoever decapitates and dissolves the "I", dies in life, dies in the Lord.

The Truth cannot enter where the "I" abides. The Lord is the Truth.

The Lord Buddha taught us: One Essence, one Law and one Goal.

The Essence is the Ens Seminis, the Law is the Arcanum A.Z.F. and the Goal is Nirvana.

Thus, this is what the Buddha said: "If thou understand O Kasyapa! that all beings are of the same essence (the Ens Seminis), and that there is only one and unique truth (the Christ), and if thou lives in accordance with this comprehension, thou shall reach Nirvana."

"The Tathagata gives happiness and joy to the whole world, as the cloud that pours its waters (semen), over the just ones and the sinners (everybody receives it), having the same feelings of compassion for the great and small; for the wise and for the ignorant; for the virtuous and for the sinner."

"The vast and swollen cloud impregnated with water pours into rain over pastures, thorny bushes, mountains, valleys, orchards and country fields. And all drink the water (semen) of this rain which is the same one essence. And trees, and plants, and herbs, mix and flourish and fructify, each one in accordance to its kind and nature; rooted to the same earth. All of these plants in the field or in the orchard, receive the same water (semen) which vivifies and gives life to all."

"The Tathagata knows O Kasyapa! the Law which virtue is the Knowledge and which goal is the peace of Nirvana" (this Law is the Arcanum A.Z.F.)

"This law is the same for everybody but does not manifest itself in the same way for everyone, but in accordance with their needs. In the beginning the plenitude of this knowledge is not given equally, but in accordance with the predisposition of everyone."

In ancient times the Arcanum A.Z.F. was only taught in secrecy to the Initiates.

Buddha taught this key unto his well prepared disciples.

Whosoever wants to die in the Lord must wash their feet in the waters of renunciation. Thus this is how the Lord Buddha taught chastity as a basic foundation of Initiation.

Buddha asked to his disciples the following: "Tell me O disciples, when is a disciple no longer a disciple? And Sariputra answered: "The good disciple must not break his vow of chastity. Whosoever breaks his vow of chastity is no longer a disciple of Sakyamuni."

This is textual from the gospel of the Lord Buddha, a transcription of the Pitakas or Sacred Scriptures of Buddhism. (See the book of Yogi Kharishnanda).

The Master Huiracocha gave the supreme Key of chastity in Latin, as follows: "INMISIO MEMBRIVIRILI IN VAGINA FEMINAE SINE EJECULATIUM SEMINIS."

Whosoever wants to die in the Lord must practice the Ten Commandments for the New Era:

FIRST: Thou shalt love thy internal God and thy neighbour as thyself.

SECOND: Thou shalt study the Secret Doctrine of the Saviour of the world.

THIRD: Thou shalt never slander thy neighbour, neither shalt thou utter immodest or vain words

FOURTH: Thou shalt sacrifice the self for the love of mankind and to love thy worst enemies.

FIFTH: Thou shalt obey the will of the Father on earth as it is in heaven.

SIXTH: Thou shalt not commit fornication neither adultery in thy thought, words and deeds.

SEVENTH: Thou shalt fight against the world, the demon and the flesh.

EIGHTH: Thou shalt be infinitely patient and merciful.

NINTH: Thou shalt practice the Arcanum A.Z.F. with thy spouse.

TENTH: Thou shalt wash thy feet in the waters of renunciation.

You will die in the Lord with these ten Commandments.

"And I looked, and behold a white cloud, and upon the cloud one sat like unto the Son of Man, having on his head a golden crown, and in his hand a sharp sickle.

"And another angel came out of the temple, crying with a loud voice to him that sat on the cloud, Thrust in thy sickle, and reap: for the time is come for thee to reap; for the harvest on the earth is ripe." The time has arrived!

"And he that sat on the cloud thrust in his sickle on the earth; and the earth was reaped." The time for reaping has arrived!

"And another angel came Out of the temple which is in heaven, he also having a sharp sickle."

"And another angel came out from the altar, which had power over fire; and cried with a loud cry to him that had the sharp sickle, saying, Thrust in thy sharp sickle, and gather the clusters of the vine of the earth; for her grapes are fully ripe."

The power of the fire lies in the sex. Angels and devils, Gods and beasts are born from sex.

Man is the priest and the woman the altar. Through sex we sow and through sex we harvest.

If the harvest is good, then we have a harvest of Gods.

If the harvest is evil, then the harvest is lost within the abyss.

The wise North-American Qabbalist, Manly P. Hall, who was cited by the great Master of the White Lodge, Dr. Francisco A. Propato, said in his book of "Occult Anatomy of Man" the following: "Those who will be incapable of lifting the fire of the spinal medulla throughout their Shushumna canal, will be cast aside into a lateral kingdom, similar to that of the actual apes (monkeys, chimpanzees etc.)."

"And the angel thrust in his sickle into the earth, and gathered the vine of the earth, and cast it into the great winepress of the wrath of God." The fulfilment of this nineteenth verse of the fourteenth chapter of Revelation is definitive.

The angel cast the whole vine of the earth into the great winepress of the wrath of God.

The Great White Lodge knows that human evolution on earth is lost.

Human evolution totally failed and this humanity is sinking into the abyss.

"And the winepress was trodden without the city, and blood came out of the winepress, even unto the horse bridles, by the space of a thousand and six hundred furlongs."

This Qabbalistic quantity is broken down as follows: 1+6=7

This human race will expiate with supreme pain all of their evil deeds.

The three ineffable beings of this fourteenth chapter of Apocalypse, correspond to the three aspects of humanity: The world, family and the human being.

These three angels of the Most High, are punishing, countries, families and human beings.

The Law is the Law and the Law is fulfilled. These three angels obey the Son of Man.

The Lord of all powers is seated on a cloud of glory.

The Lord of all Perfections has on his head a golden crown, and in his hand a sharp sickle.

26. The Seven Angels With The Seven Vials

Revelation 15: 1 to 8: "and I saw another sign in heaven, great and marvellous, seven angels having the seven last plagues; for in them is filled up the wrath of God."

These seven angels are: Gabriel, Raphael, Uriel, Michael, Samael, Zachariel, Oriphiel. Among these seven angels, the fifth is the one who has suffered the most.

All of these seven angels accomplish superior commands and they act in accordance with the Law.

The Boddhisattwa of the fifth angel fell after the Atlantean catastrophe, but he arose again from the clay of the earth, after having suffered greatly. Now, this Boddhisattwa has again returned to his God.

There is more happiness within the Cathedral of the soul for a sinner who is repented, than for a thousand just who do not need of repentance.

The fifth of the seven acquired the Elixir of Long Life in Lemuria about eighteen million years ago. Therefore, the fifth of the seven kept his Lemurian physical body during the entire Atlantean epoch and he was one of the wise spiritual guides who guided the destiny of millions of human beings from that submerged continent.

Then, after the submerging of Atlantis, this Master became in love with a woman, and then, with another. Thus, this is how he fell and lost his marvellous body and remained submitted to the terrible wheel of reincarnation and karma.

Eliphas Levi commits the mistake of commenting about an apocryphal document of Enoch, and falsely judging the twenty Egregores who descended upon Ardis, which is the top of the Mount Armon and dogmatically condemning them by qualifying them as demons.

The teachings of Eliphas Levi are mixed with something impure.

Rudolph Steiner asseverates that Eliphas Levi was twice reincarnated as a priest in a Mexican tribe. This tribe, after having culminated in splendours of wisdom and glory, finally came to enter into decay and witchcraft.

So, this soul who later in time was born with the name of Eliphas Levi, nourished himself in that Mexican epoch with that impure knowledge.

Thus, this is the only way for us to have a logical explanation of the great errors in which the Abbe Alphonse Louis Constant (Eliphas Levi), falls into.

We clarify: We do not want to say that Eliphas Levi is a Black Magician, he is not, he is a Master but, what we affirm is that his books, in spite of having that seal of grandiosity, are mingled with a lot of impure knowledge. This is all.

Azasel is an Egregore who gave great assistance to humanity.

Azasel was the king Solomon. Actually, the Boddhisattwa of Azasel is fallen, but, it is logical that in the close future, this Boddhisattwa will rise from the clay of the earth again.

All the angels of families, angels of countries, angels of tribes, etc. are Egregores.

We find written in the Theosophical Glossary of H.P.B the following: "Egregores" from the Greek Egregori, watcher.

Eliphas Levi calls them "the chiefs of the souls who are the spirits of energy and action"; whatever that may or may not mean. The Oriental Occultists describe the Egregores as Beings whose bodies and essence is a tissue of the so-called *astral light*. They are the shadows (Boddhisattwas) of the higher Planetary Spirits whose bodies are of the essence of the higher divine light."

The book of Enoch gives the name Egregores to the angels who married the daughters of Seth and who begot with them giants as children.

The names and symbols of the seven angels of the Eternal One have also seven meanings, thus, this is the reason why many esoteric students have become confused.

"And I saw as if it was a sea of glass mingled with fire: and them that had gotten the victory over the beast, and over his image, and over his mark, and over the number of his name, stand on the sea of glass, having the harps of God."

This liquid, flexible, malleable glass is the christonic semen. Certainly, the semen is the dwelling place of the fire.

This semen is the VITRIOL of the ancient medieval Alchemists.

Those who have gained the victory over the beast, walk happily on the sea of glass while uttering the lost word, uttering with the very pure rising of the divine and primogenitary language.

The larynx is the lyre of Orpheus. There is the need to learn how to play the lyre or Orpheus. There is the need to incarnate the Verb.

We play the lyre of Orpheus, and victoriously walk on the sea of glass, when the Verb is made flesh within ourselves.

These are the victorious who have gained the victory over the beast, and over his image, and over the number of his name.

- "And they sing the song of Moses the servant of God, and the song of the Lamb, saying, Great and marvellous are thy works, Lord God Almighty; just and true are thy ways, thou King of saints.
- "Who shall not fear thee, O Lord, and glorify thy name? for thou only art holy: for all nations shall come and worship before thee, for thy judgements are made manifest.
- "And after that I looked, and, behold the temple of the tabernacle of the testimony in heaven was opened:
- "And the seven angels came out of the temple, having the seven plagues, clothed in pure and white linen, and having their breasts girded with golden girdles.
- "And one of the four beast gave unto the seven angels seven golden vials full of the wrath of God, who liveth for ever and ever.
- "And the temple was filled with smoke from the glory of God, and from his power; and no man was able to enter into the temple, till the seven plagues of the seven angels were fulfilled."

27. The Seven Vials Are Poured

Revelation 16: 1 to 21: "And I heard a great voice out of the temple saying to the seven angels, Go your ways, and pour out the vials of the wrath of God upon the earth.

"And the first (angel Gabriel) went, and poured out his vial upon the earth, and there fell a noisome and grievous sore upon the men which had the mark of the beast, and upon them which worshipped his image."

This social demoralization with all of its vices, fornications and shameful adulteries, is a noisome and grievous sore.

All of the human beings who have the mark of the beast and who worship his image have sinned against the Goddess-Moon.

The crimes which are committed against the Goddess-Moon are more bitter than death. Everyone gathers the fruits of their evil deeds. Whosoever sows lightning will harvest tempests.

Abandoned women, men who were cheated by their adulterous wives, rapes, kidnapping, alcoholism, etc., are all together a noisome and grievous sore, and are what we gain because of the crimes committed against the Goddess-Moon.

Gabriel is the regent of the moon. In these times of the end, only social degeneration exists, crimes against nature, incurable cancer, mothers abandoned with children, horrible adulteries, divorces by the millions, frightful diseases, uxoricides, etc.

All of these social maladies, all of these tears, all of these orphans, are what we have gained with our evil deeds. The whole of this is a noisome and grievous sore.

Thus, this is how Gabriel, the regent of the moon, administrates the Law and punishes with his vial.

The present hour is grave and definitive. Therefore, the only way to be saved is by practicing the Eight-Fold Path taught by Buddha. This Eight-Fold Path is totally sexual.

The number eight represents the sign of infinity. The number eight symbolizes the two entwined serpents around the spinal medulla, as well as, the two witnesses and the caduceus of Mercury. Therefore, this Holy Eight is the path of the spinal medulla.

The middle path is in the dorsal spine. This is the Path of the Razor's Edge.

The great Master Francisco A. Propato has said that within the sign of infinity, the brain, heart and sex of the Genie of the earth are symbolized.

The struggle is terrible, brain against sex, sex against brain and heart against heart.

HILARIUX IX said: "The fire of Phiegethon and the water of Acheron cross in the Ninth Sphere and form the sign of the infinite."

The eight steps of the Eight-Fold Path within the Ninth Sphere are as follows:

First: Creative comprehension.

Second: Upright intensions.

Third: Upright words.

Fourth: Absolute sacrifice.

Fifth: Upright behaviour.

Sixth: Absolute chastity.

Seventh: Constant struggles against the Black Magicians.

Eighth: Supreme patience in all ordeals and sufferings.

The two witnesses which are entwined around the spinal medulla form the Holy Eight.

The sign of the infinite, the Holy Eight, is taught to the students in the Sacred Order of Tibet

The number of the LOGOS is 888. If we multiply the number eight by three, then we have the 24 vowels of the great Zodiacal Lyre, which are resounding in all of those who have incarnated the Cosmic Christ.

Therefore, the Eight-Fold Path taught by Buddha is absolutely sexual. Nevertheless, Buddha spoke in a concealing way, because in those times, to divulge the Great Arcanum was absolutely prohibited to the Initiates.

The Eight-Fold Path is found in the central canal of our spinal medulla.

The caduceus of Mercury has the form of an eight. Thus, the caduceus is also the sign of the infinite. This caduceus is the dorsal spine with its two sympathetic chords, Ida and Pingala.

Thus, the eight steps of the Eight-Fold Path are within the spinal medulla.

We are in the times of the end, and if we want to depart from this valley of bitterness, we need to enter the Eight-Fold Path.

Four great Truths exist which have the power to annihilate the prince of this world:

First Truth: To have absolute consciousness of pain and bitterness.

Second Truth: Pain is the child of fornication, and whosoever spills the semen (reaches the orgasm) is a fornicator. This is a tremendous Truth!

Third Truth: We have an 'I' that must be decapitated and dissolved in order to incarnate the Verb, the Christ.

Fourth Truth: We can only decapitate and dissolve the prince of this world, the "I", with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

Whosoever decapitates the "I" can incarnate the Immolated Lamb. We need to incarnate the Verb, the Christ, in order to be saved from the great cataclysm which will occur in these times of the end.

To comprehend the Four Truths is urgent. Whosoever walks on the Eight-Fold Path is converted into a Dragon of the Four Truths.

Every Dragon of the Four Truths is a Buddha. Listen to me O Buddhas! You need to incarnate the Christ!

The Buddhas can incarnate the Christ only if they renounce Nirvana for the love of this humanity, and also by working with intensity in the Flaming Forge of Vulcan (the sex).

Whosoever knows, the word gives power to. No one has uttered it, no one will utter it, except the one who has incarnated it. To incarnate the Word, the Verb, Christ, is necessary!

"And the second angel (Raphael) poured out his vial upon the sea; and it became as a blood of a dead man: and every living soul died in the sea."

When we, the Brethren, investigated this second angel whose name is Raphael, and this terrible verse, we then saw the present epoch with all of its horrors.

The sea of this verse are nations, crowds and tongues. Everyone is inside the ship of their life, that is to say, everyone is within the Arcanum of bitterness. Therefore, when the angel poured out his vial upon the sea, the waters became as blood.

All the nations of the earth have become as blood. Rivers of blood are flowing through the mountains of pain. Dictatorships and persecutions are found everywhere. Revolution and death exist upon the whole surface of the earth. Some are against others and these others are against everyone.

Also in existence are coup d'etats everywhere, frightful Gestapos, fearful police, weeping and supreme pain over all the lands. All the nations of the earth are paying their own Nemesis, the karma of their own errors. All the nations of the earth have been called before the Divine Tribunals. This is the Law. This is karma.

The waters of life have become as blood, therefore, this humanity has no relief. To send more Prophets to the earth is useless, since this humanity mortally hates the Prophets. Therefore, no one can save this humanity. No one can correct this humanity. This human evolution is a complete failure.

The waters have become as blood and only screams and supreme suffering are heard everywhere.

"And the third angel (Uriel poured out his vial upon the rivers and fountains of waters; and they became blood." Thus, this is how the constellation of Cancer will strike all the fornicators of the earth with its plague (cancer).

"And I heard the angels of the waters say, Thou art righteous, O Lord, which art, and wast, and shalt be, because thou hast judged thus.

"For they have shed the blood of saints and prophets, and thou hast given them blood to drink; for they are worthy."

Therefore, numerous kinds of diseases will strike the human rivers and the sexual fountains of the human organism.

Radioactivity will produce unknown sicknesses, which science will be unable to cure.

"And I heard another out of the altar say, Even so, Lord God Almighty, true and righteous are thy judgements.

"And the fourth angel (Michael) poured out his vial upon the sun; and power was given unto him to scorch men with fire.

"And men were scorched with great heat, and blasphemed the name of God, which hath power over these plagues: and they repented not to give him glory."

The fourth angel Michael does not have a physical body in these times of the end.

The sun is the symbol of the Cosmic Christ. Christ is Love. Therefore, the antithesis of love is hatred.

Know ye, O nations, crowds and tongues, that hatred becomes that fire which burns! Therefore, there will be horrible atomic wars! This humanity will be burned with living fire!

The great cities will become ashes. Nonetheless, the human beings will blaspheme the name of God, who has power over these plagues; and they repented not, to give him Glory.

Hear ye O nations! Know, that the most terrible monster which exists upon the earth is hatred!

Since their own hatred will unleash all the wars, who can save this humanity? It is therefore already too late, there will be no relief. This humanity is a failure. Everyone for himself!

"And the fifth angel (Samael) poured out his vial upon the seat of the beast; and his kingdom was full of darkness; and they gnawed their tongues for pain.

"And blasphemed the God of heaven because of their pains and their sores, and repented not of their deeds."

The fifth of the seven is the one who has suffered the most. He was a fallen Master, but now he is not. The fifth of the seven is now standing again.

The fifth of the seven poured out his vial upon the seat of the beast and his kingdom was full of darkness.

Millions of human beings already have the mark of the beast on their foreheads and in their hands.

Millions of human souls are already totally separated from their INTIMATE (Spirit).

Now, the urban life of all the cities of all nations of the world has been transplanted into the abyss.

In these submerged regions of the abyss, human beings continue to live this same urban life system, and they buy and sell "the merchandise of gold, and silver, and precious stones, and of pearls, and fine linen, and purple, and silk, and scarlet, and all thyme wood, and all manner vessels of ivory, and all manner of vessel of most precious wood, and of brass, and iron, and marble."

The tenebrous live within the abyss with the same urban life that they are accustomed to. The abyss is more materialistic than the physical world.

Therefore, this kingdom of the abyss has now become more tenebrous than ever. Truly, almost the totality of this humanity has already entered into the abyss.

The fifth of the seven and his legions of angels are collaborating with the plan of the Logos as they submerge the tenebrous into the abyss.

Millions of women and distinguished gentlemen, who are presently living on this world, do not have their Intimate (Spirit), and are therefore perverse demons, even though they still have physical bodies.

The planet Earth is a failed world. This civilization will be destroyed! Already, this humanity cannot be saved by anyone!

The fifth of the seven is watching over the tenebrous. Many have slandered the fifth of the seven just because he is a Watcher.

The tenebrous blasphemed against the God of heaven because of their pains and their sores, and they did not repent of their deeds.

The human being becomes a demon when the psychological "I" attains absolute control of the four bodies of sin (physical, ethereal, astral and mental), then the INTIMATE (the Spirit) withdraws from him.

Millions of people who presently live on this world are already terribly perverse demons. Therefore, the kingdom of the beast is now more tenebrous than ever.

A divine ray exists within the human being. This divine ray wants to return towards its own star which has always been smiling onto it.

This star which guides our interior is a super-divine atom from the Abstract Absolute Space. The Qabbalistic name of this atom is the sacred Ain Soph.

Know all you, that the Am Soph is secretly related with the lotus of one thousand petals. This star which guides our interior (the Ain Soph) has sent its own ray into the world in order to build consciousness of its own happiness.

Happiness without consciousness of its own happiness is not absolute happiness. Thus is the reason why this ray had to have mineral, plant and animal consciousness.

When this ray (the Spirit) incarnated for the first time into a savage and primitive human body, this ray awoke as a human being and had Self-consciousness of its own happiness.

This ray could have returned towards its own star which guides its interior. But, disgracefully, within the profound bosom of the voracious and dense jungle, wild desire gave birth to the "I'.

This is the way in which the instinctive forces of nature trapped the innocent mind of the human being. So, the false mirage of desire emerged and the "I" continued reincarnating in order to satisfy its desires. Thus, we remained submitted to the Law of evolution and karma.

Experiences and pain complicated the 'I", for evolution is nothing more than a process of the complication of energy.

Therefore, the "I' became vigorous and complicated with experiences. Now it is too late, for millions of people are already converted into abominable demons.

Only a tremendous revolution can save us from the abyss. When the human being dissolves the "I", then there is a complete revolution.

The human being will stop suffering only when he will be capable of dissolving the 'I' since pain is nothing more than the result of our evil deeds. Thus, pain belongs to Satan (the "I"), because he is the one who commits the evil deeds.

The Absolute Abstract Space, the Universal Spirit of Life, is absolute happiness, supreme peace and abundance. Therefore, those who make a mysticism out of pain are Masochists, since Satan (the "I") was and is the creator of pain.

The human being is corrupted because of pain, for pain is satanic. So, no one can be liberated with pain.

We need to be Alchemists. Only with alchemy can the "I" be dissolved. The root of the "I" is desire and desire can be transmuted with alchemy.

If you want to annihilate desire, then you must transmute it:

Sexual desire is transmuted into willpower, and willpower is fire.

Desire of accumulating (greed) is transmuted into altruism.

Anger, in other words, frustrated desire, is transmuted into sweetness.

Envy, which is also frustrated desire, is transmuted into happiness for our neighbours good fortune.

All the words of desire can be transmuted into words of wisdom, etc.

Analyze all the human defects and you will see that they all have their foundation in desire.

So, you must transmute desire with alchemy. Thus, this is the way for desire to be annihilated.

Whosoever annihilates desire dissolves the "I Whosoever dissolves the "I" is saved from the abyss and returns towards his own interior star, which has always smiled unto him.

We can dissolve the "I" only with holy alchemy. The fundamental base of alchemy is the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The angels, archangels, seraphim, potencies, thrones, etc., are exactly the result of tremendous interior revolutions.

We have already passed through involution (descent of the Spirit into matter). We also suffered horribly in evolution (process of complication of the energy). Now, a complete revolution (dissolution of the "I") is urgent.

Only based on internal revolutions can we return, little by little, to our own super-divine atom. Thus, this is how we pass through angelic, archangelic, seraphic and Logoic states, etc., until our ray finally becomes fused with its own happily shining star (the Ain Soph).

The abyss is terribly painful. The horrible antithesis of the Am Soph is the abyss. The fifth of the seven has poured out his vial upon the seat of the beast; and now his kingdom has become more tenebrous than ever. Woe to the dwellers of the earth!

"And the sixth angel (Zachariel) poured out his vial upon the river Euphrates; and the water thereof was dried up, that the way of the kings of east might be prepared."

The Euphrates river is one of the rivers of Eden. The first river corresponds to the element earth of the Wise (the Tattwa Prittwi). The second river corresponds to the element water (Tattwa Apas). The third river corresponds to the element air (Tattwa Vayu). The fourth river is the element fire (Tattwa Tejas).

All the elements are integrated in the fire. Everything emerges from the fire and everything returns into the fire. The Euphrates river is the creative fire of the Holy Spirit.

Zachariel poured out his vial upon the Euphrates river and its waters became dried up. Thus, this is how the Anglo Saxon and French people are losing the power of procreation.

The waters of the Euphrates river are drying up and women are becoming sterile.

Now, the statistics are registering that in England and France the number of dead people is more and the number of births is less, because thousands of souls are entering into the abyss daily. No more physical bodies are given unto these souls.

Thus, this is why as a result we have a lesser number of births and a greater quantity of dead, since the waters of the Euphrates river are drying up, that the way of the kings of the Interior East might be prepared.

"And I saw three unclean spirits like frogs came out of the mouth of the dragon, and out of the mouth of the beast, and out of the mouth of the false prophet.

"For they are the spirits of devils, working miracles, which go forth unto the kings of the earth, and of the whole world, to gather them to the battle of that great day of God Almighty."

These three unclean frog like spirits, constitute the psychological "I" of every human being.

They are Core, Dathan and Abiram. These are the three traitors, the three rebels who we carry inside.

The first one is the rebel against Nature.

The second one is the rebel against Divine Science.

The third one is the rebel against Truth.

The first is the Demon of Desire, the second is the Demon of the Mind and the third is the Demon of Evil Will.

The first one is inside the Astral Body. The second one is inside the Mental Body. The third is inside the Body of Will (Causal Body).

All of these three together are the Black Dragon with three heads. They are also Sebal, Ortelut and Stokin, the three traitors of Hiram Abif.

In short, these three unclean spirits are our psychological "I" the Ego, the Myself. These three unclean spirits are working miracles: Hydrogen bombs, airplanes, cosmic rockets, mechanical marvels, in order to deceive people and to gather them to battle.

These three unclean spirits invented materialistic theory, the materialistic dialectic, historic materialism, etc.

These three unclean spirits are the erudites of materialistic science, and they laugh about everything that is with spiritual taste.

These three demons also perform marvels of chemistry, physics, medicine, and they deceive people with their miracles and false prodigies.

"Behold, I come as a thief Blessed is he that watcheth, and keepeth his garments, lest he walk naked, and they see his shame.

"And he gathered them together into a place called in the Hebrew tongue Armageddon."

Armageddon is atomic war. Soon, human beings will use small pocket weapons armed with small atomic missiles in order to disintegrate the atomic bombs and the missiles in space charged with nuclear explosives.

The whole atmosphere will be filled with deadly radioactive particles.

Millions of flying cosmic ships which are occupied by other planetary humanities are watching.

The day of this tremendous cataclysm is approaching and humanities of other planets are watching us!

"And the seventh angel (Oriphiel poured out his vial into the air; and there came a great voice out of the temple of heaven, from the throne, saying, it is done." The angel of Saturn tosses his deadly scythe upon the surface of the earth and everything is consummated.

A world is approaching the planet earth, and when this world collides with the earth, everything will be consummated. This collision of worlds will be cataclysmic in proportion.

"And there were voices, and thunders, and lightnings; and there was a great earthquake, such as was not since men were upon the earth, so mighty an earthquake, and so great."

Now is the time when the true men will be known! Now is the time when we will know who is who!

Now, the illustrious ignorants will bite the dust. The authoritative know-it-alls of some schools of villains (sceptics and cynics) will swallow mud.

Therefore, these false prophets will show their shame within the abyss among the failures. Let the earth tremble! Let the wolf of the Law howl!

Now is the time when we will know the true men, and the time when we will see many crying like harlots!

The time for considerations has ended! Therefore, those who killed the Prophets will find themselves naked. Those who were applauded by the Great Harlot will drink a very bitter bile.

These barbarians gave the Saints hemlock mingled with honey to drink. Now the Law will strike them with scorpions.

Let the catastrophe come! This is the time when we will know who is who! Now, the true men will be known!

"And the great city was divided into three parts, and the cities of the nations fell: and great Babylon came in remembrance before God to give unto her the cup of the wine of the fierceness of his wrath.

"And every island fled away, and the mountains were not found (because they were swallowed by the earth)."

Thus, this is what the Great Harlot is worthy of! The Saints said what they had to say.. .now, let the tragedy come!

The hour of the Great Cataclysm has come! Let the Law come! Let the hurricane howl! Let the earth tremble!

The time for waiting is over, it has already passed! Now....let tragedy come! Thus, this is how the Avatar of Aquarius speaks...

Frankly, with sincerity I tell you, this time the just will not be punished because of the sinners. This happened once, but that time is already in the past.

The just will be secretly saved before the great Cataclysm. Let us remember Lot who was taken from the damned city, also Elias who was taken into heaven in a chariot of fire.

Therefore, the just will be taken from Great Babylon (this present civilization) before the Great Cataclysm.

Many cosmic ships will come to the planet earth. Other planetary humanities are watching us, they know about the terrible time in which we live.

The just will be secretly helped before the final doom (the Great Cataclysm). They will be transported like Elias in a chariot of fire.

They will live on another planet. While the mountains will fly in the air broken into pieces, into dust, the earth will vomit fire and water. The earth will become a mass of fire and water.

What will be the sign? When will be the day? When will be the hour? It will be when cosmic ships shall be built with the capability of reaching other planets.

It will be when these human beings of the earth have prepared themselves in order to conquer and dominate other planetary humanities by force.

It will be when the time arrives that they want to repeat their own bloody historical conquerings on other planets. Then, you must be alert and vigilant.

Every step that human beings make towards conquering space places them closer and closer to the Great Cataclysm.

Frightful and terrible atomic wars of a great magnitude will occur before the Great Cataclysm.

"And there fell upon men a great hail out of heaven, every stone about the weight of a talent: and men blasphemed God because of the plague of the hail; for the plague thereof was exceeding great."

28. The Whore And The Beast

Revelation 17: 1 to 18: "And there came one of the seven angels, which have the seven vials and talked with me, saying unto me, Come hither; I will shew unto thee the judgement of the great whore (this humanity) that sitteth upon many waters:

"With whom the kings of the earth have committed fornication, and the inhabiters of the earth have been made drunk with the wine of her fornication.

"So he carried me away in the spirit into the wilderness: and I saw a woman sit upon a scarlet colour beast (the great beast whose number is 666), full of names of blasphemy, having seven heads and ten horns." The seven heads of the beast are the seven capital sins. The ten horns signify that this beast ascends and will tumble into the abyss.

"And the woman (the great whore [Humanity]) was arrayed in purple and scarlet colour (this is how this humanity is symbolized in the internal worlds), and decked with gold and precious stones and pearls, having a golden cup in her hand full of abominations and filthiness of her fornication:

"And upon her forehead was a name written, MYSTERY, BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH.

"And I saw the woman drunken with the blood of the saints, and with the blood of the martyrs of Jesus: and when I saw her, I wondered with great admiration.

"And the angel said unto me, Wherefore didst thou marvel? I will tell thee the mystery of the woman, and of the beast that carrieth her, which hath the seven heads and ten horns.

"The beast that thou sawest was, and is not; and shall ascend out of the bottomless pit, and go into perdition. and they that dwell on the earth shall wonder, whose names were not written in the book of life from the foundation of the world, when they behold the beast that was, and is not, and yet is.

"And here is the mind which hath wisdom. The seven heads are seven mountains, on which the woman sitteth." The seven capital sins ANGER, GREED, LUST, ENVY, PRIDE, LAZINESS, GLUTTONY, are related with the seven sub-planes or tenebrous regions of the abyss. These are the seven mountains on which the great whore is seated.

"And there are seven kings (the seven kings of Edom): five are fallen, and one is, and the other is not yet come; and when he cometh, he must continue a short space."

The five inferior principles are: Soul, Mind, Astral Body, Etherial Body and Physical Body, these five principles are fallen, that is to say, the human being is fallen. The sixth principle (Conscience Soul) or BUDDHI never falls. This principle will govern the sixth Root Race.

When the kingdom of the seventh principle comes, it will continue for a short space of time. During that period, a divine race will exist. This will be the seventh Root Race. The seventh principle is the INTIMATE.

"And the beast that was, and is not, even he is the eight, and is of the seven, and goeth into perdition."

This beast that was, and is not, and that even he is the eight, is the shadow of the seven Sephiroth, this is the abyss.

"And the ten horns which thou sawest are ten kings, which have received no kingdom as yet; but receive power as kings one hour with the beast."

The ten horns of the tragic wheel will ascend and will descend, they will rotate with the wheel of Compensation. These ten horns ascend from the abyss, they impose themselves and command like ten kings, in order to tumble into the abyss when the wheel of Nemesis (Compensation or Samsara) is accomplishing its fatal rotation.

"These (ten horns) have one mind, and, and shall give their power and strength unto the beast.

"These shall make war with the Lamb, and the Lamb shall overcome them: for he is Lord of lords, and King of kings: and they that are with him are called, and chosen, and faithful.

"And he saith unto me, The waters which thou sawest, where the whore sitteth, are peoples, and multitudes, and nations, and tongues.

"And the ten horns which thou sawest upon the beast, these shall hate the whore, and shall make her desolate and naked, and shall eat her flesh, and burn her with fire."

When the fatal wheel of compensation will rotate, this whore (humanity), will be desolate and naked and the ten tragic horns will eat her flesh and burn her with the fire of their fornication, within the darkness of the abyss.

"For God hath put in their hearts to fulfil his will, and to agree, and give their kingdom unto the beast, until the words of God shall be fulfilled.

"And the woman which thou sawest is that great city, which reigneth over the kings of the earth."

This tragic great city is *BABYLON THE GREAT*, *THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH*, that is to say, this perverse modern civilization.

Woe to those who do not listen to the written words in this book!

Woe to the dwellers of the earth!

Woe, woe to those who betray the work of my Father!

29. Babylon Is Fallen

Revelation: 18: 1 to 24: "And after these things I saw another angel come down from heaven, having great power; and the earth was lightened with his glory.

"And he cried mightily with a great voice, saying, Babylon the great (this perverse civilization from this Root Race) is fallen, is fallen, and is become the habitation of devils, and the hold of every foul spirit, and a cage of every unclean and hateful bird." This refers to human beings who axe foul spirits of crime, vultures of war, unclean birds of pray and hatred, etc.

"For all nations have drunk of the wine of the wrath of her fornication, and the kings of the earth (the powerful men of the world) have committed fornication with her, and the merchants of the earth are waxed rich through the abundance of her delicacies.

"And I heard another voice from heaven, saying, Come out of her, my people (people who are initiated in the Christic mysteries), that ye be not partakers of her sins, and that ye receive not of her plagues."

Thus, this is the way in which the just will be secretly taken from within this great city (civilization) and they will be transported in interplanetary cosmic ships before the Great Cataclysm.

Therefore, these perverse dwellers of the earth will perish. "For her sins have reached unto heaven, and God have remembered her iniquities."

The just will live on another planet while the earth will pass through a great geological transformation. Afterwards, they will return to this world in order to form the sixth Root Race.

Therefore, this Babylon the Great, this civilization, will become ashes and blood.

"Reward her even as she rewarded you and double unto her double according to her works; in the cup which she hath filled fill to her double.

"How much she hath glorified herself and lived deliciously, so much torment and sorrow give her: for she saith in her heart, I sit queen, and am not widow, and shall see not sorrow.

"Therefore shall her plagues come in one day, death, and mourning, and famine; and she shall utterly burned with fire: for strong is the Lord God who judgeth her."

This civilization, the Great Whore is collecting the fruits of their own evil deeds, since, whosoever sows lightning will harvest tempests. This is the Law. Therefore, this Great Whore will harvest the fruits of her evil deeds.

This civilization, the Great Whore, will be burned with the fire of the atomic war and with the cosmic fire that will emerge from the planetary collision. Thus, this is how this world will become a mass of fire and watery, cloud vapour.

The whole of this will be accomplished in the present Aquarian Age. Nonetheless, before the Great Cataclysm, you will see very frightful events. The Vatican will be destroyed, the great cities of the world will become ashes, blood and ruins, money will become worthless and human beings will kill each other just for a piece of bread.

This civilization, the Great Babylon, will become dust.

- "And the kings of the earth (the potentates of gold and silver, the lords of the oil, men who are the vultures of war), who have committed fornication and lived deliciously with her, shall bewail her, and lament for her, when they shall see the smoke of her burning.
- "Standing afar off (trying to escape from the impeding doom) for the fear of her torment, saying, Alas, alas, that great city Babylon, that mighty city! (this modern civilization) for in one hour is thy judgement come.
- "And the merchants of the earth shall weep and mourn over her; for no man buyeth their merchandise anymore:
- "The merchandise of gold, and silver, and precious stones, and of pearls, and fine linen, and purple, and silk, and scarlet, and all thyme wood, and all manner vessels of ivory, and all manner of vessel of most precious wood, and of brass, and iron, and marble.
- "And cinnamon, and odours, and ointments, and frankincense, and wine, and oil, and fine flour, and wheat, and beasts, and sheep, and horses, and chariots, and slaves, and souls of men." Even with souls of men, these merchants of the earth make business!
- "And the fruits that thy souls lusted after are departed from thee, and all things which were dainty and goodly are departed from thee, and thou shall find them no more at all." The atomic war will terminate everything while the final impeding doom comes.
- "The merchants of these things which were made rich by her, shall stand afar off (they will escape from the cities) for the fear of her torment, weeping and wailing,
- "And saying, Alas, alas, that great city (this present modern civilization), that was clothed in fine linen, and purple, and scarlet, and decked with gold, and precious stones, and pearls!
- "For in one hour so great riches is come to nought. And every shipmaster, and all the company in ships, and sailors, and as many as trade by sea, stood afar off
- "And cried when they saw the smoke of her burning, saying, What city is like unto this great city!
- "And they cast dust on their heads, and cried, weeping and wailing, saying, Alas, alas, that great city, wherein were made rich all that had ships in the sea by reason of her costliness! for in one hour (the hour of karma and punishment) is she made desolate.
- "Rejoice over her, thou heaven, and ye holy apostles and prophets; for God hath avenged you on her."
- Thus, this is how the ray of the cosmic justice will fall upon this perverse civilization of vipers and there will not be relief.
- "And a mighty angel took up a stone like a great millstone (the Philosophical Stone), and cast it into the sea (the christonic semen), saying (thus sealing the prophecy), Thus with violence shall that great city Babylon (this present modern civilization) be thrown down, and shall be found no more at all.
- "And the voice of harpers, and musicians, and of pipers, and trumpeters, shall be heard no more at all in thee; and no craftsman of whatsoever craft he be, shall be found any more in thee; and the sound of a millstone shall be heard no more at all in thee:
- "And the light of a candle shall shine no more at all in thee; and the voice of the bridegroom and of the bride shall be heard no more at all in thee: for thy merchants were the great men of the earth (these are the great lords of business); for by thy sorceries were all nations deceived."

Sorcery is the golden calf, sorcery is idolatry, sorcery is the scepticism found in the dialectic of materialism. Sorcery is the exploitation of souls, sorcery is black magic, witchcraft, etc.

Therefore, because of all of these, *BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH* will be destroyed!

"And in her was found the blood of prophets, and of saints, and of all that were slain upon the earth."

30. The Maitreya Buddha

Revelation: 19: 1 to 21: "And after these things I heard a great voice of much people in heaven, saying, Alleluia; Salvation, and glory, and honour, and power, unto the Lord our God:

"For true and righteous are his judgements; for he hath judged the great whore, which did corrupt the earth with her fornication, and hath avenged the blood of his servants at her hand.

"And again they said, Alleluia. And her smoke rose up for ever and ever.

"And the four and twenty elders (from the zodiac) and the four beasts (of sexual alchemy) fell down and worshipped God (the Truth) that sat on the (internal) throne, saying, Amen: Alleluia.

And a voice came out of the throne (which we have within the profundities of our Being), saying, Praise our (internal) God, all ye his servants, and ye that fear him, both small and great.

"And I heard as it were the voice of a great multitude, and as the voice of many waters (the seminal waters), and as the voice of mighty thunderings (the voice of the Gods), saying, Alleluia: for the Lord God omnipotent reigneth (God which we carry inside),"

"Let us be glad and rejoice, and give honour to him: for the marriage of the Lamb is come, and his wife (the soul) hath made herself ready.

"And to her was granted that she should be arrayed in fine linen (the tunic of Masters), clean and white: for the fine linen is the righteousness of saints.

"And he saith unto me, Write, Blessed are they which are called unto the marriage supper of the Lamb, and he saith unto me, These are the true sayings of God.

"And I fell at his feet to worship him. And he said unto me, See thou do it not: I am thy fellow servant, and of thy brethren that have the testimony of Jesus: worship God (which is your internal God): for the testimony of Jesus is the spirit of the prophesy.

"And I saw heaven opened, and behold a white horse; and he that sat upon him was called Faithful and True, and in righteousness he doth judge and make war." The one who writes this book, gives testimony of this prophecy, because I am the servant or Boddhisattwa of the fifth of the seven.

The Son speaks the word of the Father and he gives testimony of the Father. The Father is one with the Son, the Son is one with the Father.

The Son feels that he is unworthy to undo the buckles of the Father's shoes. Only the Father is perfect.

The Father is glorified in the Son and the Son is glorified in the Father.

The Maitreya Buddha Samael is the Kalki Avatar of the New Age, he is the one who sat upon the white horse. Nevertheless, his son, the poor servant who writes this "Message Of Aquarius", really, does not feel worthy of kissing the sacred feet of the Father.

Therefore, the Buddha Maitreya gloriously shines, but his son kneels before him.

"His eyes were as aflame of fire, and on his head were many crowns; and he had a name written, that no man knew, but he himself" Because this name is written with characters of the language of light.

"And he was clothed with a vesture dipped in blood (because of the battles against the Black Lodge within the supra-sensible worlds); and his name is called The Word of God," because the Avatar of the New Aquarian Age is one Verb, Word (Christ).

"And the armies which were in heaven followed him upon white horses (this is the cavalry of Nirvana), clothed in fine linen, white and clean," because they are Masters.

"And out of his mouth goeth a sharp sword (in order to wound the demons), that with it (The Word) he should smite the nations: and he (the Verb) shall rule them with a rod of iron (within the abyss): and he treadeth the winepress of the fierceness and wrath of Almighty God." The tenebrous have fought against this Verb, but this Verb is treading the winepress of the fierceness and wrath of the Almighty God and He threw them into the abyss.

"And he hath on his vesture and on his thigh a name written (on a band with sacred characters), KING OF KINGS, AND LORD OF LORDS."

The power of the king is not on the forehead. The power of the king is in the sex.

The sceptre of the sacred kings, the two columns of the temple, and the Cross of the redeemer are made with the wood of the tree of good and evil. This is the tree of knowledge (sex).

When a man and a woman are sexually united, something is created.

We become kings and queens, lords of nature, when we receive the sacred fire of the Holy Spirit.

Kundalini is the fire of the Holy Spirit.

The Kundalini develops, evolves and progresses within the aura of the Mahachoan. The Mahachoan is the Holy Spirit, the Third Logos which we find in the Flaming Forge of Vulcan.

This Flaming Forge of Vulcan is the sex. The Kundalini awakens only with the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The great German sage Krumm Heller said the following in the eighth lesson of his Zodiacal Course:

"Instead of the coitus which reaches the orgasm, sweet caresses, amorous phrases and delicate touching should be lavished reflectively, keeping the mind constantly separated from animal sexuality, sustaining the purest spirituality as if the act were a true religious ceremony.

Nevertheless, the man can and should introduce the penis and keep it in the vagina to bring about a divine sensation upon both, full of joy, that can last for hours, withdrawing it at the moment the orgasm is near to avoid the ejaculation of semen. In this way, they will have a greater desire to caress each other each time.

This may be repeated as many times as desired without ever becoming tiresome. On the contrary, it is the Magic Key to daily rejuvenation, keeping the body healthy and prolonging life, because this constant magnetization is a fountain of health.

We know that in ordinary magnetism, the magnetizer communicates currents to the subject and if the first has those forces developed, he can heal the second. The transmission of magnetic currents is ordinarily done through the hands or through the eyes, but it is

necessary to say that there is no greater and more powerful conductor, a thousand times more powerful, a thousand times superior to others, than the virile member and the vulva as receiving organs.

If many persons practice this, they spread force and success in their surroundings for all those who come into commercial or social contact with them. But in the act of sublime, divine magnetization to which we are referring, both man and woman magnetize each other, the one being for the other as a musical instrument which, when plucked, gives off or emits prodigious sounds of mysterious and sweet harmonies. The strings of that instrument are spread all over the body, and the lips and fingers are its principal pluckers, on condition that the act be presided by the most absolute purity which is what makes us Magicians in that supreme moment."

The key in order to awaken the Kundalini is written in these former paragraphs of the Master Huiracocha. This is the Arcanum A.Z.F., this is the Great Arcanum.

When the great French poet Cazotte wrote his famous book entitled "THE LOVING DEVIL," he was visited by a man who was covered with a cape. This mysterious personage was the Master ZANONI. The mysterious visitor made some mysterious secret salutations which Cazotte did not understand, because he was not an Initiate, but he became initiated by Zanoni.

The style in which the book "The Loving Devil' was written was very close to the Arcanum A.Z.F.

Therefore, in a whisper from the lips of Zanoni to the ears of this great French poet, the Great Arcanum was communicated.

We still remember the terrible prophecies of death made by Cazotte in his famous banquet.

Some Initiates wanted to reveal the Great Arcanum, while others opposed. Then, Cazotte, while exulted with wisdom, prophesied exile for some of them, for others the deadly scaffold, suicide, the dagger, venom, and finally he prophesied his own death by the scaffold.

All the prophecies of Cazotte were accomplished with astonishing exactitude.

Another marvellous personage was the powerful and enigmatic Count Cagliostro. This man of indescribable age is a true Master who has the elixir of longevity.

No one can attain this elixir without having worked with the Arcanum A.Z.F. Cagliostro swallowed soil within his sepulchre and escaped from his sepulchre fossa due to the fact that he had received the elixir of longevity.

Cagliostro practised sexual magic intensely. Cagliostro was a disciple of Count Saint Germain.

Cagliostro was an alchemist, he transmuted the lead into gold and made genuine diamonds.

This Master was known in the distinct places of the world, under different names in different countries.

He was known with the following names: Tis-chio, Milissa, Belonte, D'anna, Fenix, Pellegrini, Balsamo, Mesmer, Harut and Cagliostro. This famous historical lineage was recorded by Alexander Dumas in his work entitled, "The Queens Necklace."

Ragon commits the crime of slandering the Great Copto.

Eliphas Levi also slanders the Count Cagliostro by accusing him of being a Black Magician. The Great Copto lived with the famous Schrader of Germany, and in England with the illustrious theosophist George Coston.

Cagliostro saved the life of the Cardinal Archbishop of Rohan with the science of the Philosophical Stone. The Baroness of Oberkirch said the following of the Great Copto, "He was not absolutely beautiful but I never saw such equalled features. His sight, more than profound, was supernatural. The expression of his eyes was indescribable, with an equal quality of fire and ice, together influencing in an irresistible way, sometimes attracting, sometimes repelling."

Cagliostro had many Alchemist disciples in Strasbourg. He was judged and persecuted by the Inquisition, sent into the bastille and later into the fortress of Leone.

The Inquisition condemned him to death, but the enigmatic and powerful Count Cagliostro mysteriously disappeared from the prison. Death could not do anything to Cagliostro.

Cagliostro is still alive with the same physical body because when a Master has swallowed soil within his sepulchre, he is Lord of the living and of the dead.

No one can reach this Initiatic height without the secret practise of sexual magic.

Therefore, whosoever rejects the Great Arcanum is surely a stubborn one.

The great Initiates suffered a and many were they who perished in the secret trials when they were aspiring to know the supreme secret of the Great Arcanum.

Today we are publicly delivering the Arcanum A.Z.F. This Arcanum is written in this very book; Whosoever rejects this precious treasure is an imbecile.

Another one that self-realized himself with sexual magic was the Count of St. Germain. The Count of St. Germain, Master of Cagliostro, rejuvenated himself at will and appeared and disappeared instantaneously when it was least expected. The Count of St. Germain even gave himself the luxury of passing as dead and, after entering into the sepulchre, was able to escape from it by placing his body into "JINN" state.

Commonly, the Masters who have swallowed soil accomplish their mission in any given country, and afterward are able to pass themselves off as dead in order to close another chapter of their immortal life.

In accordance with the memories of a certain aristocratic lady, who was a contemporary of Louis XV, St. Germain appeared before her up to the year 1823, many years after his death, completely young again, in order to predict the French Revolution and the tragic death of Louis XVI. St. Germain pointed out the terrible work of the French ministers, and challenged their anger by making himself invisible and untouchable at will.

- St. Germain was the rival of the musician Paganini. Paganini is a black magician.
- St. Germain has the power of tongues. He speaks all the languages of the world fluently.

This great Master was the advisor of Kings and wise men, and knew the contents of an enclosed scroll in his hand, he appeared and disappeared as lightning. He also transmuted lead into gold and made diamonds by vivifying carbon.

There exists the belief that he was born in Jerusalem and that he had an age of more than 2000 or 3000 years. We know that the Count of St. Germain lives with the same physical body. This great Master worked with the Arcanum A.Z.F, that is to say, he practised sexual magic intensely. Thus, this is the reason for his power. This is why he received the elixir of longevity.

St. Germain works with the ray of world politics. It is sad that Marie Antoinette did not listen to his advice.

Cagliostro was the best disciple of St. Germain. Cagliostro lived in the epoch of Jesus Christ. He was a friend of Cleopatra in Egypt. While he worked for Catalina de Medicis, he was the Count Fenix. In short, Cagliostro, the disciple of Altotas, still lives with the same physical body, death being unable to cut the thread of his precious existence.

St. Germain was in Europe before the 2nd world war, after which time he returned to his sanctuary in Tibet. The king is not in the forehead but in the sex.

All the practices of Yoga, the whole knowledge of Kriya, always ends with the supreme secret of the Great Arcanum. When a Yogi is prepared, he receives from his Master's lips, whispered directly into his ears, the secret of the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The Secret Order of Tibet has the obligation of communicating the Great Arcanum to the Yogi from lips to ear. This order is formed by 201 members. The major rank is formed by 72 Brahmans.

Supreme meditation and absolute adoration takes us into ecstasy (Samadhi). Any Master of Samadhi is an illuminated one.

Nonetheless, we must know that Illumination is one thing and that Self-realization is another very distinct matter. A Master of Samadhi (ecstasy) can disembottled the soul from the mind which is normally bottled up within the 'I' during a state of supreme adoration to experience the Truth; but this does not signify the incarnation of the Truth.

After the ecstasy, the mind normally becomes bottled up within the "I", and the mystic is left with his same tragic and painful life. Only by incarnating the Truth is there a complete revolution within the human being.

Whosoever wants to incarnate the Truth needs to edify the temple upon the living rock. This living rock is the sex.

The Temple of Wisdom has seven columns. These are the seven degrees of the power of the fire. There are seven serpents, two groups of three plus the coronation of the sublime seventh tongue of fire, which unites us with the One, with the Law, with the Father.

The first serpent belongs to the physical body, the second to the vital body, the third to the astral body, the fourth to the mental body, the fifth to the body of will power, the sixth to the Buddhic body and the seventh to the Intimate.

These are the seven steps of knowledge. These seven serpents cannot be lifted up simultaneously. Since the Magistery of Fire is very difficult, one must advance by degrees.

Initially, it is necessary to raise the first serpent, then the second. Later on, the third can be raised, then the fourth, etc.

The Yogi who does not practice with the Arcanum A.Z.F. is like a garden without water. Practice any Yoga, but work with the Great Arcanum in the Magistery of Fire.

If you, beloved reader, suppose that some other way exists in order to attain the developmental evolution and progress of the Kundalini, I, Samael Aun Weor, the Maitreya Buddha of the New Age of Aquarius, solemnly swear unto you that you are absolutely mistaken.

Never in any school of mysteries on this earth, or even on other planets of the infinite, has another path been known that is opposite to or distinct from the path of sex.

If you are already an elderly woman, if you can no longer have sexual contact, if you are already an old man, if you are sick, if you comprehend that your physical vehicle is no longer worthy to you in order to work with the Arcanum A.Z.F., then you must train yourself for astral travel, that is to say, you must learn to consciously travel in the astral body.

So my child, prepare yourself with concentration, meditation and adoration. Be chaste in thought, word and deed. Comprehend your errors, annihilate not only desire, but even the very shadow of desire. Thus my child, prepare yourself with creative comprehension, and postpone your work with the Arcanum A.Z.F for your future reincarnation.

Are you an old man? Are you an old woman? Are you an invalid? Then do not be disappointed beloved child. Do not fill yourself with affliction, because in your future reincarnation you can work with the Arcanum A.Z.F., and you will convert yourselves into Gods.

Nevertheless, if you are full of youth, if you are not impotent, if you are a complete male or female and you reject the great Arcanum in order to keep fornicating and you hide yourself within the speculations of your mind, then unhappiness to you, woe to you!

Woe! Woe! It would be better for you not to have been born, because now you will inevitably tumble into the abyss.

That sophism which says that there are many paths to reach God is false. It is a complete falsity, because our adorable Saviour taught us of only one narrow way and one straight gate. He said the following:

Luke: 13: 24 to 28: "Strive to enter in at the strait gate: for many, I say unto you, will seek to enter in, and shall not be able.

"Whence once the master of the house is risen up, and hath shut the door, and ye begin to stand without, and to knock at the door, saying, Lord, Lord, open unto us; and he shall answer and say unto you, I know you not whence ye are:

"Then shall ye begin to say, We have eaten and drunk in thy presence, and thou taught in our streets.

"But he shall say, I tell you, I know you not whence ye are; depart from me, all ye workers of iniquity.

"There shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth, when ye shall see Abraham, and Isaac, and Jacob, and all the prophets, in the kingdom of God, and you yourselves thrust out."

Those who suppose that they can incarnate the Verb, Christ, without the Arcanum A.Z.F. are ignorant.

The Akash is the vehicle of sound. The Kundalini is Akashic. Therefore, one cannot incarnate the Verb without the Akash, since the Akash is the vehicle of sound.

This is why we need to raise the Akashic serpent in order to incarnate the Verb, Christ. The Kundalini (Akashic fire) becomes creative, with the word, because the Kundalini is the vehicle of the creative Verb.

The creative energy of the Mahachoan is sexual and is uttered in the creative larynx. So, without the Arcanum A.Z.F. nobody can incarnate the Verb, Christ.

This is why the fifth of the seven, the Verb of Aquarius, tells you: "The king is not on the forehead. The king is in the sex."

The Great Arcanum lies at the depth of all the schools of mysteries. If you reject the Great Arcanum, unhappiness to you! Woe! Woe! Woe!

If you have your mind filled with theories and throw this book aside saying, it is just another book like the many that I have read, Woe to you! Woe! Woe! Woe! because you have rejected the word, you have insulted the Verb, in other words, you have signed your own death sentence and you will tumble into the abyss.

We are not threatening beloved reader, we are warning you, because life has initiated its return towards the Great Light, and the final judgment is already done. The times of the end have arrived.

Those who will be incapable of lifting the serpent through the medullar canal will be unable to ascend with the life which returns towards the Absolute. Therefore, these souls will sink into the abyss, they will become demons.

"And I saw an angel standing in the sun; and he cried with a loud voice, saying to all the fowls that fly in midst of heaven, Come and gather yourselves together unto the supper of the great God.

"That ye may eat the flesh of kings, and the flesh of captains, and the flesh of mighty men, and flesh of horses, and of them that sit on them, and the flesh of all men, both free and bond, both small and great."

The atomic war and the great cataclysm which are approaching will terminate everyone both free and bound, both small and great.

"And I saw the beast, and the kings of the earth, and their armies, gathered together to make war against him that sat on the horse, and against his army".

The tenebrous legions have started to enter into the Avitchi (Abyss) after the final judgement which was made in 1950.

At that time, the great battles started in the astral and mental worlds. So the beast and the tenebrous of the Great Black Lodge were gathered together to make war against the One who was seated on the horse (the Verb), and against His army.

The Boddhisattwa who writes this very book gives testimony of the battles which the Black Lodge have cast against the one who is his Father in secret.

The final judgement and the entrance of the tenebrous into the abyss was urgent. These battles within the internal worlds will cause, as a repercussion, atomic wars and dreadful catastrophes in the physical world.

"And the beast was taken (into the abyss), and with him the false prophet (the materialistic intellectualism) that wrought miracles before him (these miracles and prodigies are hydrogen bombs, atomic bombs, astonishing inventions and finally the tower of Babel), with which he deceived them that had received the mark of the beast (horns on the forehead), and them that worshipped his image (materialistic science). These both were cast alive into a lake of fire burning with brimstone." This lake of fire burning with brimstone is the fire of passion and desire, the abyss, the Avitchi, the eighth submerged sphere, that is to say the atomic infernos of nature.

"And the remnant were slain with the sword of him that sat upon the horse, which sword proceeded out of his mouth: and all the fowls were filled with their flesh." When somebody who has a physical body enters into the abyss, the Antakarana, which is the thread that

connects the fourth and fifth human principles, is broken. Those inferior quaternaries which are separated from the spiritual triad become demons.

When a soul is very perverse the Spirit abandons that soul. These people without Spirit are demons. Therefore, when the Spirit definitively abandons the body, the person passes through death, even though he may still be physically alive. Then, the name of this Spirit figures in the book of the deceased.

Presently, there are many people who already do not have the Spirit (the Intimate). Whosoever loses the Intimate becomes a demon, and every demon belongs to the abyss.

All of those who fight against the Verb die by the terrible sword that he carries in his mouth. All of these tragedies, all of these catastrophes, all of these prophecies, all of these cataclysms have a very solid foundation. This solid foundation is a return of life towards the Absolute.

Those who will not be capable of lifting up the serpent upon the staff will not be able to return into the Absolute, because this return is internal and its foundation lies on each step of the serpent.

This serpent must rise thirty-three degrees up through the spinal medulla. We have to return by climbing the seven steps of knowledge. We have to return through each one of the seven degrees of the power of the fire.

We cannot return with theories, because no one of us is a child of any theory. Each one of us is the child of a man and woman.

The question is sexual because we exist through the sex. Those who commit the error of rejecting the Arcanum A.Z.F., will inevitably sink into the abyss.

Those who do not want to sink into the abyss must start by rising the septuple scale of burning fire.

You must remember that the abyss is filled with people of very good intentions.

Remember that the abyss is filled with people that feel themselves to be perfect and holy.

Thus, this is how many mystical fornicators will enter into the abyss.

Those who say: "I will not practice with the Arcanum A.Z.F., I keep my religion, my school is better, my system is superior, there exists other ways, etc,' will sink into the abyss, because when they avoid the door of Eden (the sex), they will find the door of the abyss.

We departed from Eden through the narrow door of sex, and only through that door can we return into Eden. Eden is the very same sex.

This return of life towards the absolute signifies the fall of Babylon the Great, the catastrophe, and the final disaster.

We, the Brethren of the Temple delivered this Arcanum A.Z.F. in ancient times to the humanity of the ancient Earth-Moon. Those who then accepted the great Arcanum elevated themselves to an angelic state. In that epoch of the ancient Earth-Moon, we gave the same warnings.

This work was performed when the humanity of the moon had reached the age in which our present terrestrial humanity is in. This happens when life initiates its return towards the absolute, and we, the Brethren always accomplish the duty of warning and teaching.

Those who in the ancient Earth-Moon rejected the Great Arcanum became terribly perverse lunar demons. Now these demons dwell within the abyss.

Some human beings of the fifth Root Race from the Earth-Moon came to accept the Great Arcanum too late, they are therefore now lifting themselves up into the angelic state. A new dwelling was given unto this remnant group, this group now lives on another planet.

The brethren Max Heindel and Rudolf Stainer committed the mistake of supposing that the Moon is a peace of the planet earth which was projected into space.

We, the ones who worked in ancient times with that humanity of the Moon, know very well that the Moon was a planet like the planet Earth within space, and is even more ancient than our planet Earth.

The Moon is the mother of the Earth, because the life that evolves today on our planet Earth was incarnated in ancient times within the Moon.

In ancient times when life initiated its return towards the Absolute, there, in that ancient Earth Moon, a tremendous apocalyptic event also took place.

Now, when this great life will completely abandon the Earth, this planet will become a new moon.

The sub-lunar spheres constitute the abyss. To name the virgin within those tenebrous regions means to provoke the wrath of the demons.

The tenebrous hate the Virgin, and they furiously attack anyone who dares to name her in their regions.

The Virgin Mother of the world is the Kundalini. The tenebrous hate the Great Mother, who, when converted into a serpent of fire, rises through the medullar canal.

When the serpent descends from the coccyx downwards, then it becomes the tail of Satan. This descending serpent is the horrible tempting serpent of Eden.

This serpent victoriously rises through the medullar canal of angels. This serpent is the tail of Satan in demons.

31. The Millennium And The Judgement

Revelation 20: 1 to 15: "And I saw an angel come down from heaven, (the fifth of the seven) having the key of the bottomless pit and a great chain in his hand.

"And he laid hold on the dragon, that old serpent, (Javhe) which is the Devil, and Satan, and bound him a thousand years".

In the year 1950, the genie of evil whose name is Javhe entered into the abyss. Javhe is paying a terrible Karma. Javhe is a terribly perverse fallen angel. This Javhe is the demon that tempted Jesus in the wilderness while saying "*ITABABO*".

Javhe is the supreme chief of the Black Lodge. Javhe is the secret author of the crucifixion of our Adorable Saviour. Javhe is the antithetic pole of Jesus.

The Roman soldiers who crucified the Adorable One were constituting the honourable guards of Javhe. Thus, this is why Javhe is now crucified within the abyss. This is his karma, the cross of the devil is inverted.

Therefore, Javhe is crucified with his head downwards and his feet upwards. The Jewish people worship Javhe and they follow Javhe.

The fifth of the seven "cast him into the bottomless pit, and shut him up, and set a seal upon him, that he should deceive the nations no more, till the thousand years should be fulfilled: and after that he must be loosed a little season".

Javhe and his legions will remain in the abyss a whole age. Afterward, it will necessary that he be released for a short time.

It is necessary to give those that are lost the last opportunity to repent.

"But the rest of the dead lived not again until the thousand years were finished. This is the first resurrection.

"And when the thousand years are expired, Satan shall be loosed Out of his prison.

"And shall go out to deceive the nations which are in the four quarters of the earth, Gog and Magog, to gather them together to battle: the number of whom is as the sand of the sea.

"And they went up one the breadth of the earth, and compassed the camp of the saints about, and beloved city: and fire came down from God out of heaven, and devoured them

Woe! Woe! Woe! to those unhappy ones that will not take advantage of this last and very short opportunity that is given unto the lost ones. They will sink eternally into the abyss.

"And the devil that deceived them was cast into the lake of fire and brimstone, where the beast and the false prophet are, and shall be tormented day and night for ever and ever.

"And I saw the dead, small and great stand before God; and the books (books of karma) were opened: and another book was opened, which is the book of life: and the dead were judged out of those things which were written in the books, according to their works".

Every human being has his own book, therefore, the deeds of each one are written in his or her book with sacred characters.

"And the sea gave up the dead which were in it; and death and hell delivered up the dead which were in them: and they were judged every men according to their works.

"And death and hell were cast into the lake of fire. This is the second death."

"And whosoever was not found written in the book of life was cast into the lake of fire."

Life has initiated its return towards the Great Light, the times of the end have arrived. Millions of human beings, as numerous as the sand of the sea have already the horns on their forehead and the fatal mark in their hands.

Javhe was tied within the abyss, however the multitudes still worship him.

"And I saw thrones, and they sat upon them, and judgement was given unto them: and I saw the souls of them that were beheaded for the witness of Jesus, and for the word of God, and that had not worshipped the beast, neither his image, neither had received his mark upon their foreheads, or in their hands; and they lived and reigned with Christ a thousand years (a whole age)".

Since ancient times, those who accepted the Arcanum A.Z.F transformed themselves into kings and queens, priests and priestesses of nature.

They are the ones who will now govern under the orders of Christ in the new age.

This is the first resurrection. Thus, this is how the divine kings and divine queens will reincarnate in order to govern.

"Blessed and holy is he that hath part in the first resurrection: on such the second death hath no power, but they shall be priests of God and of Christ, and shall reign with him a thousand years (a whole age)".

The second death is accomplished in a frightful and dreadfully great manner. The tenebrous will be slowly disintegrated until reaching death within the abyss. This is the Second Death.

Those who accept the Arcanum A.Z.F will save themselves from the abyss and the Second Death. They are the ones who will become gods and will be able to sing Alleluia! Alleluia!

32. The New Jerusalem

Revelation 21: 1 to 27: "And I saw a new heaven and a new earth (this is the earth of the future, after the Great Cataclysm): for the first heaven and the first earth (this present one), were past away; and there was no more sea.

"And I John saw the holy city, new Jerusalem (the earth of the future sixth Root Race), coming down from God out of heaven, prepared as a bride adorned for her husband (the Christ)."

"And I heard a great voice out of heaven, saying, Behold the tabernacle of God is with men, and he will dwell with them, and they shall be his people, and (this internal) God himself shall be with them, and be their God.

"And God shall wipe away all tears from their eyes; and shall be no more death, neither sorrow, nor crying, neither shall there be any more pain: for the former things are passed away.

"And he that sat upon the throne (the internal God) said, Behold I make all things new. And he said unto me, Write: for these words are true and faithful.

"And he said unto me, It is done. I am Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the end. I will give unto him that is athirst of the fountain of the water of life freely."

Certainly, He is the Alpha and the Omega, the beginning and the end of all things.

The human being has body, soul and the Intimate. Beyond the Intimate every human being has three profundities: The first one is the origin of life, the second is the origin of the word, and the third is the origin of the sexual force.

These three divine profundities of each human being constitute the Resplendent Dragon of Wisdom. These three are the internal God and the Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the end.

He is the internal Christ whom human beings need to incarnate within.

Whosoever is athirst, He will give unto them from the fountain of the water of life freely.

Whosoever knows how to drink from these pure living waters is a glorified one, because he will never, ever be thirsty again (see John: 4:14). This key is found in the Arcanum A.Z.F.

The fire (I = ignis) must fecundate the water (A = aqua, water) in order for the Spirit (o = origo, principle, Spirit) to be born.

Thus, this is why the Master Huiracocha has spoken extensively about the I.A.O. in his book entitled "Logos Mantra Magic" as well as in his "Rosy-Cross" novel.

The mantra I.A.O. must be vocalized letter by letter. Each letter must be independently vocalized by prolonging its sound after a deep inhalation. All of these vowels are vocalized in succession and in the precise instant of being sexually connected with our spouse, that is to say, our priest or priestess spouse. Thus, this is how the sacred serpent awakens.

"He that overcometh (the sexual passion) shall inherit all things; and I will be his God (I will incarnate myself within him), and he shall be my son (because he is a Christified one),"

"But the fearful (the tenebrous, cowards, unbelievers), and unbelieving, and the abominable, and murderers, and whoremongers, and sorcerers, and idolaters, and all liars, shall have their part in the lake which burn eth with fire and brimstone: which is the second death."

This lake which burns with fire and brimstone is the lake of carnal passion. This lake is related with the lower animal depths of the human being and its atomic region is the abyss.

The tenebrous slowly disintegrate themselves within the abyss until they die. This is the second death.

"And there came unto me one of the seven angels which have the seven vials full of the seven last plagues, and talked with me, saying, Come hither, I will shew thee the bride, the Lamb 's wife."

The human being can travel to any place in the world or in the infernos with his Astral Body. The key in order to consciously travel with the Astral Body is the following: Laying down on his bed, face up, the disciple must fall sleep while vocalizing the syllables "LA" "RA".

The student will independently vocalize each syllable, that is to say, each syllable with a separate breath, as follows:

The vocalization of these two sacred syllables must be done mentally.

These two syllables have the power of making the sexual energy intensely vibrate. Thus, the disciple must fall asleep while vocalizing with tranquility in his bed. Thus, this is how the sexual energies, the creative energies of the Third Logos begin to vibrate when the student vocalizes these two syllables.

These type of energies produce a sweet and subtle sound when they are intensely vibrating. This sound is similar to that of the cricket. The student must learn how to handle this sound, as this is the subtle voice which grants us the power to consciously travel with our Astral Body.

The student must arise from his bed in those precise instants in which he hears this mystical sound and direct himself to any place in the world. This is not a matter of performing it mentally. What we are teaching here must be performed in a factual action.

The disciple with his astral body, is actually detaching himself from the physical body.

He then penetrates into the superior worlds in order to study the great mysteries of life and death.

Whosoever wants to learn how to sing these two sacred syllables should listen to Mozart's Magic Flute.

The Magic Flute is an opera which is related with an Initiation that Mozart received in Egypt.

Thus, this is how John the prophet was taken from his physical body and while being in the spirit was carried away in order to see the heavenly Jerusalem. "And he carried me away in the spirit to a great and high mountain, and shew me that great city, the holy Jerusalem, descending out of heaven from God."

"Having the glory of God: and her light was like unto a stone most precious, even like a jasper stone, clear as crystal;" This most precious stone, which is even like a jasper stone, is the sexual organs of the Christified Ones. So, this stone is clear as crystal.

Let us remember the Vitriol, a liquid, flexible and malleable crystal. This crystal is the christonic semen. VITRIOL means: (Visitam Interiori Terra Rectifictur Invenian Ocultum Lapidum) Visit the interior of the earth which by rectifying you will find the occult stone.

117

The occult stone is the Philosophical Stone. Therefore, to search within our philosophical earth is necessary, because by rectifying we will find this most precious stone, which is like a jasper stone and clear as crystal.

"INMISIO MEMBRI VIRILI IN VAGINA FEMINAE SINE EJECULATIUM SEMINIS."

The sage Huiracocha said: "Try to endure the described position for one hour and a comfortable ineffable sensation will be felt. Chest against chest, the two solar plexus in immediate contact, as well as all the astral centres placed together. This will permit an interchange of current in order to establish one just Androgynism."

Every Initiate builds his own Jerusalem upon the living stone. This living stone is the sex. The Jerusalem of the human being exists as well as the Jerusalem from above and the Jerusalem from below.

"Sicut superius, Sicut quot inferius."

The superior worlds are the Jerusalem from above. The earth of the future sixth Root Race is the Jerusalem from below.

The human Jerusalem is the human being with all of his Christified Vehicles. The New Jerusalem gloriously shines.

"And had a wall great and high, and had twelve gates (the twelve zodiacal gates in the universe and in the human being), and at the gates twelve (zodiacal) angels, and names written thereon, which are the names of the twelve tribes of the children of Israel," which are the twelve fundamental tribes in which this humanity is divided into in accordance with the twelve zodiacal signs.

"As above so below" The human being has twelve faculties which are governed by twelve atomic angels.

The twelve zodiacal signs exist within the starry space and within the human being.

It is necessary to transmute the sexual energy and make it pass through the twelve zodiacal gates of the human organism.

Thus, this is how the prophet continues speaking about the twelve zodiacal gates:

"On the east three gates; on the north three gates; on the south three gates, and on the west three gates.

"And the wall of the city had twelve foundations, and in them the name of the twelve apostles of the Lamb." These are the twelve zodiacal signs and the twelve energetic spheres which penetrate and co-penetrate without being confused.

Any solar humanity is completely self-realized within the twelve planes. Therefore, the twelfth Arcanum is the foundation of the Heavenly Jerusalem. This twelfth Arcanum is the symbol of sexual alchemy.

The twelfth Arcanum appears in the Tarot as follows: The twelfth Arcanum represents a human being with his hands bound behind him, and suspended by one foot. His tied hands on his head force him to form a triangle with his arms, with the vertex pointing downwards, and with his legs he forms a cross which is above the triangle. The gibbet is formed by the trunks of two trees, each with the stumps of six lopped branches, and by a cross-piece, thus

completing the figure of the Hebrew Tau. Behold here the sacrifice and the performed work. This is what is called sexual alchemy.

Millions of books of Yoga, Occultism, Theosophy, Rosicrucianism, etc. exist as well as thousands of schools, some of them with very ancient and very venerable traditions. Any student can submit himself to the most rigorous disciplines, practicing with the Kriya, visiting thousands of these schools, centres, lodges, acquiring titles, degrees, and even receiving from their instructors very beautiful and distinctive names, but if the student does not practice sexual magic, he will remain very venerable, learned, and even an erudite, but only for his people. Above in the superior worlds he will remain just like an aficionado to these spiritual studies, he will be nothing but an ignorant disciple, a poor mystical shadow, profane, or even worse, he will be a very dangerous subject.

Therefore, to work with the gold and the silver, to work with the moon and the sun is necessary in order to edify the heavenly Jerusalem within each human being.

The gold and the silver, the sun and the moon are the sexual forces of man and woman.

The Alchemist woman should never reach the physiological spasm either. Thus, this is how she will transmute her sexual energies and can awaken her serpent.

The highest degree that women can reach in this study is the degree of Virgin. The sexual alchemy is an hermetic art. The hermetic art is highly scientific, highly philosophical and highly mystical.

The whole science and philosophy of the Great Work is found enclosed within the twelfth Arcanum.

The secret living and philosophical fire is hidden within the christonic semen. The sexual alchemical mysticism is the mysticism of all the ancient Initiates.

The philosophy of sexual alchemy has its principles in the school of the Essenians, in the school of Alexandria, in the teachings of Pythagoras in the mysteries of Egypt, Troy, Rome, Carthage, Eleusis, as well as in the wisdom of the Aztecs and Mayas etc.

The procedures of the science of sexual alchemy must be studied in the books of Paracelsus, Nicholas Flamel, Raymond Lulli. We also find these procedures hidden within the veil of all symbols, in all the hieratic figures of ancient hieroglyphics of many ancient temples, as well as, in the Greek and Egyptian myths.

To you that are searching for the Initiation, to you that read a lot, to you who hops from school to school always searching, always hoping, always sighing, tell me with sincerity have you awakened your Kundalini? Have you opened the seven churches of your spinal medulla? Have you incarnated the Lamb?

You who are searching, tell me, can you dominate earthquakes? Can you walk upon the water? Can you calm the tempest? Can you utter the golden language? Can you see in the superior worlds and are you capable of studying the whole history of the earth and of its races within the sealed records of nature?

Answer me beloved reader, be sincere with yourself, place your hand on your heart and answer me with sincerity. Have you self-realized yourself? Are you sure that with your theories you will become a God? What did you achieve? What have you attained with your theories?

The poor servant who writes this book is an initiate of the Lemurian, Egyptian, Tibetan, etc., mysteries, and never knew in the history of the centuries one authentic Master who could Christify himself without practicing sexual magic.

Therefore, if you have hope of liberating yourself or reaching self-realization or Christification without practicing sexual magic, then you are worthy of pity, you are worthy of compassion, you are an imbecile.

To transmute the lead of personality into the very pure gold of the spirit is necessary.

In order to prepare the philosophical mercury (semen), the salt (matter) and the sulphur (fire) are urgent. This mercury must be transmuted and sublimated to the heart.

Christ is within the heart. It is in the heart where the forces which descend from above are mixed with those that arise from below. Thus, this is how that which is from below must be mixed with that which is from above in order for that which is from below to arise into the superior worlds of the Great Light.

This is how we achieve the union of the cross with the triangle. The cross (human being) must be united with the triangle (Spirit) by means of the potable gold (sacred fire of sex). These are the twelve foundations of the heavenly Jerusalem.

The human being who is formed within the maternal womb is the result of a sexual act, and certainly not the result of any theory, nor of any school. The human being is always the child of a male and a female.

In that conception there were kisses, there was also love, there was a male and a female and also there was a coitus in order to fertilize the egg, and finally the mother begat the child. Why are you forgetting this? Tell me with which theory were you engendered? Why now do you want to be born as a Master of the great day within the worlds of the light by excluding the phallus and the uterus?

What is natural is natural beloved reader. Do not commit the error of wanting to be born of theories. Nobody can be born through the feet, neither can one eat with the knees. Everything must be in its own place. Everything works as it should.

What is natural is natural. The birth of the Son of Man is one hundred percent sexual. If in spite of everything that is said you still have hope of achieving the Initiation with the famous bellows system which is based exclusively on respiratory exercises, then time and years will prove to you that you were mistaken and you will inevitably tumble into the abyss. The bellows system, asanas, Kriyas etc are magnificent and marvellous exercises. We cannot disregard them. They help, they are worthy for the awakening of the chakras and the cleaning of the nervous canals etc., but if the Yogi does not practice sexual magic, he will sink into the abyss even when he is a fanatic of the bellows system.

"And he that talked with me had a golden reed to measure the city, and the gates thereof and the wall thereof". This golden reed is the dorsal spine of the human being.

The spinal fires ascend along the medullar canal. The development, ascension and evolution of the Kundalini is very difficult. Each one of the thirty-three spinal vertebrae corresponds to the thirty-three sacred chambers of the temple.

The spinal fires are controlled by the fires of the heart. Thus this is how the Kundalini ascends very slowly based on sexual magic and sanctification.

Each vertebrae has its virtues and its ordeals. To achieve the ascension to any vertebra without the permission of the cardiacal fires is impossible. Therefore, the ascension of the Kundalini is controlled by the merits of our heart.

The guru who has not received the reed is not a true guru. Every Initiate that rises the serpent upon the staff receives the reed.

This is how the city and the gates thereof and the wall thereof must be measured with the reed. The Jerusalem of every human being must be measured with the reed.

Therefore the Master that still has not awakened the Kundalini is a false prophet.

Three vestibules exist: First the vestibule of ignorance; second the vestibule of study; third the vestibule of wisdom.

The human multitudes live within the first vestibule. All theories, schools, lodges, orders etc are within the second vestibule. The third vestibule is that of wisdom. The Master and the internal God who guide us towards the Great Light are found in this vestibule.

When we enter into the second vestibule, we are searching. We study Astrology, Yoga, Theosophy, etc. We visit different schools, hopping from flower to flower. Each flower is a sect, theory, school, lodge etc. Thus, this is how many people pass through many reincarnations searching, hopping, reading here and there and everywhere.

When the student is tired of sighing and finally wants to know, this is when he enters through the straight, narrow and difficult gate. This gate is sex. This is when we really enter into the third vestibule, the vestibule of wisdom.

We find the internal God and the Guru who lead us to the great reality within this vestibule. We need to edify the heavenly Jerusalem upon the living stone.

"And the city lieth foursquare, and the length is as large as the breadth: and he measured the city with the reed, twelve thousand furlongs. The length and the breadth and the height of it are equal".

We have reached the square of the circle and the perpetual movement. The city is situated and placed in a square. This reminds us of the holy and mysterious Tetragrammaton, the holy four.

If we profoundly explore the interior of our divine Being, then we find three profundities.

These three profundities emerge from a mathematical point. It is urgent to know that this point is a super divine atom from the Abstract Absolute Space. The Qabbalistic name of this atom is the Am Soph.

The three Christic profundities that we carry within emerge from the Am Soph. This is the ternary emerging from this mathematical point.

3 + 1 = 4. Three plus one equals four. Behold here the holy Tetragrammaton, the Dragon of Wisdom (the internal Christ) which emanated from the Mn Soph and which will return into the Ain Soph.

This is why the city is shaped in a square because it is the perfect Temple of the Lamb.

"... and he measured the city with the reed, twelve thousand furlongs." The number twelve thousand is Qabbalistically broken down as follows: 12,000 = 1 + 2 = 3. Behold here the ternary, which is the Lamb who emerged from the super divine atom.

The Adorable One shines within the internal vehicles of every one who has christified himself. This is love.

To edify the new Jerusalem without the holy four is impossible.

The name of the Eternal One has four Hebrew letters: IOD, HE, VAU, HE.

These are the four winds. Certainly, there are few people who really know the right way in which to pronounce this name. Whosoever wants to edify the new Jerusalem must first awaken the sacred fire of Kundalini. This Pentecostal serpent is INRI, AZOTH. The Sun is its father, the Moon its mother, the wind carries it in its belly and the philosophical earth is its nurse.

The alchemist who wants to edify the new Jerusalem must work in his laboratory with the sulphur (fire), the Azoth (air), the mercury (water) and the earth.

The Great Work is symbolized by the lion (fire), the eagle (air), the man (water) and the bull (earth).

These four elements form the Cross of Initiation. You must know that the Cross of Initiation is received in the Heart-Temple.

We must work with the elementals of fire, elementals of air, of the water and of the earth while in the sacred mountain. This sacred mountain could either be the Himalayas or the Alps or of the Andes, these mountains always symbolize the spinal medulla with its thirty-three vertebrae.

We must be alchemists while in the sacred mountain. Thus, this is how we can receive the Initiation in the heart temple. We need to transmute led into gold in order to edify the new Jerusalem.

The salamanders light the fire and they fecundate the undines of the water in order for life to be born.

The gnomes and pygmies which dwell within the great mountain transmute the lead into gold. The happy and playful sylphs vivify the fire in order for the Great Work to be performed. The receptacle must be hermetically closed in order to impede, at any cost, the spilling of the raw matter.

This is how the lead of personality is transmuted into the living gold of the Spirit. The receptacle must be animated by the fire of the salamanders (bake and re-bake and bake again, and do not be tired of baking). The sylphs of the air will animate the flames of thought. The gnomes will transmute the lead of your passions into the gold of the Spirit, and the undines, which are sometimes passionate, will joyfully move within the raw matter or universal sperm.

Therefore, the creatures of fire, air, water and earth cannot be absent from the Great Work. We can not transmute the lead into gold without the creatures of the four elements. The gnomes will not transmute lead into gold without water and without undines. The water and the undines must be fecundated and warmed by the burning fire of the salamanders. This is how it is possible to evaporate the waters and to transmute the lead of personality into the very pure gold of the Spirit.

The alchemist becomes disappointed and his Great Work fails without the mystic action of the sylphs. These creatures of the four elements are within ourselves here and now.

Every Master of metallic transmutations edifies the heavenly Jerusalem.

"And the city lieth foursquare, and the length is as large as the breadth:" It is impossible to edify the new Jerusalem without the holy four.

IOD is the man, HE is the woman, VAU is the phallus, HE is the vulva.

All ineffable things are written with the holy name of the Eternal One. These four creatures were constantly moving back and forth. These four sacred letters are moving and combining in the whole of creation.

"And he measured the wall thereof a hundred and forty and four cubits, according to the measure of a man, that is, of the angel."

144 = 1 + 4 + 4 = 9. This is the Ninth Sphere (the sex). There is the need to descend into the Ninth Sphere (sex) in order to work with the fire and the water, which is the origin of worlds, beasts, human beings and gods. Every authentic white Initiation starts here.

All of those who incarnated the Lamb, for example, Hermes, Jesus, Krishna, Rama, Buddha, Dante, Pythagoras etc descended into the Ninth Sphere.

HILARIUX IX said that the descent into the Ninth Sphere in the ancient mysteries was the maximum ordeal for the supreme dignity of the Hierophant.

Nine is the measure of a man who is of the angel, because we remain nine months within the maternal womb. The Son of Man can only be born within the Ninth Sphere. Never has it been known that an angel was born without the Ninth Sphere.

Whosoever wants to cut the head of Medusa (the psychological "I") must descend into the Ninth Sphere.

Whosoever wants to incarnate Christ must descend into the Ninth Sphere. Whosoever wants to dissolve the "I" must descend into the Ninth Sphere. The Ninth Sphere is the Sanctum Regnum of the divine omnipotence of the Third Logos (the Holy Spirit). It is here in the Ninth Sphere where we find The Flaming Forge of Vulcan.

Every fledgling who works in the Great Work, must support himself on his staff, to light himself with his own lamp, and cover himself with his sacred mantle. Every fledgling must be prudent.

If you want to incarnate Christ, you must obtain the characteristics of a lemon.

You must flee from lust and from alcohol. You must kill even the most intimate roots of desire.

"And the building of the wall of it was of jasper and the city was pure gold, like unto clear glass."

To build the wall of the new Jerusalem is only possible with the Philosophical Stone (the sex).. "and the city (the internal vehicles of the human being) was pure gold, like unto clear glass." Lions of gold decorated the thrones of the divine kings.

The gold symbolizes the sexual fire of the Kundalini. The potable gold (Pentecostal fire) is similar to a liquid, flexible and malleable glass. This glass is the christonic semen.

The dorsal fires are Pentecostal fires, the fires of the heart are Christic, and in the forehead the rays of the Father flash magnificently.

"And the foundations of the wall of the city were garnished with all manner of precious stones. The first foundation was jasper (the Philosophical Stone); the second, sapphire; the third, chalcedony; the fourth, an emerald.

"The fifth, sardonynx; the sixth, sardius; the seventh, chrysolite; the eighth, beryl; the ninth, a topaz; the tenth, a chrysoprasus; the eleventh, a jacinth; the twelfth, an amethyst."

Each one of these stones represents determinate virtues. The Sword of Justice is adorned with all of these sacred stones.

Nine Initiations of Minor Mysteries and seven great Initiations of Major Mysteries exist. The INTIMATE is the one who receives all of these Initiations.

The Testament of Wisdom says: "Before the dawning of the false aurora upon the earth, the ones who survived the hurricane and the tempest were praising the INTIMATE, and the heralds of the aurora appeared unto them."

The psychological "I" does not receives Initiations. The human personality does not receive anything. Nonetheless, the "I" of some Initiates becomes filled with pride when saying I am a Master, I have such Initiations.

Thus, this is how the "I" believes itself to be an Initiate and keeps reincarnating in order to "perfect itself', but, the "I" never ever perfects itself. The "I" only reincarnates in order to satisfy desires. That is all.

The experiences of every reincarnation make the "I" complicated and transforms it into a more perverse "I".

Evolution is a process of the complication of life. Therefore, we receive these precious stones in the manner that we dissolve the "I". The INTIMATE is the one who receives His sacred stones within the superior worlds, as well as rings, chains, ineffable jewels which are adorned with these sacred stones, etc.

Any evil action is enough in order to lose certain sacred stones, that is to say, the loss of degrees.

An Initiate who was forcing his physically ill wife to perform the sexual act was very close to losing a sapphire from his sword. Fortunately, this Initiate knew how to obey when he was warned by the White Lodge.

The "I" is memory, a bunch of memories, the dust of centuries. Therefore, we receive degrees and the most precious stones in the manner that we dissolve it.

When the Dragon of Wisdom dissolves the "I", then the ten Sephiroth shine as precious stones in His ineffable, glorious body.

First we must decapitate the "I" with the sword while in the Flaming Forge of Vulcan. Afterwards, we have to start slowly dying. (The "I" becomes dissolved based on Alchemy and a very rigorous comprehension. This is complete revolution).

"And the twelve gates were twelve pearls; every several gate was of one pearl: and the street of the city was pure gold, as it were transparent glass."

The pearl is lunar. Sex is lunar. The twelve pearls symbolize the sexual fires of Pentecost which shine in the twelve faculties of the human being. The street of the heavenly Jerusalem is of pure gold as if it were transparent glass. As well, the human Jerusalem has twelve gates, that is to say, twelve vehicles.

The Theosophist brethren have studied the septenary of the human being. But, every christified one has twelve bodies, twelve vehicles that are connected to the great reality.

Twelve energetic spheres exist, a solar humanity lives and unfolds in these twelve energetic spheres. Therefore, the heavenly Jerusalem has twelve gates, in each gate is a pearl, a region, or world.

A zodiacal belt with twelve constellations also exists. The new Jerusalem, that is to say, the earth of the future sixth Root Race, is being gestated within the zodiacal womb.

Every evolution starts in Leo and ends in Leo. The street of the city is of pure gold (sacred fire) as if it were flexible, malleable glass, that is to say, christonic semen. The Pentecostal fire rises from this liquid glass.

All of the twelve vehicles of the christified one gloriously shines within the fire and the light of infinite space. These are the twelve pearls. This is the heavenly Jerusalem.

Therefore, each inhabitant of the new Jerusalem will be in themselves a true heavenly Jerusalem.

"And I saw no temple therein; for the Lord God Almighty (the internal Being) and the Lamb are the temple of it".

This verse does not signify that the cosmic temples of internal instruction will cease to exist. The matter is more profound. In the new Jerusalem, the seven present religions and the five thousand sects will have no reason for existing, since the Lamb will be incarnated in every human being. This will be the age of Christ.

"And the city had no need of the (physical) sun, neither of the (physical) moon to shine in it: for the glory of God did lighten it, and the Lamb is the light thereof.

"And the nations of them which are saved shall walk in the light of it: and the kings of the earth (the Initiates) do bring their glory and honour into it.

"And the gates of it shall not be shut at all by day: for there shall be no night there. "And they shall bring the glory and honour of the nations into it.

"And there shall in no wise enter into it any thing that defileth, neither whatsoever worketh abomination, or maketh a lie: but they which are written in the Lamb's book of life".

33. The Pure River Of The Waters Of Life

It is necessary that the students of the Great World Gnostic Movement (AGLA) receive the Initiation.

Imagination, inspiration and intuition are the three obligatory ways for the Initiation. Thought, feeling and will power must be totally liberated from the physical body.

To learn how to consciously travel in the astral body is indispensable.

First, the Gnostic student must elevate himself into imaginative knowledge.

Second, the student will acquire inspirational knowledge.

Third, the student will attain intuitive knowledge.

For sometime the student will train with imagination, afterwards with inspiration, and later on with intuition.

Practices for the Imagination

First: The syllables MA MA, PA PA, BA BA are the first syllables which we articulate in childhood. You can start the Initiation with these syllables. You must sing these syllables while assuming an innocent and infantile attitude. You can learn the intonation of these sacred syllables when listening to The Magic Flute of Mozart.

Mozart placed these syllables in his marvellous opera. The disciple must fall asleep assuming an infantile attitude while remembering the first years of his childhood and then mentally singing the sacred syllables.

The word PA PA should be vocalized intoning the first syllable PA in a high voice then the second syllable PA will be uttered in a lower voice. These two syllables should be pronounced many times. You must do the same thing with the syllable MA.

Fall asleep while meditating on your childhood. Review with your imagination your whole childhood and mentally articulate the sacred syllables.

You must know that every child is clairvoyant until the age of 4 years. Afterwards the innocent atoms of clairvoyance submerge themselves within the subconsciousness. Therefore, if you want to reconquer clairvoyance, meditate on your childhood and profoundly fall asleep while articulating the first syllable of the child, MA MA, PA PA, BA BA.

This type of meditation and the sacred syllables will awaken the infantile atoms of clairvoyance. Then you will elevate yourself into imaginative knowledge. You will learn to think with living images.

The present Root Race only thinks in concepts of ideas. These ideas are the result of desire.

Somebody thinks about conquering a woman, then an idea assaults his mind, etc. The ideas belong to the "I". Therefore you must learn to think with living images. The infantile meditation and the sacred syllables will awaken the infantile atoms for new activity.

Imaginative knowledge grants us the power to consciously and positively travel in the ethereal body. When the student has achieved imaginative knowledge, then he can start the exercises for inspirational knowledge.

We have given many clues in order to consciously travel with the astral body, so, thousands of students have learned to travel in their astral body. However, we have seen in practice that

those people who cannot quiet the mind, not even for an instant, who are accustomed to hopping from school to school, from lodge to lodge, always inquiring, always preoccupied, are not able to consciously astral travel.

Therefore, the clue in order to consciously travel in the astral body is to empty the mind.

Practice

While lying down with his body, the student will beg his internal God to take him out of his physical body. After this imploration the student must empty his mind, because for this practice it is useless to think. So, by comprehending the uselessness of thinking, the student will absolutely clear his mind and not think. Thus, by comprehending the uselessness of thinking, the mind will remain quiet and in silence for this practice.

Before anything else, comprehend that in order to consciously travel in the astral body, the process of thinking is an obstacle.

When we comprehend the uselessness of thinking during this practice, which will take us to inspirational knowledge, then the mind will naturally remain quiet and in silence.

There is the need to distinguish between a mind which is quiet and a mind which has to be forced to be quiet. There is the need to distinguish between a mind which is in silence and a mind which is silenced by force.

When the mind is quiet and silenced with violence, a secret struggle exists, and this mind is therefore not quiet, neither is it in silence.

Only when we have comprehended the uselessness of thinking during these practices. will the mind remain quiet and in silence by itself.

Afterwards, the student must tranquilly fall asleep. If the student achieves falling asleep without thinking, that is to say with his mind quiet and in silence, he will then consciously awaken out of his physical body, elevating himself into inspirational knowledge.

Therefore, it is indispensable for the dreamer to awake, it is urgent to awaken the consciousness. All the human beings travel in astral body during the hours of sleep, but they disgracefully live in the astral plane with the consciousness asleep. They are sleeping wanderers.

When the dreamer awakes from his dreams, then he elevates himself into inspirational knowledge. The Masters of the White Lodge do not dream. They live at every hour with their consciousness awakened and in the state of vigil even when their physical bodies are sleeping within their beds.

The third step of knowledge is that of intuitive knowledge. In order to reach the ineffable summits of intuitive knowledge, there is the need to kiss the whip of the executioner and the hand of the one who strikes us. We must love and adore the whole of humanity, sacrificing ourselves for it, always ready to give even the last drop of our blood for the love of this poor suffering humanity.

When any Initiate who consciously moves in his astral body can provoke ecstasy by means of love, then this Initiate escapes from the astral body and elevates himself into the worlds of angels, archangels, seraphim, potencies, virtues, thrones.

Thus, this is when we elevate ourselves into intuitive knowledge.

Whosoever reaches the ineffable summits of intuition can contemplate the future heavenly Jerusalem.

Those that climb the three steps of imagination, inspiration and intuition can see the ancient Jerusalem (the ancient earth) and the future Jerusalem (the future earth that will come after the great cataclysm).

"And I saw a new heaven and a new earth: for the first heaven and the first earth were past away; and there was no more sea" (Revelation 21:1). The inhabitants of the future earth will be awakened citizens within the superior worlds. In the future Jerusalem only happiness, peace and love will exist.

Revelation 22: 1 to 21: "And he shew me a pure river of water of life, clear as crystal, proceeding out of the throne of God and of the Lamb".

This river of eternal water of life is the Christonic Semen. Those who long to rise through the three steps of imagination, inspiration and intuition must wash their sins with the pure waters of life. Because without chastity, nobody attains any progress in these studies.

"In the midst of the Street of it, and on either side of the river, was there the tree of life, (the ten Sephiroth) which bare twelve manner of fruits, (twelve faculties) and yielding her fruit every month: and the leaves of the tree were for the healing of the nations".

Then, nobody will utilize their powers for evil doing. Whosoever has risen through the three steps of imagination, inspiration and intuition moves himself consciously in his internal vehicles, thus visiting the superior worlds.

The ten Sephiroth constitute the ten atomic surges of the Great Universal Life. The Initiate must consciously move within these ten surges of life.

A secret Sephira exists. This is the Am Soph (the world of the Absolute Abstract Space). The fatal antithesis of the Am Soph is the abyss. Therefore, the Initiate that does evil with his twelve faculties becomes a black magician and falls into the abyss.

In the new Jerusalem the leaves and the fruits of the Tree of Life will be for the healing of the nations.

"And there shall be no more curse: but the throne of God and of the Lamb shall be in it, and his servants shall serve him.

"And they shall see his face; and his name shall be in their foreheads". Whosoever receives the name of the eternal one on his forehead will be saved from the abyss and from the second death.

No disbeliever or sceptic, no man without faith can enter into the new Jerusalem. Those who doubt had better prepare themselves to enter into the abyss.

Those who ejaculate the semen, the sorcerers, the assassins, the liars, are people of the abyss. These people cannot receive the name of God on their foreheads.

In the new Jerusalem only people filled with faith, love, chastity and charity, etc., will live.

"And there shall be no night there; and they need no candle, neither light of the (physical) sun; for the (internal) Lord God giveth them light: and they shall reign for ever and ever.

"And he said unto me, These sayings are faithful and true: and the Lord God of the holy prophets sent his angel to shew unto his servants the things which must shortly be done

Whosoever has risen through the three steps of imagination, inspiration and intuition has awakened in the internal worlds. Every Initiate, while out of his physical body, can ask to his Master to show him the future Jerusalem and the things which must shortly be done.

What is necessary is to abandon laziness and to perform the practices of imagination, inspiration and intuition which take us towards the Initiation.

"Behold, I come quickly; blessed is he that keepeth the sayings of the prophesy of this book".

This is the Aquarian message, this is the book for the New Age. This is the secret doctrine of the Saviour of the world.

So, the Seer of the Book of Apocalypse (who, by the way, is not incarnated today) continues to literally say the following:

"And I John saw these things, and heard them. And when I had heard and seen, I fell down to worship before the feet of the angel which shewed me these things.

"Then saith he unto me, See thou do it not: for I am thy fellow servant, and of thy brethren the prophets, and of them which keep the sayings of this book: worship God".

This angel did not allow himself to be praised. Nonetheless, thousands of disciples enjoy being praised by people. They are the ones who say: I am a great Seer, nothing is hidden for me, I do not ignore anything. I am a great Initiate, I am a Master, I know everything etc. Thus, this is how Satan enjoys his self praise. The psychological "I" is Satan. He is the one that says I am the reincarnation of a great Master, or of a great man.

The truly humble Boddhisattwa never praises himself. The humble Boddhisattwa says: I am just a miserable slug from the mud of the earth, I am a nobody. My person has no value. The work is what is worthy.

The Boddhisattwa is the human soul of a Master. The Master is the internal God.

The temple of the Milky Way is marvellous. A great bolder closes the entrance to the profane. Inside this temple, we find thousands of Boddhisattwas from the Milky Way.

They look like illiterate peasants. However, the internal God of each one of them governs constellations and worlds. When we cast ourselves to their feet in order to worship them, they say: I am a nobody, I do not know anything, I have no value. "See thou do it not: for I am thy fellow servant, and of thy brethren the prophets".

The human being in himself is nothing else but a sinning shadow. Only the Seer of the Seer, that is to say the Father who is in secret, is perfect.

"And he saith unto me, Seal not the sayings of the prophecy of this book: for the time is at hand".

In that epoch of John, one can still say: "He that is unjust, let him be unjust still: and he which is filthy, let him be filthy still: and he that is righteous, let him be righteous still; and he that is holy, let him be holy still".

Today, we can not say this because the times of the end have arrived.

We axe in the precise instant in which we have to define ourselves as eagles or reptiles, as angels or demons.

"And behold, I come quickly: and my reward is with me, to give every man according as his work shall be.

"I am Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the end, the first and the last".

The Lamb is the Alpha and the Omega, the beginning and the end, the first and the last. The Beloved One enters into the soul in order to reward each one according to his work.

"Blessed are they that do his commandments, that they may have right to the tree of life (the ten Sephiroth), and may enter in through the gates (of sex) into the city (the New Jerusalem)."

"For without are dogs, (the false prophets, those who are founders of evil schools in order to exploit the souls, the fornicators etc will be out) and sorcerers, and who remongers, and murderers, and idolaters, and whosoever loveth and maketh a lie.

"I, Jesus have sent mine angel to testify unto you these things in the churches." And Jesus, the one who received the Venustic Initiation exclaims the following: "I am the root and the offspring of David, and the bright and morning star".

Christ is the Star of Dawn. Christ enters into the soul when the soul receives the Venustic Initiation.

"And the Spirit (the Christ) and the bride (the soul) say, Come. And let him that heareth say, Come. And let him that is thirst come. And whosoever will, let him take the water of life freely".

Only by taking the pure waters of life, will you attain the Venustic Initiation.

Whosoever drinks from these pure waters of life will never be thirsty, that is to say, whosoever works with the Arcanum A.Z.F will lift up the Son of Man within themselves and never by thirsty.

"For I testify unto every man that heareth the words of the prophecy of the book, if any man shall add unto these things, God shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book: And if any man shall take away from the words of the book of this prophecy, God shall take away his part out of the book of life, and out of the holy city, and from the things which are written in this book".

Whosoever wants to reproduce this book can do it with entire liberty.

Nevertheless, those persons who for false pudency, take from this book, the secrets of the Arcanum A.Z.F woe of them! God shall take away his part out of the Book of Life and out of the holy city, and from the things which are written in this book. You can reproduce this book with the goal that the "Message of Aquarius" will reach all of the nations of the world, but woe! woe! woe! to those who add to it or take the words from the book of this prophecy, because truly, truly, I tell you, God shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book.

"He which testifieth these things saith, Surely I come quickly. Amen, Even so, come, Lord Jesus."

"The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with you all." Amen.

THE END

I'm Julie, the woman who runs <u>Global Grey</u> - the website where this ebook was published. These are my own formatted editions, and I hope you enjoyed reading this particular one.

If you have this book because you bought it as part of a collection – thank you so much for your support.

If you downloaded it for free – please consider (if you haven't already) making a small donation to help keep the site running.

If you bought this from Amazon or anywhere else, you have been ripped off by someone taking free ebooks from my site and selling them as their own. You should definitely get a refund:/

Thanks for reading this and I hope you visit the site again - new books are added regularly so you'll always find something of interest:)